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The accounts of Government Companies set up under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (including Government Insurance Companies and Companies deemed 
to be Government Companies as per provisions of the Companies Act) are audited by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) under the provisions of Section 619 of the 
Companies Act, 1956. The accounts certified by the Statutory Auditors (Chartered 
Accountants) appointed by the CAG under the Companies Act, 1956 (as per amendment 
made in December 2000) are subjected to supplementary or test audit by the CAG. The 
Companies Act, 1956 empowers CAG to issue directions to the Statutory Auditors on the 
manner in which the Company's accounts shall be audited. 

2. The statutes· governing some Corporations and Authorities require their accounts to 
be audited by CAG and reports to be given by him. In respect of four such corporations, viz., 
Airports Authority of India, National Highways Authority of India, Inland Waterways 

. Authority of India, and Damodar Valley Corporation, relevant statutes designate CAG as 
their sole auditor. The Food Corporation Act, 1964 was amended on 2 June 2000 whereby 
CAG was made the sole auditor for this Corporation also. In respect of Central 
Warehousing Corporation, CAG has the right to conduct a supplementary or test audit after · 
audit has been conducted by the Chartered Accountants appointed under the statute 
governing the Corporation. 

3. Reports in relation to the accounts of a Government Company or Corporation are 
submitted to the Government by CAG for laying before both the Houses of Parliament under 
th.e provisions of Section 19-A of the Comptroller and Auditor General's (Duties, Powers 
and Conditions ofService)Act,1971, as amended in 1984. 

4. Six reports on the accounts and the performance of the Central Government 
Companies and Corporations are. issued by CAG to the Government. These are: 

'Report No. 1 (Commercial) - Review of Accounts' gives an overall appreciation of 
the performance ·of the Companies and Corporations as revealed by their accounts and 
information obtained in audit. 

'Report No.2 (Commercial)-Comments on Accounts' contains extracts from the 
important comments of CAG on the accounts of the Companies and Corporations and a 
resume .of the reports submitted by the Statutory Auditors (Chartered Accountants) on the 
audit ofthe Companies in pursuance ofthe directions issued by CAG. 

'Report No.3 (Commercial)- Transaction Audit Observations' contains the 
observations on individual topics of interest noticed in the course of audit of the Companies 
and Corporations on aspects of their working. 

Report No.4 (Commercial)- Reviews on some of the activities of the 
Companies/Corporations. 

Report No.5 (Commercial)- Report on Transaction Audit Observations and Reviews. 
on the performance of Companies in theTelecom Sector. . 

Report No.6- Report on the Audit findings noticed in respect of PSUs in individual 
specific sector. 
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5. Audit Boards are set up under the supervision and control of CAG to undertake 
comprehensive appraisals of the performance of the Companies and Corporations subject to 
audit by CAG. Each Audit Board consists of the Chairman (Deputy Comptroller and 
Auditor General), two or three whole-time members of the rank of Principal Director of 
Audif under CAG and two technical or other experts in the area of performance of the 
Company or Corporation who are part-time members. The part-time members are appointed 
by the Government of India (through the respective Ministry or Department controlling the 

·Company or Corporation) with the concurrence of CAG. CAG also reviews certain specific 
aspects of functioning of some PSU s outside the mechanism of the Audit Board. The reports 
of CAG based on such performance appraisals by the Audit Board and other reviews are 
issued to the Government as separate reports in addition to the annual reports mentioned in 
para 4. 

6. Provision exists in the Acts governing Reserve Bank ofindia, Export-Import Bank of 
India,, Industrial Reconstruction Bank of India, National Bank for Agricultural and Rural 
Development and National Housing Bank for the Central Government to appoint CAG, at 
any time, to examine and report upon their accounts. No such appointment was made during 
2003-04. 

7. Gist of important comments or supplementary audit observations of CAG made on 
the accounts of Central Government Companies and Corporations for the year 2003-04, or 
earlier years and significant findings reported by the Statutory Auditors while certifying the 
accounts of PSUs are given in this Report. A resume of the reports submitted to CAG by 
Statutory Auditors of these Companies/Corporations in compliance with the directions 
iSsued to them under Section 619(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 1956, covering the accounts 
for the year 2003-04 (or earlier years as are finalised during the current year), is also given 
in this Report. · 

8. All references to 'Government Companies/Corporations or PSU's in this report may 
be constructed to refer to 'Central Government Companies/Corporations' unless the context 
thereOf suggests otherwise .. 
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Report No.2 of2005 (PSUs) 

OVERVIEW 

I. Comments on Accounts of Public Sector Undertakings 

The number of Central Government Companies including Deemed Government 
Companies and Corporations for which accounts for 2003-04 were received for audit 
under the Statutes governing the concerned Corporation or for supplementary audit under 
Section 619 ( 4) of the Companies Act, 1956 and in respect of which comments were 
issued was as follows: -

Government Deemed Corporations Total 
Companies Government 

Companies 
a) Total number of Central 

290 88 6 384 
Government Companies/ 
Corporations 
b) No. of Companies/ 

238 61 5 304 
Corporations whose accounts for 
2003-04 were received (upto 15 
December 2004) 
c) No. of Companies/ 

202 53 5 260 
Corporations the accounts of 
which were selected for test audit. 
d) No. of Companies/ 15 2 0 17 
Corporations the accounts of 
which were revised as a result of 
test check and consequently no 
comments were issued. 
e) No. of Companies/ 

53 5 2 60 
Corporations on the accounts of 
which supplementary audi t 
comments were issued. 
f) No. of Companies/ Corporations 

127 42 0 169 
on the accounts of which no 
supplementary comments were 
issued. 
g) No. of Companies/ 

7 4 3 14 
Corporations where audit of 
accounts was in progress (as of 15 
December 2004) 

II. Revision of Profit or Loss in Accounts: 

As a result of the test audit of the accounts of Government Companies and Deemed 
Government Companies by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 
619(4) of the Companies Act, 1956 and consequent revision of their accounts by some of 
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the Companies, the impact on profit/loss shown in the accounts for 2003-2004 was as 
follows: 

(Rupees in cro re) 
No. of Companies Net Effect 

Q Increase in Profit 2 12.57 -
ii) Decrease in Profit 8 115.57 
iii) Increase in Loss 5 31.54 

[Paragraph 1.1 (A)J 
ill. Nature of Comments 

The comments issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India on the accounts 
of the Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs) audited under Companies Act, 1956 were of the 
following nature: 

(i) On Balance Sheet 

Aggregate value of assets as on 31 March 2004 was overstated by Rs.222.43 crore in 
15 PSUs and understated by Rs.l 01.38 crore in two PSUs. Similarly liabilities were 
understated by Rs.l67 .60 crore in 12 PS Us and overstated by Rs.l 196.79 crore in five 
PSUs other than Navratna PSUs. 

[Paragraph 1.1-B (a)(i& ii)J 

(ii) On Profit or Loss 

(a) Had all the 22 PSUs whose accounts were test checked and were reflected in this 
report revised their accounts on the basis of comments made by CAG, aggregate profit for 
2003-04 would have decreased by Rs.118.05 crore in nine PSUs and would have increased 
by Rs.ll20.84 crore in four PSUs (excluding Navratna PSUs). Similarly, loss for 2003-04 
would have been increased by Rs.94.81 crore in eight PSUs. 

[Paragraph 1.1-B (a)(iii& iv)J 

(b) The accounts of all the nine 'Navratna' PSUs were test checked. As a result oftest 
check, aggregate value of assets as on 31 March 2004 was found over-stated by Rs.380.77 
crore in two PSUs and understated by Rs.39.55 crore in one PSU. Similarly, liabilities 
were understated by Rs.200.05 crore in four PSUs and overstated by Rs.l2.62 crore in one 
PSU. The comments of CAG on the PSUs brought out overstatement of profit by 
Rs.528.65 crore in five PSUs. The overall variance arising in the profit of five Navratna 
Companies as a result ofCAG's comments was ranged between 0.49 to 3.70 per cent. 

[Paragraph 1.1-B (b)(i) & (ii)j 

IV. Reports by Statutory Auditors 

Some of the salient points raised by the Statutory Auditors in pursuance of the 
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 619(3) 
(a) ofthe Companies Act, 1956 were of the following nature:-
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(i) Inadequacy and ineffectiveness in the system of financial control and accounts, 
non-reconciliation of books and deficiencies in the maintenance of asset registers 
were noticed. 

[Paragraph 2.1 & 2.2] 

(ii) Debts were outstanding for three years or more and there was increase in Sundry 
debtors and doubtful debts. 

[Paragraph 2.2] 

(iii) There were cases of non-payment of loan instalments, interest and penal interest by 
PSUs due on Government loans. 

[Paragraph 2.3] 

(iv) Excess inventory, surplus or obsolete stores and spares, non-fixation of maximum 
and minimum levels of stock holdings and non-fixation of economic order quantity 
were also noticed. 

[Paragraph 2.4 & Annexure-III] 

(v) Deficiencies in cost control system were also found. 
[Paragraph 2.5] 

(vi) Internal Audit system was not commensurate with the size and nature of business 
ofPSUs. 

[Paragraph 2.6] 

(vii) Segment-wise profit and loss statements were not prepared. 
[Paragraphs 2.1 and 2. 7] 
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CHAPTER! 

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA 
ON THE ACCOUNTS OF PSUs 

Under Section 619 of the Companies Act, 1956 the Statutory Auditor of a Government 
Company, appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG), conducts the 
audit of accounts of the Government Companies including Deemed Government Companies 
under Section 619-B of the Act. On the basis of supplementary audit, CAG issues 
comments upon or supplements the report of the Statutory Auditors. Statutes governing 
some Corporations also require their accounts to be audited by CAG and a report to be 
given to the Government. 

The details of Government Companies/Deemed Government Companies and Corporations 
of the Union Government whose accounts for 2003-04 were received and audited by CAG 
were as under: 

Government Deemed Corporations Total 
Companies Government 

Companies 
(i) No. of PSUs (List given in 

290 88 6 384 
Appendix I, II and III) 
(ii) No. of PSUs whose accounts 
for 2003-04 were received for 238 61 5 304 
audit upto 15 December 2004. 
(iii) No. of PSUs selected for 

202 53 5 260 
supplementary audit 

(iv) No. of PSUs whose accounts 
were under audit as of 15 

7 4 3 14 
December 2004 (see Appendix I, 
II and III) 

Note The status of audit of accounts of PSUs for 2003-04 (received upto .] 5 December 2004) has been 
indicated against each PSU in Appendix I , II and III. 

As a result of supplementary audit of accounts, 15 Government Companies and two 
Deemed Government Companies revised their accounts for 2003-04. Comments were 
issued on the accounts of 53 Government Companies and five Deemed Government 
Companies for 2003-04. Audit Reports on the accounts of two Statutory Corporations 
(Central Warehousing Corporation and Airports Authority of India) were also sent to the 
Government/Corporation. 
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1.1 (A) Revision of Accounts: 

As a result of supplementary audit and consequent corrections made in the accounts for the 
year ended 31 March 2004, the profit in respect of the following Companies increased (+) 
or dec~eased (-) as indicated below: 

Increase (+) or Decrease ~-) of Profit 
Name of the Company Rupees in 

crore 
l.Hindustan Aeronautics Limited (+)10.25 

2. Mumbai Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (+) 2.32 

Total Increase (+) (+) 12.57 

!.Central Coalfields Limited (-) 58.29 

2.Mahanadhi Coalfields Limited (-)41.67 

3.Northem Coalfields Limited H9.oo 

4.Dredging Corporation oflndia Limited (-) 3.37 
5. Western Coalfields Limited (-)1.34 

6. S'outh Eastern Coalfields Limited (-)1.19 

7. Central Mine Planning and Design Institute Limited (-) 0.70 
8 Vibank Housing Finance Limited (-) 0.01 

Total Decrease(-) 115.57 

In the following Companies, loss for the year increased (-)as given below: 
lncrease(-)Q(Loss 

Name of the Company Rupees in 
crore 

1. Bharat Coking Coal Limited (-)13.47 
2. ITI Limited (-)9.50 
3. MECON Limited (-)3.81 
4. Eastern Coalfields Limited (-)3.39 
5. National Textiles Corporation (WBAB&O) Limited (-)L37 

Totallncrease (-) · 31.54 
I 

Note: The Accounts .of PNB Asset Management Limited and Indian Railway Catering and J. 
Tourism Corporation Limited were also revised but there was no financial impact. . j 
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1.1 (B) Impact of Comments on Banannce Sheet and Profit & Loss Accoumt: 

(a) The comments issued by the Comptroller\nd Auditor General of India on the financial 
statements of various companies other than the\ 'Navratna Companies' in respect of which 
the position has been brought out separately in para 1.1 (B) (b), indicated that in 15 PSUs 
assets as on 31 March 2004 were overstated by Rs.222.43 crore and in two PSUs these were 
understated by Rs.lOL38 crore. Similarly liabilities were overstated by Rs.l196.79 crore in 
five PSUs and:understated by Rs.l67.60 crore in 12 PSUs. In nine PSUs net profit for 
2003-04 was overstated by Rs.118.05 crore and in four PSUs it was understated by 
Rs.l120.84 crore, Similarly, in eight PSUs net loss for 2003-04 was understated by 
Rs.94.81 crore. The following tables give a Company-wise. break up of the financial 
implication of comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India: 

(i) Assets overstated (-)/understated(+): 

Name of the Company Rlll!pees inn Cll"ore 
1. . Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (-)'71.75 
2. Bharat San char Nigam Limited (-) 65.48 
3. HMTLimited (-) 27.91 
4. Delhi Metro Rail Corporation Limited (-) 10.01 
5. Heavy Engineering Corporation Limited (-) 9.06 
6. PEC Limited (-) 7.81 
7. National Highways Authority of India _(-)7.24 
8. HMT Machine Tools Limited (-) 6.39 
9. National Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited (-,)5.25 
10. Bharat Earth Movers Limited (-) 3.44 
11. Cochin Refinery Limited (-) 2.74 
12. Bongaigaon Refinery Limited _H2:66 
13. Airports Authority of India (-) 1.83 
14. Inland Waterways Authority of!ndia H0.62 
15. Indian Iron Steel Compan_y Limited (-) 0.24 

Total overstatement(-)* (:1222.43 
1. Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (+) 100.79 
2. Bharat Refractories Limited (+) 0.59 

Total underst;te~-;~T(+)·-··-------------·--------- -·····-·--- c+fio1.38 ~ 

*Total assets overstated included Rs.43.99 crore relating to the accounts for the year 2002-03. 
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(ii) Liabilities understated (+)/overstated(-): 

. Name of the Company Rupees in crore 
1. Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (+)100.79 
2. Heavy Engineering Corporation Limited (+)32.57 
3 .· Airports Authority of India (+)14.23 
4. Air India Limited (+)6.50 
5. Konkan Railway Corporation Limited (+)4.86 
6; National Highways Authority oflndia (+)2.58 
7: Moradabad Toll Road Company Limited (+)1.32 
8. Indfund Management Limited (+)1.16 
9. HMT Machine Tools Limited (+)1.15 
10. Power Grid Corporation of India Limited (+) 1.09 
11. Agriculture Insurance Company of India Limited (+)0.92 
12. Bharat Refractories Limited (+)0.43 

Total Inabilities understated! (+)* 167.60 
1. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (-)1181.76 
2.; PEC Limited . (-)7.81 

3. MMTC Limited (-)3.05 
4. Bongaigaon Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (-)2.68 
5. Bharat Electronics Limited . (-)1.49 

Total liabilities overstated (-) 1196.79 

*Total liabilities understated included Rs19.28 crore relating to the accounts for tire year 2002-03. 

(iii) Profit overstated (-)/understated(+): 

Name of the Company (Rs. in crore) 
1. Powergrid Corporation of India Limited (-)72.84 
2.! Airports Authority of India (-)16.06 
3. National Highways Authority of India (-)9.82 
4. Air India Limited (-)6.50 
5. National Hydroelectric Corporation Limited (-)5.25 
6. Bharat Earth Movers Limited (-)3.44 
7. Cochin Refinery Limited (-)2.74 
8. Indfund Management Limited (-)1.16 
9. · Indian Iron Steel Company Limited (-) 0.24 

Total Profit overstated(-)* (-) 118.05 
L Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (+) 1116.28 
2; MMTC Limited . (+)3.05 
3; Bharat Electronics Limited (+)1.49 
4. Bongaigaon Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (+) 0.02 

Total Pmfit understated (+) (+) 1120.84 

*Total profit overstated included Rs.25.88 crore relating to accounts for the year 2002-03. 
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(fiv)LI!llss 1lllmllerstated (-)/l!llverstatei!ll (+): 

Ninme IOiftlhte Cmnnpanny (Rs. bu cmre) 
1. · Hea\Ty Engineering Corporation Limited (:1_41.63 
2. HMTLimited (-)27:91 
3. Delhi Metro Rail Corporation Limited · (-')10.01 
4. HMTMachine Tools (-)7.54 
5. Konkan Railway Corporation Limited (-)4.86 
6. . MoradbadToll Road Company Limited (-)1.32 
1 Agriculture.Insurance Company of India Limited (-)0.92 
8. Inland Waterways Authority of India :B_0.62 

. TillltaR lll!llss 1lllnn«llerstated H* (-}94.81 
1. . Bharat Refractories Limited 

.. 

(+) 0.16 
'fillltall lll!llss l!llveJrstated (+) - (+)0.11.6 

*7/'otalloss und~rstated included Rs.37.39 i:rore relating to the accounts for the year 2002-03. 

(b)Navmtl!lla Cmliupallllies~ 

(b) (i) Impact of comments issued by the· Comptroller & Auditor. General of India on the 
financial statements on 'Navratna' Public Sector Undertakings for the year 2003-2004 
indicated that Assets were over-stated by Rs.380.77 crore in two PSUs and understated by 
Rs.39.55 crore in one PSU. Similarly liabilities were understated b:y Rs.200.05- crore in four 
PSUs and overstated by Rs.l2.62 crore in one PSU. The following tables give company­
wise break-up of the. fimt!lcial implication of comments ~f the Comptroller & Auditor 
General of India. 

Assets l!llveirs11:a11:e«ll (-)/umdeirstateldl (+) 

Name illlftlhte Cl!llmpany Rs. fin crl!liJre 
1. Indian Oil Corporation Limited (-)369.06 
2. Steel Authority of India Limited (,-)11.71 

Tl!lltmR assets l!liVeJrstated H (..;) 380.77 
L Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (+)39.55 

Tl!lltaR assets 1llll!llderstmtei!ll _f_+} (+) 39,55 

LnalbmtJies 1!lll!llders11:mtei!ll {-)/l!llvell"stated (+) 

L Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited H96.86 
2. Steel Authority of India Limited (:}62.88 
3. GAIL (India) Limited _835.28 
4. Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited . ('-)5.03 

Tl!lltmll llnabmtnes umdeirstated (-) (-1200.05 

1. Indian Oil Corporation Limited .. (+)12.62 

Tl!lltmn llnabnllntnes l!llverstateldl (+) (+) 12.62 

5 
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. . 

.. (ii};In addition to the above, the impact of CAG's comments on the profit and loss of the 
·. 'Navratna' Public Sector Undertakings for the year 2003-04 is given as under: 

(Rs.ilrn crmre) 

Name of tlbte Compa1my Net Profit Over- Impact of 
(before tax)/ statemeHllt (+)/ comments as 
Loss H and! Under- a percentage 
prnor period statemeHllt H of profit/Ross 

' adi]Mstments of JP'mfit shown as per or 
as per Loss as aCCOUlllnits 

' arccmmts commented 

1. 2. 3. 4. 

1. • Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited 1027.50 (+)5.03 0.49 

2.' GAIL (India) Limited 2811.83 (+)35.28 1.25 

3.; Indian Oil Corporation Limited 9645.78 (+)356.44 3.70 

4.' Mahanagar Telephone Nigam 1685.95 (+) 57.31 3.40 
, Limited 

5.: Steel Authority oflndia Limited 2662.88 (+)74.59 2.80 

Tottan 17833.941 528.§5 

1.zi SanfteHllt Comments on Bafialince Sheet/Profit & Loss Statements 
! 

1.2.1 Air India Limited 

The Company had not provided for guarantee fee of Rs.6.43 crore payable to the 
. Government of India on account of guarantees given by the Government on foreign 
currency loans availed after 1989. 

Th~ Management stated that pending decision from the Ministry, disclosure under 
'contingent liabilities' was considered adequate instead·of creating clear liability. 

' 
The above contention of the Management is not tenable as there exists a clear liability in 
view of the communication received in December 2003 from the Ministry of Civil Aviation 
conveying the clarification of the Ministry of Finance that there would be no review of 
cases forwaiver of guarantee fee in the case of guarantees given on or after January 1989. 

1.2.2 Airports Authority of India 

1. ' The Surplus carried forward to balance sheet for the year 2002-03 was overstated and 
cu~ent liabilities and provision were understated by Rs23.55 crore due to: 

' 
(i) · Non-provision for other expenses payable to a private party in accordance with court 
judgment- Rs.26 lakh. 
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(ii) Non-provision towards clothing, arms and ammunition charges payable to Central 
Industrial Security Force (CISF)- Rs.57 lakh. 

(iii) Short provision of dividend payable to Government of India and consequent 
understatement oftax on dividend- Rs.21.57 crore. 

(iv) Short provision towards gratuity and leave encashment- Rs.l.l5 crore. 

2. Fixed assets as well as depreciation were understated by Rs.l.77 crore and Rs.21 lakh · 
respectively due to: 

(i) Non-capitalisation of residential building freehold property by Rs.94 lakh resulting in 
understatement of depreciation by Rs.4 lakh. 

(ii) Short capitalisation of expenditure by Rs.83 lakh incurred on installation of other office 
appliances resulting in understatement of depreciation by Rs.l7 lakh. 

3. Fixed assets (nmways, taxiways, aprons, roads, bridges and culverts) were overstated by 
Rs.2.95 crore due to inclusion of works, which were in progress. Consequently, depreciation 
was overstated by Rs.36 lakh. 

4. Surplus carried forward to Balance Sheet and sundry debtors were overstated by Rs.l.98 
crore due to: ¥ 

(i) Non-provision of doubtful debts as per Accounting Policy of the Authority- Rs.97 lakh. 

(ii) Incorrect reduction of Rs.l.Ol crore from prior period income consequent upon receipt 
of arbitration award instead of withdrawing the same from the existing provision for 
doubtful debts. 

5. Pay and a!Uowances and HabiHties were overstated by Rs.9.32 crore due to 
overestimation of arrears of increments payable to staff. 

6. Accounting PoHcy No. 6 of the Authority was deficient in as much as it allows charging 
off full value of purchases of stores and spares issued during the. year· irrespective. of actual 
consumption. Stores and spares valuing Rs.49.18 crore already charged to Profit and Loss 
Account were lying unconsumed as on 31 March 2003. 

7. The reply to Audit Report was not furnished by the Authority. 

1.23 MMTC Limited 

Provisions were overstated and profit was understated by Rs.3.05 crore due. to provision of . 
Rs.10.45 crore towards leave encashment as against Rs.7.40 crore as per the actuarial 
valuation. 

The Management stated that the excess provision would be adjusted during the year 2004-
05. 

7 
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1.2.4 PEC Limited 

1. Current assets and current liabilities were overstated by Rs. 7.81 crore due to incorrect 
inclusion of goods-in-transit (i.e. cost of imported goods, insurance and freight) under 
current assets, for which the certificate of quantity was issued on 5 April 2004 and 
documents were also negotiated after 31 March 2004. 

The Management stated that the actual shipment was made in March 2004. The shipping 
documents viz. bills of landing, certificate of origin and commercial invoice were of 31 
March 2004. The purchases and stock had been booked in the year as per the past practice. 

The above contention of the Management is not tenable because certificate of quantity was 
issued on 5 April 2004 i.e. after March 2004 without which the seller could not negotiate 
with the bank. 

2. Sales and purchases amounting to Rs.19. 76 crore and Rs.l9 .66 crore respectively 
effected during the year 2002-2003 were inadvertently booked as sales and purchases for 
the year 2003-2004. Consequently, the profit for the year had been overstated by Rs.9.64 
lakh. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

INISTRY OF COMMUNICATION 

1.2.5 Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL) 

I. Gross block of fixed assets was understated by Rs.242.06 crore due to non/short 
capitalisation of assets, which were commissioned and put to use during the current year or 
earlier and non/incorrect accountal of assets pertaining to the Department of 
Telecommunications (DoT) period in 28 units of the Company. This resulted in 
overstatement of capital work-in-progress, inventories, intra/inter circle remittance, 
employees' remuneration and benefits, administrative, operating and other expenses, current 
assets, profit for the year and reserves and surplus by Rs.l64.65 crore, Rs.8.87 crore, 
Rs.53.58 crore, Rs.l.18 crore, Rs.3 lakh, Rs.l.ll crore, Rs.20.25 crore and Rs.14.58 crore 
respectively with consequent understatement of depreciation, net block of fixed assets, 
current liabilities, prior period adjustments and other income by Rs.21.53 crore, Rs.216.11 
crore, Rs.2.48 crore, Rs.4.86 crore and Rs.seven lakh respectively. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

2. Gross block of fixed assets was overstated by Rs.96.51 crore due to excess/incorrect 
capitalisation of capital work-in-progress and revenue expenditure, incorrect booking of 
overhead charges and non-removal of decommissioned assets from fixed assets in 17 units 
of the Company. This resulted in overstatement of net block of fixed assets, depreciation, 
current liabilities and reserves and surplus by Rs.68.20 crore, Rs.l7.88 crore, Rs.72 lakh 
and Rs.4.59 crore respectively with consequent understatement of provisions, inventories, 
decommissioned assets, capital work-in-progress, loans and advances, intra/inter circle 
remittance, administrative, operating and other expenses, prior period adjustments and profit 
for the year by Rs.93 lakh, Rs.l.52 crore, Rs.l5.54 crore, Rs.43.21 crore, Rs.2.02 crore, 
Rs.1.53 crore, Rs.8.79 crore, Rs.3.7l crore, and Rs.9.09 crore respectively. 
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The Management accepted the comme.nt. 

3. Net block of fixed assets was understated byRs.l4.93 crore due to incorrect charging of 
depreciation in nine units ofthe Company, which also resulted in understatement of profit 

. for the year by Rs.l4.79 crore and reserves and surplus by Rs.l4.93 crore with 
·overstatement ofdepr~ciation by Rs.14.79 crore and prior period adjustments by Rs.l4lakh. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

4. Net block' of fixed assets was overstated by Rs~37.47 crore due to short/incorrect 
charging ofdepreciation on 'fixed. assets/decommissioned assets in 18 units of the Company. 
Consequently, .administrative, operating and other expenses, decommissioned assets and 
depreciation were understated by Rs.l9 lakh, Rs.29.50 crore and Rs:l2.94 crore, 
respectively, with overstatementofprofit for theyear, prior period adjustments and reserve 
and surplus by Rs.l3.13 crore, Rs.IO lakh and Rs.7.97 crore respectively. · 

· The Management accepted the comment. 

5. Capital work-in-progress was understated by Rs.ll.OO crore on account of non/short 
accourital of overhead charges and capital work-in-progress in nve units of the Company, 
which also resulted in understatement of current liabilities by Rs.3.94 crore and profit for 
the year as wen as reserves and surplus by Rs~ 1.14 crore; each with consequent 
overstatement of inventories by Rs.17 lakh, administrative, operating and other expenses by 

· Rs. 1.14 crore and intra/inter circle remittance by Rs.5.75 crore. 

The Management accepted the comment.. 

6. Capital work-in-progress was overstated by Rs.335.41 crore due to incorrect 
capitalisation of inventories, non-capitalisation of completed works, incorrect accounting of 
maintenance expenses, etc. in 12 units of the Company, which also resulted in 
understatement· of inventories by Rs.2.57 crore, gross block of fixed assets by Rs.321.72 
crore, net block of fixed. assets by Rs.274;66 crore, depreciation by Rs.24.36 crore, loans 
and advances by Rs.4.13 crore, administrative, operating and other expenses by Rs.3.87 
crore, provisions by Rs.3.04 crore, intra/inter circle remittance by Rs.3.00 croreand prior 
period adjustments by Rs ·25.02 crore. Consequently, current liabilities, profit for the year 
and reserves and surplus were overstated by Rs.84 lakh, Rs.28.23 crore arid Rs.53.25 crore 
respectively. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

7. Inventories were understated by Rs.44.79 crore on account of incorrect accountal of 
inventories consumed in capital work-in-progress, obsolete inventories of DoT. period not 
taken to stock and short provision of liabilities in 12 units of the Company, which also 
resulted in understatement of current liabilities by Rs.35 lakh, provisions by Rs.22.81 crore, 
administrative~ operating and other expenses by Rs~ 1.69 crore and other income by 
Rs.l5 lakh with cons~:;quent overstatement of capital work-in-progress by Rs 4.98 crore, 
intra/inter circle remittance by Rs.l3.32 crore, net block of fixed assets byRs.1.27 crore, 
depreciation by Rs.3 lakh as well as understatement of profit for the year by Rs.l.87 crore 
and reserve and surplus by Rs.2.06 crore. 

The Management accepted the comment. 
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8. Inventories' were overstated by Rs.45.72 crore on account of non-capitalization· of 
·. Wireless-in-Local Loop handsets and cables, wrong inclusion of decommissioned assets,· 

non-abcountal of loss of obsolete stores and misclassification of inventories in six units I of 
the Company~ This also resulted in understatement of capital work-in-progress. by 
Rs.1222 crore, decommissioned assets by Rs. 5.79 crore, net block of fixed assets by 
Rs.13 .36 crore, prior period adjustments by Rs.49 lakh, Loans and advances by Rs. 18 lakh, 
depreciation by Rs.l.l6 crore and administrative, operating and other expenses byRs.l0.76 
crore .with consequent overstatement of current liabilities by Rs.l.76 crore, profit for the 
year by Rs.11.92 crore and reserve and surplus by Rs.12.41 crore. · 

The Management accepted the comment. 
' ' 

9. Sundry debtors were overstated by Rs.39.27 crore due to non-provision for disputed 
debtors, double booking of income, excess accountal of income from post-paid cellular 
conne~tions, wr~:mg accountal of the Subscriber Trunk Dialing (STD)/Public Call Offices 
(PCO) commis~ion, etc. in 11 units of the Company, which resulted in overstatement of 
income by Rs.ll.52 crore, current liabilities by Rs.6.23 crore and profit for the year as well 
as res~rves and surplus by Rs.31.84 crore, each with consequent understatement of cash and 
bank balance by Rs.25 lakh, decommissioned assets by Rs.45 lakh, loans and advances by 

. Rs.SO,lakh and administrative, operatingand other expenses by Rs.20.32 crore. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

10. Current liabilities were understated by Rs.67 .98 crore on account of non-provision of 
liabilities for capital and revenue expenditure in 23 units ofthe Company. This also resulted 

. in understatement of capital work-in-progress by Rs.14.15 crore, administrative, operating 
and other expenses by Rs.36.41 crore, inventories by Rs.3.35 crore, financial expenses by 
Rs.3.37 crore, employees' remuneration and benefits by Rs15 lakh; loans and advances by 
Rs.7.13 crore, prior period adjustments by Rs.l.59 cr.ore and net block affixed assets by 
Rs SI: lakh with consequent overstatementof income by Rs.72 lakh profit, for the year by 
Rs.40l65 crore and reserve and surplus by Rs.42.24 crore. 

·. Th~ Management accepted the comment. 

11. Provisions were understated by Rs.15 ;09 crore on account of non-provision of obsolete 
and rion-:moving inventories in nine units of the Company. This also resulted in 
understatement of administrative, operating and other expenses by Rs.l5;09 crore with 
consequent overstatement ofprofit for the year and reserves and surplus by Rso15.09 crore. 

The l\1anagemeht accepted the comment. 

12.. Ihcome from services was overstated by Rs.32.21 crore due to excess/incorrect. 
accountal of income, income received in advance and double deduction of service tax from 
liabilities in 14 units of the Company. This also resulted in understatement of current 
li~bilities, administrative, operating and other expenses, other income and income received 
in advance by Rs.6.61crore; Rs.l.ll crore, Rs.90 lakh and Rs.29 lakh respectively, besides 
overstatement of sundry debtors by Rs.11.24 crore, prior period adjustments by Rs.4.28 
crore, :profit for the year by Rs 32.42 crore and reserves and surplus by Rs 28.14 crore .. 

The Management accepted the comment. 
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13, Income from services was understated by Rs.48.05 crore due to non/short accountal of 
income and surcharges and wrong accountal of discount in 13 units of the Company, which 
also resulted in understatement ·of administrative, operating and other expenses by Rs.22.39 
crore, sundry debtors by Rs.25.68 crore, current liabilities by Rs.4.37 crore, loans and 
advances by Rs.4.15 crore, prior period adjustm~nts by Rs.l2 la:kh with consequent 
overstatement of provisions by Rs. eight lakh, besides understatement of profit for the year 
by Rs.25.66 crore and reserves and surplus by Rs.25.54 cron~. 

The Management accepted the commerit. 

14. Other incorrie was understated byRs.10.64 crore due to wrong adjustment of liquidated 
damages from the capital cost of works, non accountal of interest· charges due from private 
operators for delayed payment and short accountal . of other income in four units of the 
Company. This also resulted in understatement of capital work-in-progress by Rs 8.70 
crQre, loans and advances by Rs.I.12 crore and profit for the year as well as reserves and 
surplus by Rs.l 0.64 crore, each with overstatement of current liabilities by Rs. 82 lakh~ 

The Management accepted the comment. 

15. Inter connection usage charges included Rs.450.23 crore (refer item 11.2 ofthe notes 
to Accounts) against the total amount ofRs. 486.25 crore claimed by the Delhi and Mumbai 
units of MTNL towards interconnection usage charges (IUC) which resulted in 
understatement of current liabilities and administrative, operating and other expenses by 
Rs.36.02 crore each and overstatement of profit for the year as well as reserves and surplus 
by Rs. 36.02 crore each. 

The Management accepted the comment 

16. Current tax was worked out after calculating normal income tax lia:bility instead of 
working out the same under Section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as the Company 
was eligible for income tax exemption under Section 80-IA of this Act. The income tax 
liability of the Company under Section 115 JB of this Act worked out to Rs.735.43 crore. 
This resulted in overstatement of tax expenses by Rs.1309.77 crore with consequent 
understatement of profit after taxation as weH reserves and surplus by Rs.l309.77 crore 
_each. 

The Managementaccepted the comment. 

17 Current tax was understated by Rs. 7.81 crore due to non-provision towards interest 
. . h 

liability under Section 234 C of the Income Tax Act, 1961 owing to the};:ompany's failure 
to deposit the requisite amount of advance tax on the due dates in the months of June, 
September and December 2003. Consequently, provisions were understated and profit after 

· tax as well as reserves and surplus were overstated by Rs. 7.81 crore, each. 

The Management has accepted the comment. 

1.2.6 Mahamxgar 1'elepho111e Nigam Limited (M1'NL) 

(1) (a) Non provision of one time permission charges of Rs.24.76 crore payable to the 
Municipal Corporation of Delhi (MCD) ·for installation of Base Terminal Stations (BTS) 
and (b) non/short capitalisation of subscribers' installations, apparatus & plant (A&P), 
cables, duct and computer system commissioned during 2003-04 or earlier in Delhi, 
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Mumbai and Mobile Services units resulted in understatement of gross block of fixed assets, 
net block of fixed assets, depreciation and current liabilities by Rs.24.76 crore, Rs.21.96 
crore, Rs.2. 80 crore (including prior period depreciation of Rs.1.46 crore) and Rs.4.4 7 
crore, respectively. Consequently, capital works-in-progress (WIP), profit for the year and 
resen'es & surplus had been overstated by Rs.20.29 crore, Rs.l.34 crore and Rs.2.80 crore 
respectively. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

· (2). · Incorrect inclusion of maintenance works under fixed assets and capital WIP in Delhi 
unit and charging of overheads on the cost of equipment for turnkey projects by Mobile 
Services ·units had resulted in overstatement of gross block of fixed assets, net block of 
fixed· assets, capital WIP, depreciation and profit for the year by Rs.8.49 crore, Rs.8.47 
crore, Rs.1.11 crore, Rs.2 lakh and Rs.9.58 crore respectively. Consequently, employees 
remuneration & benefits and administrative, operating & other expenses were understated 
by Rs.9.19 crore and Rs.4llakh respectively. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

(3) Delay in capitalisation of subscribers' installations, telephone exchanges, exchange· 
equipment and cables in Delhi unit, resulted in understatement of depreciation by Rs.5.28 
crore: (including prior period depreciation of Rs 3.60 crore) and capital work-in-progress by 
Rs.79 lakh. Consequently, gross block and net block of fixed assets were overstated by Rs 
79.30 lakh and Rs.6.07 crore respectively, whereas profit for the year and reserves & 
surplus were also overstated by Rs 16.80 lakh and Rs.5.28 crore respectively. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

( 4) The provisions for doubtful debts and incorrect billing included a provision of 
Rs.52.74 crore made during the current year or earlier period towards those doubtful debts 
relating to the Delhi unit which were fully secured against the security deposit already 
obtained from the concerned subscribers. Thus, considering the secured debtors as doubtful 
was not only in violation of the provisions of Schedule-VI to the Companies Act; 1956 but 

. also resulted in overstatement of provisions for doubtful debts, administrative, operating & . 
other expenses and prior period expenditure by Rs.52.74 crore, Rs.29.06 crore and Rs.23.68 
crore respectiveiy. Consequently, profit for the year was under~tated by Rs.29.06 crore and 

_reserves& surplus as well as sundry debtors were understated by Rs.52.74 crore, each. 

The Management stated that this would be reviewed during the year 2004-05. 

(5) Non-provision of liability amounting to Rs.92.39 crore pertaining to the period 
2001-02 to 2003-04 on account of leased circuits revenue payable to BSNL in compliance 
of the decision taken in the meeting held on 27 May 2004 (which was well before approval 
of accounts by Board of Directors in June 2004) among DoT, MTNL and BSNL, resulted in 
unde~statement of current liabilities and expenditure by Rs.92.39 crore each with 
consequent overstatement of profit for the year by Rs.92.39 crore. 

The Management stated that consequent on the meeting held in DciT and the minutes issued 
thereof, further reconciliation with BSNL was in progress and impact, if any, would be 
accm,mted for in the year 2004-05. · 
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The reply was not acceptable as the total billing of the leased circuit revenue in question had 
been done by MTNL and the amount payable to BSNL, as per the decision taken in the 
above meeting, was very well known to MTNL. Accordingly, provision for the known· 
liability should have been made. · 

(6) The provision for liability amounting to. Rs.l6.63 crore towards cash payment to be 
made to the employees in lieu of their entitlement of uniform for the years 2001 and 2002 · 
had been incorrectly accounted for as prior period expenditure instead of current year 
expenditure as this provision was made on account of policy . decision taken by the 
Management in ApriL 2004. Incorrect accountal of the same had resulted in violation of 
mandatory requirements of AS-5. Employees' remuneration and benefit had been 
understated and Prior period expenditure as well as Profit for the year had been overstated 
by Rs.l6.63 crore, each. 

The Management accepted the comment 

--- -·--------,,--,.,.,-,-.,--·,......,.,-----,--,-.-,---:-:"1 Mxmstax: __ '//OF· .···::~oN'suM:tk::(>AI?FAIRs~ : Foen : ANn.. :>PUBLit;l 
lDISTRIBittJJ:o~ 

L2. 7 Food Cmr;pmratimn of lUTJdia. 

(A) . Accounts of Food Corporation of India (FCI) for the year 2001-02 were audited by 
CAG, as sole auditor under Section 34 of the Food Corporations Act, 1964 as amended in· 
June 2000. The Audit Report thereon was issued to the Government oflndia on 6 July 2004. 

· 1. Some important observations made in the Report were as under: 

Claims Receivable were overstated by Rs.26.14 crore due to inclusion of the following: 

(i) Irrecoverable/ doubtful claims of railways ofRs.23.85 crore, and 

(ii) Transit shortages of Rs.2.29 crore recoverable from Handling and Transport contractors 
remained unrealised for more than three years at District office, New Port Depot and Port 
Depot in West Bengal region. 

The Management in respect of comment (i) stated that regions had been advised to review 
all these claims and make necessary adjustments in the books of account. In respect of 
comment (ii) the management stated that matter was being pursued for settlement of the 
dues of the Corporation. 

2. The Corporation excluded carry-over charges paid to the State Agencies from the value 
of closing stocks. Consequently, claim for food subsidy was increased by Rs.282.97 crore 
during 2001-02. The change in methodology of valuation of closing stocks alongwith its 
impact on subsidy was not disclosed. · 

The Management replied that the change in the methodology of the va~uation of closing 
stocks alongwith its impact on subsidy would be disclosed in. the accounts of 2001-02 by. 
way of addendum to the notes to the accounts with the approval of the Board of Directors. 

3. Non-provision towards debts, deposits, advances and claims recoverable from Centrall 
State Governments and other parties and considered doubtful ofrecovery-Rs.37.11 crore 
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The Management replied that any provision for bad and doubtful debts was not allowed as 
an item of expenditure under Income Tax Act, 1961 until and unless it was written off as 
irrecoverable. 

The above contention of the Management is not tenable since accounts prepared were to be 
as per the approved format of accounts and accepted accounting principles. Thus, provision 
for doubtful debts, deposits and advances should have been made in the accounts. 

(B) Weakness in System of Internal Control and Book Keeping: 

1. Int~rnal audit system was not adequate and commensurate with the size arid nature of 
the business of the Corporation. 

2. Th~ independence of internal audit stands eroded by a Board decision (December 1999) 
according to which the internal audit team will report to the concerned field managers 
instead, of the Executive Director (IA)/ Managing Director. 

3. F·ixed asset registers did not exhibit quantitative details and situation/location in various 
districts of West Bengal and Jharkhand regions under East Zone, in certain Districts units in 
Assam region and North East Zone and district/ regional units of Punjab, Haryana, 
Himachal Pradesh and J &K. 

4. The bank reconciliation statement included discrepant items namely missing debits, 
excess debits, missing credits and excess credits relating to the period from 1987-88. 

The Management stated that the delay in settlement of discrepant items was mainly due to 
delayed response/ reaction from the bank. The reply of the management is not tenable as 
proper: follow up action and timely clearance of these items was necessary by the 
management. 

6. Deficiencies in Internal Control System. 

Internal control system, inter-alia, needed to be strengthened in the following areas:-

(i) Reconciliation of transit/ storage losses as per the records of operating divisions with 
that of Accounts Division. 

(ii) Regularisation of storage and transit losses and fixation of responsibility. 

(iii)Recovery of advances from the employees of the Corporation including interest on 
house building advance, obtaining mortgage-deed against house building advance. 

(iv)Preparation of schedules and statement as per the requirements of Accounts Manual of 
the FCI; and · 

(v) Implementation of district accounting system computerizations package. 

The Management replied that suggestion of audit had been noted for further strengthening 
ofthe system. 
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Provision for doubtful debts included Rs.1.49 crore being 15 per cent value of one upgraded 
flycatcher radar billed in February 1998 and claim disallowed by the customer as the 
equipment was retained by the Cmppany as a reference unit. The equipment was 
subsequently despatched in August 2003 and acknowledged by the customer in September 
2003. The retention of provision was, thus, not in order and had resulted in overstatement of 
provisions and understatement of sundry debtors and profit by Rs: 1.49 crore. 

The Management stated . that the provision was continued pending receipt of required 
amendment to the indent for realisation of the dues and will be withdrawn on realisation of 
the amount. 

The reply is not acceptable as the equipment was supplied by the customer during 2003-04 
and there existed no uncertainty in realisation of the debt. 

1.2.9 Blkarat Eartlk Movers Limited 

1. Inventories included raw materials and components valued at Rs.7.49 ·crore not moved 
for more than five years against which the Company had made a provision of Rs.4.05 crore. 
As this inventory could neither be used for the purpose for which it was procured nor for 
any alternate use for the last five years, its usability/realisablity was uncertain. Thus, full 
provision should have been made for obsolescence. Non-provision on this account ·had 
resulted in overstatement of inventories and profit by Rs.3.44 crore. 

The Management stated that adequate provision for obsolescence had been made as per the 
norms approved by the Board. Further, mere non-movement over a period of time could not 
be the basis for 100 per cent provision of obsolescence as certain level of· insurance 
inventory is required to be maintained considering the lead time . involved in the 
procurement of materials. However, necessary provisions had been made wherever the 
usability/realisability was in doubt. · 

The reply is not acceptable, as the inventories pertaining to non-current models had. no 
alternative use once the model was discontinued in production. The inventories not moved 
for more than five years required 100 per cent provision. 

2. Sales included Rs.7.44 crore being the sale value of 14 Hydraulic Excavators 
despatched to a customer vide bill of lading dated 31 March 2004 against a contract for 
supply,~ erection, commissioning at site and training. As the stipulated contract terms 
regarding erection, commissioning etc., were not completed as of 31 March 2004, this 
should not have been treated as sales. This had resulted in overstatement of sales by Rs.7.44 
crore, profit by Rs.95 lakh and understatement of inventory by Rs.6.49 crore. 

The Management stated that the risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the 
buyer on 31 March 2004 itself, and the delivery of the equipment had also been completed 

/· 
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as on 31 March 2004. Hence, the recognition of revenue was in conformity with AS-9 and 
was in order. Further, payment had also been received in April 2004. 

The reply is not acceptable as it was the responsibility of the Company to deliver the 
equipment at site and install the equipment. The item was loaded on the ship only on 31 
March 2004 and none of the conditions stipulated in the contract regarding commissioning, 
erection, etc., were completed as on 31 March 2004. Thus, the contract was incomplete and 
sales should not have been recognised. 

STRY OF FINANC 

(Insurance Division) 

1.2.10 Agriculture Insurance Company Limited 

I . Sundry creditors did not include Rs.92.08 lakh being the interest earned (January 2004 
to March 2004) on the corpus fund created with contributions from the Government of India 
and the State Governments in order to meet catastrophic losses. Interest earned on corpus 
fund had been credited to revenue account instead of the corpus fund. This had resulted in 
overstatement of income and understatement of current liabilities and loss by 92.08 lakh. 

The Management noted for necessary adjustments in the next financial year. 

2. The Company had received 'on account' payments from the Government towards 
implementation of the National Agriculture Insurance Scheme. The interest earned on 
unspent balance had neither been credited to the Government account nor the accounting 
policy in this regard had been framed. 

The Management noted the comment. 

3. Claims incurred (Net) included liability for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) in 
respect of annual commercial/horticulture crops. As per terms and conditions of the 
National Agriculture Insurance Scheme, the implementing agency i.e. the Company was to 
bear claims upto 150 per cent of the premium in the first three years and 200 per cent of the 
premium thereafter. The Company after the expiry of the period of three years provided 
liability upto the limit of 150 per cent of the premium as against the envisaged limit of 200 
per cent. The Company had approached the Government for extension of three years' period 
but pending decision of the Government it had neither provided for the liability of Rs.50.34 
crore on account of IBNR claims nor disclosed it. 

The Management replied that pending final decision of the Government for the extension of 
three years limit, the provision at 150 per cent of the premium was considered adequate. 
The reply is not tenable because pending receipt of the decision the provision should have 
been made as per the existing terms and conditions of the scheme. 

EPARTMENT OF HANKIN 
1.2.11 Jndfund Management Limited 

Interest from banks included Rs.l.l6 crore representing the interest earned from recoveries 
of Rs.20. 11 crore on account of non-performing assets (NPAs), which were invested under 
short-term deposits. The amounts recovered from NPAs were accounted under current 
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·liabilities (Schedule-G), pending receipt of clearance from Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (SEBI). Accordingly, the interest earned should have also been accounted for under 
current liabilities instead of accounting as income for the year. Consequently profit for the 
year stands overstated by Rs.l.16 crore with corresponding understatement of current 
liabilities. 

The Management stated that the amount should naturally be available to the Company after 
clearance from SEBI in due course. The fact remained that pending approval from SEBI 
accountai of interest as Company's income is not proper, which resulted in overstatement of 
profit for the year by Rs.l.16 crore. 

[Nf~Y~"p}f~liEXw·;oousTi¥I~fii'ooJEiiS.ijNi~Jif~sESl . 
1,2.12 B/JuJlll"at Heavy Electricals Limited 

Profit was overstated by Rs.5.03 crore due to non-provision of: 

(i) The liquidated damages withheld by a customer owing to. delay in electrostatic 
precipitators package ofVindhyachal (Stage II) power project-Rs.2.41 crore. 

(ii) The cost for replacement of damaged 'exhaust gas system' to be incurred by the 
Company in respect ofBaiji project, Iraq- Rs.1.50 crore. 

(iii)The amount payable to a customer due to shortfall in guaranteed heat rate in respect of 
turbo generator package of Unit 7 ofVindhyachal Project- Rs.1.12 crore. 

11te Management noted the comment (i) and (iii). As regards comment (ii) it was stated thl;lt 
the provision of Rs.l7 .65 cr6re retained as warranty obligation for this project would be 
adequate to meet the cost of replacement. The reply is not tenable since specific provision 
should have been made for damaged 'exhaust gas system' 

The Company· recognised revenue at 100 per cent instead of 97.5 per cent of realisable 
value in respect of ongoing export contracts, which was not in accordance with its 
accounting policy. Resultantly, turnover as well as the profit was booked in excess by 2.5 
per cent of the realisable value in respect of ongoing export contracts. The Management 
assured to review the policy. 

1,2.13 Heavy EIJ1JgilJ1Jeell"ilJ1Jg Coll"porati(m JLimited 

The loss of the Corporation would increase from Rs.l32.68 crore to Rs.635.44 crore if 
qualifications made in paragraph 3 of the Auditors' Report were considered. The loss would 
further increase by Rs.4L63 crore in view ofthe'following: 

1. Non-provision of penal interest/damages on defaulted contributory provident 
fund/employees provident fund dues from October-1999 to March 2004 Rs 32.57 crore 

The Management stated that interest had been provided at normal rate of 12 per cent. The 
company being a BIFR referred sick company, waiver of damage/penal interest had been 
sought for in the proposed revival plan. As such damage assessed upto September 1999 by 
Provident Fund Authority had been appealed before the appellate tribunal and shown under 
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contingent liability. In the absence of assessment for damages by Provident Fund Authority 
after September 1999, no provision had been made in the accounts. 

The Management's reply is not acceptable in view of the fact that BIFR had not approved 
the proposed revival plan; instead notice for winding up of the Company had been issued in 
July 2004. Hence, waiver of damages had not been granted so far. The regional Provident 
Fund Commissioner had already served notice of demand of Rs.95.02 crore under section 
14-B . of EPF & Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 towards damages assessed upto 
September 1999. 

I 

2. Inventories were overstated by Rs.9.06 crore due to valuing the same at sale price 
instead of at scrap rate. 

The Management stated that the inventory was good and the value was realisable from the 
probable alternative customer who had been identified for sale. Considering marketability 
of the goods, it would not be prudent to value it at scrap rate from the propriety point of 
view. 

The Management's reply is not acceptable in view of the fact that the inventories were lying 
' in cm:npany's premises for more than three years. The Company had identified Neelanchal 

!spat Nigam Limited as a probable customer whose proposal was more than two years old 
and did not contain any specific commitment to purchase the equipment. 

1.2.14 HMT Limited 

1. The Company recognised Rs.12.50 crore being deferred tax asset during 2001-02 
considering positive evidence of realising the capital gain on projected sale of land and 
building in the year 2002-03. As the sale of land and building had not materialised, carry 
forward. of deferred tax asset with no positive evidence of realising the capital gain was. in 
deviation of Accounting Standard (AS)-22. This resulted in overstatement of deferred tax 
assets and understatement of loss by Rs.12.50 crore. 

The Management stated that ·as at the end of 31 March 2003, sale of corporate office 
building was active and the Company was confident of realising the revenue during 2003-
04. 

Reply of the Management is not acceptable, as sale had not materialised even during 2003-
04 and the Company had taken decision to lease out some floors of the building. 

2. Other income was overstated and loss was understated by Rs.15 .41 crore due to 
accountal of profit on sale of land and building allocated to Company's subsidiaries under 
the 'Scheme of Arrangement'. 

The Management stated that in order to facilitate sale of assets of subsidiaries, the Company . 
had undertaken the responsibility for sale on behalf of the subsidiaries. Equivalent price of 
sale proceeds was made available to subsidiary. 

Reply is not acceptable as profit on sale of assets was also to be transferred to subsidiary as 
per 'Scheme of Arrangement'. 
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1.2.15 HMT Machine Tools Limited 

I. Inventories were overstated and loss understated by Rs.2.65 crore due to non-provision 
towards value of raw materials and components and work in progress not moved for more 
than five years. 

Though the Management had issued guidelines for provisioning towards non-moving 
inventory for more than five years all the divisions of the Company were not following the 
same. 

2. Sundry debtors included Rs.l.83 crore being liquidated damages recovered by 
customers on machines supplied during August 1999 to February 2003. Non-provision for 
the above resulted in overstatement of sundry debtors and understatement of loss by Rs.l.83 
crore. 

The Management stated that it was confident of recovering the debts and hence no provision 
had been considered necessary. 

The contention of the Management is not tenable as the customer recovered the liquidated 
damages, the realisation of which was not certain. 

3. Loans and advances included Rs.l. 91 crore being unsecured advances to suppliers I 
others and disallowances outstanding for more than three years. As these old advances were 
unsecured and unconfirmed, provision should have been made in this regard. Non-provision 
on this account resulted in overstatement of loans and advances and understatement of loss 
by Rs.l.91 crore. 

The Management stated that unreconciled credit balances in sundry creditors accounts and 
current liabilities outstanding for more than three years will be reviewed during 2003-04 
and necessary adjustments will be carried out. 

4. Loss as well as current liabilities were understated by Rs.l.l5 crore due to non­
provision of: 

(i) the minimum interest payable for delay in remittance of provident fund and pension 
dues to the appropriate authorities- Rs.86.49 lakh; 

(ii) the interest payable for delay in remittance of income tax recoveries deducted from the 
salaries of employees-Rs.28.98 lakh. 

The Management stated that no demand had been received from the appropriate authorities. 
Hence provision had not been made in the accounts. 

The above contention of the Management is not tenable as these were statutory dues and 
hence necessary provision should have been made. 

INISTRY OF PETROLEUM & NATURAL GA~ 
1.2.16 Bongaigaon Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited 

The intangible assets were overstated by Rs.2.68 crore due to non-adjustment of 
unviable/non-implemented portion of technical know-how fee by Rs.2.37 crore and 
available technology by Rs.29.59 lakh for the period prior to 1 April 2003 from Revenue 
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Reserve as required under provisions of AS-26, besides, under amortisation of available 
technology by Rs.l.47 lakh during the year. 

This resulted in overstatement of general reserve by Rs.2.66 crore as well as overstatement 
of profit for the year by Rs.l.4 7 lakh. 

The Management stated that the agreement with the supplier for supply of various 
technologies was for a Jump sum fee of US $ 850000 (Rs.358.59 lakh). No break-up was 
spelt out in the agreement against these technologies. 

The Management reply is not acceptable as the technology supplier had clearly indicated the 
break-up of cost for individual technology in their offer dated 26 August 1994. 

1.2.17 GAIL (India) Limited 

Profit was overstated and current liabilities were understated by Rs.35 .28 crore due to non­
provision of interest on Rs.94.63 crore retained by the Company from gas pool money 
towards settlement of its claim for higher price of gas paid to Joint ventures (N) without 
approval of the Government of India. 

The Management stated that Ministry had intimated (July 1997) that GAIL would not be put 
to any loss on account of compensation towards higher price. Accordingly, gas pool money 
was transferred to a separate bank account after retaining Rs.94.63 crore which was being 
communicated to the Ministry regularly. 

The above contention of the Management is not acceptable because retention of Rs.94.63 
crore from gas pool money was subject to Cabinet approval. However, no approval for 
adjustment of the above cited amount had been given by the Cabinet till date. Hence the 
Company should have provided for interest liability for unauthorised retention. 

1.2.18 Indian Oil Corporation Limited 

1. Profit was overstated by Rs.3 .11 crore due to non-prov1s1on of depreciation 
/amortisation in respect of plant and machinery, which had been condemned. 

The Management stated that the possibility of further utilising the S02 Compressor for LPG 
Recovery in Delayed Coker Unit had been explored and the assets have been carried 
forward in the books at their written down value. 

The reply of the Management is not tenable, as the equipment under reference had already 
outlived its life. Hence as per AS-6, 95 per cent of the original cost of the asset should have 
been provided as depreciation. 

2. (a) Profit and loans and advances were overstated by Rs.9.42 crore due to accounting of 
refund of entry tax amounting to Rs.9.42 crore as income, pending its acceptance by the 
competent authority. 

The Management stated that the assessing authority had intimated that the claims on 
account of entry tax would be dealt with by the Department at the time of assessment for the 
year 2003-2004. Hence, there was certainty in realisation of the claim. 

The above contention of the Management is not tenable as the Deputy Commissioner had 
stated (May 2004) that the case was under examination and the question of adjustment of 
the claimed amount from the payments during the year 2004-2005 did not arise. As such 
there existed uncertainty in the realisation. 
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2 (b) Loans and advances included a claim of Rs.7.96 crore recoverable from Petroleum. 
India International (PH) Consortium- on account of withdrawal of membership_ by the 
ComiJany, which was subject to withholding of Rs.3.13 crore by the Consortium towards 
the tax liabilities. As such necessary pmvision should have been made in the accounts. Non­
provision for the same resulted in understatement of provisions and overstatement of profit 
by Rs.3.13 crore. 

The Management stated that the disallowance of tax relief to PH was pending for final 
outcome of the appeal filed with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal which was contingent 
in. nature and hence the entire amount had been shown as claims recoverable from PH. 

The Management contention is not tenable, as the Consortium of PSU (PH) had withheld 
Rs.3.13 crore towards tax liabilities and asked for indemnity bond ofRs.6.56 cirore to cover 
such liabilities for which PH had _filed an appeal in Income Tax Appellate Tribunal. Hence 
the claim was uncertain of realisation and should have been provided. 

. . 

2 (c) Profit as weU as loans and advances were overstated by Rs.337.83 crore due to 
accountal of claims on -account of refund of customs duty on self-assessment basis since 
1997'-98, which, was disputed by the Customs Department 

The Management stated that ·the Claims on account· of customs duty which arose in the 
normal course -of business, had been booked in accordance with the generally accepted 

·. accounting principles of 'going concern' and 'accrual basis.' · 

-_ · The reply of th~ Management is not tenable because the refund of duty arises only after 
final assessment is made. Since there .is an ongoing dispute with the Customs Department 
on these claims,. the claims were uncertain and therefore should not be recognised in view of 
Significant Accounting Policy no.9.3 of the Company. 

3. Current HabiHties and fixed assets were overstated by Rs.16.45 crore, due to providing 
for withheld amount of customs duty for want of documents from the contractor. The 

- liability is contingent in natUre considering the ongoing dispute with the contractor. 

4 (i) Profit for the year was overstated by Rs.40 lakh due to overvaluation of closing 
stock of raw materials 

The Management has noted the comment for further action. 

(ii) _The profit had been. overstated by. Rs.l.85 crore due to overvaluation of closing stock 
of finished product due to non-consideration of under recovery of irrecoverable taxes while 
calculating net realisable value. 

- . 
The Management stated that the under recovery was of the nature of selling and distribution· 
expenses which -were notrequired to be excluded from the net realisable value 

The contention of the Management is not tenable, as the taxes do not form part ofsellin.g 
· and distribution expenses. 

1.2.19 Kochi Refilneries Limited/ 

Inventories were overstated by Rs.6.46 crore due to inclusion oLinsurance spares, which 
should .have been. capitalized and amortized over a pei-iod not exceeding useful life of the 
main-equipment in accordance with AS-2 read with AS-10. 
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This had also resulted in understatement of depreciation by Rs.2.74 crore and consequent 
overstatement of profit to the same extent. 

The Company agreed to make appropriate adjustment in 2004-05. 

STRYOFPOWE 

1.2.20 National Thermal Power Corporation Limited 

Consequent upon the coming into force of Electricity Act 2003, with effect from 10 June 
2003, the old erstwhile electricity Acts namely Electricity Act 1910, the Electricity (supply) 
Act 1948 and the Electricity Regulatory Commissions Act 1998 were repealed. As the 
Electricity Act, 2003 did not stipulate the rates to be adopted for providing depreciation, the 
power generating companies charged depreciation at different rates as given below: 

National Thermal Power Corporation Limited and Satluj Jal Vidyut Nigam Limited had 
provided for depreciation in its annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2004 at the 
rates laid down in the Companies Act, 1956. Narmada Hydroelectric Development 
Corporation Limited, National Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited, North Eastern 
Electric Power Corporation Limited and Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 
continued to follow the rates of depreciation for the preparation of accounts for the year 
ended 31 March 2004 as notified by the Central Electricity Regularity Commission in 
March 2001. 

The matter was referred to the Government of India in July 2004 for clarification; its reply 
was awaited. 

1.2.21 National Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited 

Profit for the year was overstated by Rs.5.25 crore due to: 

(i) Short provision of depreciation by Rs.2.59 crore due to adoption of rate of 1.8 per cent 
instead of2.57 per cent on tunnels in Chamera project (stage II), 

(ii) The incorrect capitalisation of the amount of guarantee fee of Rs.1.18 crore payable 
to the Government. 

(iii) Non-provision of Rs.1.48 crore towards insurance claim pending since 1990 for 
damage to gas insulated switchgear equipment. 

The Management noted the comments (i) and (ii). In respect of comment (iii) the 
Management stated that the claim was still under active consideration by National Insurance 
Company Limited. As such, no provision was required. The reply is not tenable as the claim 
was more than 14 years old and had once been rejected. 

1.2.22 Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 

1. The Company commissioned and capitalised Nathpa Jhakri- Nalagarh transmission line 
in March 2003, though the same had been considered as completed in May 200 I. As the 
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delay occurred mainly due to recasting of one damaged tower, 'interest during construction' 
(IDC) amounting to Rs.60.58 crore from the date of completion to the date of actual 
capitalisation should not have been capitalised but charged to profit and loss account. 

The Management stated that the transmission .line could not be test-charged even in the 
absence of a single tower. As such, the line could not be said to be ready for intended use 
and therefore could not be capitalised. The reply is not tenable since the line was completed 
in May 2001 as per the completion report sent to the Ministry and the delay in repair of 
damaged tower did not justify the capitalisation of IDC after the date ·of completion. 

2. The Company capitalised Talcher-Meramundali transmission line in December 2003 
and Meramundali-Jeypore transmission line in January 2004, though these lines were 
completed and ready for charging in March and November 2003, respectively. This resulted 
in overstatement of net block of fixed assets by Rs.3.31 crore and understatement of 
depreciation by Rs.94 lakh and overstatement of profit by Rs.4.25 crore. 

The Management stated that these lines could not be test-charged due to non-readiness of 
the respective line bays. The reply is not tenable as both the lines were ready for normal 
charging/intended· use immediately after completion of stringing and should have been 
capitalised in terms of the accounting policy of the Company. 

3. The Company changed the method for creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve 
(DRR) and created DRR to the extent of25 per cent ofthe value of bonds to be redeemed in 
the next financial year instead of the issue size. This was contrary to the Department of 
Company Affairs' circular dated 18 April 2002, according to which adequacy of DRR for 
manufacturing and infrastructure companies was 25 per cent of the value of 
bonds/debentures issued through private placement. As a result, general reserves stood 

. overstated and Bonds Redemption Reserve understated by Rs.391.60 crore. 

The Management stated that the intention of the Companies Act was to ensure availability 
of DRR to the extent of 25 per cent immediately before the redemption of bonds. The reply 
is not tenable as the circular ibid clearly mentioned that 25 per cent DRR was to be created 
in respect of the debenture issued and not on portion thereof . 

. 4. In respect of four cost-plus consultancy cum construction contracts, the income due as 
per the terms of the agreements worked out to Rs.42 lakh as on 31 March 2004. However, 
the income booked in the accounts was Rs.6.76 crore, resulting in overstatement of income 
as well as profit by Rs.6.34 crore. 

The Management stated that the scope of these contracts included certain preliminary 
works, which were already completed before 31 March 2004, and therefore income of 
Rs.6.76 crore was booked as per the accounting policy. The reply is not tenable as all these 
contracts were cost-plus and only when the costs were incurred the percentage of cost 
specified in each agreement was to be taken as income. 

5. The employees cost was understated by Rs.l.09 crore dtie to short provision of liability 
towards leave encashment and post-retirement medical. benefits, resulting in overstatement 
of profit by Rs.l.09 crore. 

. The Management noted the comment. . 
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6. The Company spent Rs.l.09 crore towards sponsorship charges and other goodwill 
gestures during the year, out of which, Rs.57.97 lakh was booked to various ongoing 
projects as incidental expenditure during construction (IEDC) instead of charging to the 
profit and loss account. Since the above expenditure was not related to the construction of 
projects, its capitalisation did not conform to the established accounting principles, which 
resulted in overstatement of profit and IEDC by Rs.57.97lakh. 

The Management stated that the publicity expenses of Rs.l.09 crore incurred by the 
Corporate Centre forming part of the common expenditure has been allocated as per the 
accounting policy. The r~ply is not tenable as publicity expenses were not related to the 
project cost and did not qualify for capitalisation. Moreover, the Central Electricity · 
Regulatory Commission also did not allow capitalisation of such expenses for the purpose 
of tariff. 

1.2.23 Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 

Unclaimed interest on bonds and Government loans and repayment of principal thereof 
amou~ting to Rs.l00.79 crore, which was deposited in .company's designated Interest/ 
warrant account was not accounted for in the books of accounts. Consequently, current 
liabilities and current assets were understated by Rs.l 00.79 crore. 

The Management has noted the comment. 

1.2.24 Konkan Railway Corporation Limited 

The Company had not provided interest of Rs.2.09 crore for the year on a long-term loan of 
Rs.29.81 crore. This had resulted in short provision of finance charges and understatement 
of loss by Rs.2.09 crore. 

The C:ompany had also not provided interest on long-term loan to the extent of Rs.2.77 
crore pertaining to the previous year. The cumulative under-provision of finance charges 
worked out to Rs.4.86 crore resulting in understatement of cumulative loss to that extent. 

' 
The Management had assured to provide for the interest after reconciling the finance 
charges with the Ministry of Railways. However, the Company had not obtained any 
clarification from the Ministry. 

1.2.25 National Highways Authority of India 

' 
(i) Interest accrued and due on the loans from the Government of India were understated by 

· Rs.2.58 crore due to non-accountal of penal interest payable over and above the nornial 
interest for the delay in repaym_ent of principal and interest. · 
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The Management stated that the delay in repayment of normal interest was due to non­
finalisation of terms and conditions of loans by the Ministry and had requested for waiver of 
penal interest. 

The reply of the Management is not tenable as the Ministry had not waived the penal 
interest and as such provision should have been made accordingly. 

(ii) Land acquired at a cost of Rs. 91.32 crores for laying roads was not accounted for. 
Consequently, land and capital work-in-progress .were understated by Rs.91.32 crores. 

The Management had noted the comment. 

(iii) Capital work-in-progress was overstated by Rs.5.98 crore due to inclusion of the 
amount expended on behalf of certain Build Operate Transfer Concessionaires and 
recoverable from them. Consequently, the loans and advances were understated to that 
extent. 

The Management had noted the comment. 

(iv) Capital work-in-progress was overstated by Rs.3.42 crore being the excess amount paid 
for land acquisition and recoverable from land acquisition authorities. This also resulted in 
understatement of current assets to that same extent. 

The Management had noted the comment. 

(v) Recoverable from subsidiary companies was understated by Rs.5.13 crore as the 
maintenance expenditure incurred till March 2003, for National Highway-24 on behalf of its 
subsidiary companies was charged as its own expenditure with corresponding provision 
towards outstanding liabilities. This had resulted in overstatement of maintenance 
expenditure and current liabilities. 

The Management had noted the comment. 

1.2.26 Moradabad Toll Road Company Limited 

(i) Capital work-in-progress was understated by Rs.3.08 crore due to non-accountal of 
value of work done by a contractor upto March 2003 in respect of Moradabad by-pass 
National Highway No.24. Consequently, current liabilities were understated by the same 
amount. 

(ii) Operation, maintenance and financial expenses were understated by Rs.l.32 crore 
due to accounting of operating and maintenance expenses of Rs.73.23 lakh as against the 
actual expenditure of Rs.2.05 crore incurred upto March 2003. This had resulted in 
understatement of loss by Rs.l.32 crore. 

INISTRY OF SHIPPING 

1.2.27 Inland Waterways Authority of India 

Fixed assets included Rs.61.93 lakh being the cost of 45 sets of buoys with mooring gear 
and 58 lighting systems, which were washed off/pilfered during April 2002. This had 
resulted in overstatement of fixed assets and understatement of loss by the same amount. 
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Though the Management accepted the comment no adjustment was made during 
2003-04. 

~t~ __ §Jl!f~Q!:;§TEE!)J 
1.2.28 Bharat Refractories Limited 

1. The Government Loan was overstated by 8.50 crore and the secured loan from the bank 
and term deposit with bank were understated by Rs.l3.50 crore and Rs.five crore 
respectively due to setting off the amount of term deposit with cash credit and incorrect 
accmintal of loans from bank as Government loans. 

The · Management stated that the · necessary corrections would be made during 
2004-05. 

2. Lpss was overstated by Rs.15 .60 lakh due to the following: 

@; Short accountal of accrued interest income of Rs 58.91 lakh on short tern deposits 
with banks, and 

o Short provision of gratuity liability amounting to Rs.43.31 lakh. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

3. Liability on account of gratuity; leave encashment and post-retirement settlement 
expenses in respect of 51 'Badli Workers' ofBhandaridah Refractories Plant had not been 
provided for in accordance with AS 15. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

1.2.29 Indian Iron & Steel Company Limited 

The profit for the year was overstated by Rs.24 lakh due to valuation of rejected/half rolled 
in-gots at cost price instead of at scrap value. 

The Management accepted the comment. 

1.2.30 Steel Authority of India Limited 

Net profit (after tax) of the Company for the year was overstated by Rs.76.85 crore due to 

(i) Understatement of 'interest and finance charges' by Rs.62.88 crore due to excess 
subsidy claimed from Government of India. 

The Management stated that the financial and business restructuring proposal of SAIL 
approved by the Government of India (GOI) in February 2000, inter-alia, provided for the 
Government of!ndia's guarantees of Rs.1500 crore with 50 per cent interest subsidy on the 
funds, to be raised from the market by SAIL for reduction in manpower through voluntary 
retirement schemes. In line with the decision of GOI, the funds were raised during 
2000-01 to 2002-03 from the market and subsidy@ 50 per cent of the interest paid to the 
Bondholders from the date of allotment of Bonds was claimed and received from GO I. 

The Management further stated that as per the Company's rules, employees were relieved 
after they settled their dues; vacated company's accommodation, etc. Thus, the employees 
were relieved over a period of time and the VRS funds parked in the escrow account were 
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withdrawn and utilized in phases. Interest subsidy had been correctly claimed in line with 
funds raised and interest paid thereon. 

The reply is not acceptable in view of the fact that the Company had drawn the loan and 
kept the amount in fixed deposit for certain period on which it had earned interest.· The 
Management therefore should have claimed interest subsidy from the Government after 
adjusting the interest earned from the bank.· 

(ii) · Understatement of depreciation by Rs.13.97 crore due to adoption oflower rate of 
depreciation in respect of CoiVSlab yards. 

The Management stated that the equipment form integraJ part of main equipments and 
accordingly had been depreciated at the same rate applicable to main plant and machinery 
i.e. continuous process plant in line with consistent accounting treatment followed over the 
years, and so there was no under provision of depreciation. 

The above contention of the Management is not tenable since the equipment referred to did 
not form part of continuous process plant, and as such requires to be depreciated 
independently at different rates. 

(iii) Inventories were understated by Rs.2.26 crore due to non-inclusion of refractories in. 
closing stock. Consequently profit stands understated by the same amount. 

The Management had accepted the comment for making adjustment in the accounts for 
2004-05. 

1,231 Dethi Metro Rail CorporatioJtR Limited 

1. The loss was understated and intangible assets· overstated by Rs.l.06 crore due to 
amortising. the Enterprise Resource Planning system at lower rate of depreciation (10 per 
cent) as compared to 16.21 per cent taken last year. The Management stated. that the 
amortisation of the intangible asset was limited to 10 years having regard to nature of the 
asset. The reply is not tenable as the amortisation of the carrying amount of the intangible 
asset over a longer period as compared to the last year was not in accordance with AS 26. 

2. The Company continued to charge depreciation on certain assets at rates lower than the 
rates envisaged in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 which resulted in 
understatement of loss and overstatement of fixed assets by Rs.8.95 crore. The Management 
stated that the Company has sought approval of the Department of Company Affairs for 
adoption of lower rates in respect of these assets in terms of Section 205 of the Companies 
Act. The fact, however, remains that the approval for adoption of lower rates was !]lOt 

received by the Company tin finalisation of the accounts. 

1.232 HmusiJtRg ca~md Ur!JaJtR DevelopmeJtRt CorporatioJtR Limited 

The Company had made provision ofRs.3.58 crore only against the loans ofRs.7J6 crore 
given to three companies on the ground that the loans were secured, though the investment 
of Rs.27 lakh. made in the equity shares of these companies had been valued at Re.one each 
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as working status thereof was not available. The adequacy of the above provision could not 
be ascertained in the absence of determination of the value of these securities. 

The Management stated that valuation of the securities would be done during 2004-2005. 

. -
INISTRY OF WATER RESOURCE 

1.2.33 National Projects Construction Corporation Limited 

1. Fixed assets as on 31 March 2003 were understated by Rs.3.27 crore due to non­
accountal of boom hydraulic drilling jumbo received in February 2003 at Maneri Bhali Unit 
of the Company. 

The Management stated that necessary accounting entry would be made during the year 
2003-04. 

2. Work done for the year 2002-03 included Rs.27.15 crore in respect of the Taj Heritage 
Corridor Project at Agra, which might be viewed in the light of the following: 

(i) The Company did not obtain the approval of the Government of Uttar Pradesh for 
rates of various items of work/ detailed project report. 

(ii) The joint measurement of the work was not supported by the client. 

(iii) The Government of Uttar Pradesh had stopped the work and further payments. 

(iv) The Government of Uttar Pradesh paid only Rs.l7 crore out of Rs.27.15 crore and 
the Company had shown Rs.l 0.15 crore as receivable. 

(v) The Company had shown Rs.23.61 crore as the total amount due to the sub­
contractor without adjusting the advance of Rs.l4.90 crore already paid. 

(vi) The profit margin of Rs.3.54 crore for this project accounted for by the Comapny as 
overheads and contingencies could not be vouchsafed in Audit. Further, amount of 
overheads and contingencies of Rs.l.77 crore claimed by the Comapny from the 
Government of Uttar Pradesh were more than the approved rates. 

The Management stated that final DPR was submitted to the Uttar Pradesh Government in 
May 2003. Therefore, as per AS-9 submission of final DPR would be treated as services 
completed and other construction work would be treated as in progress against which the 
Corporation had already received Rs.17 crore in advance. Further the corporation had filed a 
writ petition in the Allahbad High Court, Lucknow Bench in July 2003 for the work 
executed till stoppage of work by U.P. Government, based upon the DPR rates. The Court 
admitted the petition and the matter is sub-judice. 

3. Income was overstated by Rs. l.83 crore due to inclusion of claims for extra items and 
escalation not admitted by the clients in respect of six projects. This had resulted in 
understatement of loss by the same amount. 

The Management stated that value of work was accounted for in the accounts as per its 
Accounting Policy and necessary disclosure was made in accounts,. 

The reply is not acceptable as Company's Accounting policy was in deviation of AS-9. 
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Name of the Ministry/Company 

[MINISTRY OF CO 

1.3.1 

1.3.2 

1.3.3 

Bharat Coking Coal 
Limited 

Central Coalfields 
Limited 

Eastern Coalfields 
Limited 

- ---
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Brief comments 

(i) The negative networth of Rs.3779.83 crore and 
negative working capital of Rs.34 15.71 crore on 
31 March 2004 indicated precarious financial 
condition of the Company. 

(ii) Though the percentage of sundry debtors to sales 
had decreased, the percentage of doubtful debts 
to sundry debtors increased from 52.89 in 2002-
03 to 64.50 in 2003-04. 

Earning per share of the Company decreased from 
Rs.409.20 in 2002-03 to Rs.394.03 in 2003-04. 

Networth of the Company declined from (-) 
Rs.2267.82 crore as on 31 March 2003 to (-) 
Rs.2570.85 crore as on 31 March 2004. 

1NISTRY OF COMMUNICATION. 

1.3.4 

1.3.5 

Mahanagar Telephone (i) 
Nigam Limited 

The percentage of profit before tax to income 
from services declined from 29.21 per cent 
during 2001-02 to 21.31 per cent during 2002-
03 but marginally increased to 25.15 per cent 
during 2003-04. 

Garden Reach 
Shipbuilders & 
Engineers Limited 

(ii) The percentage of prof!t after tax to equity had 
declined from 16.68 per cent in 2001-02 to 
l 0.63 per cent in 2002-03 but marginally 
increased to 12.86 per cent in 2003-04. 

(iii) The percentage of sundry debtors to 'income 
from services' had shown an increasing trend 
and increased from 18.43 per cent in 2001-02 
and 27.66 in 2002-03 to 32. 14 per cent in 2003-
04. 

Profit of Rs.53.11 crore of the Company is to be 
viewed in the light of non-operational income from 
interest ofRs.38.71 crore in 2003-04 
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NSURANCE D/VIS/0 

1.3.6 The New India Though the management expenses and commission 
as percentage to the total net premium decreased 
from 33.98 per cent in 2001-02 to 30.94 per cent in 
2002-03, it increased significantly to 42.76 per cent 
in 2003-04. 

1.3.7 

Assurance Company 
Limited 

National Insurance 
Company Limited 

(i) The percentage of current assets (including loans 
and advances) to current liabilities (including 
provisions) decreased from 283.59 in 2001-02 to 
273.13 in 2002-03 and to 268.41 in 2003-04. 

(ii) The management expenses and commission as 
percentage to the total net premium increased 
from 29.88 per cent in 200 I -02 to 30.33 percent 
in 2002-03 and 31 .97 per cent in 2003-04. 

(iii) The percentage of claims to net premium 
increased from 76.0 I in 2002-03 to 84.10 in 
2003-04. 

1NISTRY OF HEAVY INDUSTRY AND PUBLIC ENTERPRISES 

1.3.8 Andrew Yule & (i) Paid-up capital of the Company stands eroded by 
Company Limited negative networth. 

(ii) Doubtful debts were steadily increasing despite 
gradual decrease in sales. 

1.3.9 Bridge & Roof Co. (i) The profit of Rs.3 .18 crore for the year (before 

1.3.10 

1.3.11 

(India) Limited Tax) is to be viewed in the light of interest 
income of Rs.l .03 crore and income from sale of 
scrap amounting to Rs.1.29 crore 

Cement Corporation of 
India Limited 

Heavy Engineering 
Corporation Limited 

(ii) The percentage of profit before tax to capital 
employed, networth and sales which was 5.13, 
9.23 and 1.09 in the year 2002-03, decreased to 
3.57, 7.40 and 0.86 respectively in 2003-04. 

(iii) Earning per share (EPS) decreased to Rs.0.85 in 
2003-04 as compared to Rs.1.61 in the year 2002-
03. 

The paid-up capital and free reserves and surplus 
stand fully eroded due to accumulated losses of 
Rs.l933.92 crore. 

During 2001-02 to 2003-04, the sundry debtors at the 
year end ranged from 540 days of sales to 5 86 days 
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of sales and the percentage of bad and doubtful debts 
during the period ranged from 31.55 to 39.56 oftotal 
debtors 

(i) The net worth of the Company had decreased 
from Rs.55.50 crore as on 31 March 2002 to 

· Rs.l5.35 crore as on 31 March 2003; 

(ii) Sundry debtors to sales increased from 72.01 per 
cent in 2001-02 to 90.50 per cent in 2002-03 
reflecting poor recovery of debts. 

1.3.113 HMT Ma!t!!hdl!lle ToGlls The net worth of the Company had been. negative 
Lnnnnnte~ which deteriorated from(-) Rs.354.32 crore in 2001-

02 to(-) Rs.474.70 crore in 2002-03. 

1:3.114 JH[MT Watdnes Unnnfite~ Inventories held in excess of norms as on 31st March 
2003 were raw materials and components- Rs.21.61 
crore, work-in-progress- Rs.17.98 crore and finished 
goods- Rs.23.30 crore. The debtors over and above 
the maximum . credit period of two months worked 
out to Rs.41.1 0 crore as on 31 March 2003. 

11..3.11.5 Hfinn~unstann .!Pllnoto JFillnnns The accumulated losses increased from Rs.2214.02 

1.3.ll.tfii 

11..3.11.7 

JL3.Il8 

Mannun:!fadunl!"nnng crore as on March 2003 to Rs.2657 .05 · crore as on. 
·cml!llJPianny Lfimfi~e~ March 2004. 

BaRmell" LawJrfie & Co. 
Lfimiterll 

Bonngafigaonn lRei!Rl!llery & 
Petrodnennnfiit!alls Lfinnnfiterll 

GAJIL {J[nnrllfia ) Lfinnnfite~ 

(i) Profit of Rs.18.58 crore during the year included 
non-operational income of Rs.5 .52 crore. 

(ii) The inventory increased by Rs.12.29 crore. 
whereas sales increased by Rs.2.37 crore during 
the year as compared to the previous year. 

Profit of Rs.440 crore for the year is to be viewed in. 
the light of 50 per cent excise duty exemption 
amounting to Rs.355.26 crore available for North 
Eastern Refineries 

(i) The percentage of liquidity ratio, which is a 
measure of solvency, had decreased! from 168.35 
in 2002-03 to 136.55 in 2003-04 due to decrease 
in working capital. 

(ii) The dues from . the Government of India, 
Government companies and private parties 
constituted 13.4 7 per cent, 49.40 per cent and 
37.13 per cent of the total sundry debtors 
respectively. 
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(iii) The dues outstanding for more than three years 
constituted 18.49 per cent of the total sundry·· 
debtors. · 

1.3.19 lim11dlu:anm Oftll Coi!'J!llO!l'atnmn (i) The liquidity ratio has increased from 124.08 in 
Lnmfttedl 2001-02 to 134.91 in 2002-03 and decreased to 

133.88 in 2003-04. 

(ii) The debtors considered doubtful to the total 
sundry debtors increased to 6.27 per cent in 2003-
04 as compared to 5.56 per cent in 2002-03 and · 
2.68 per cent in 2001-02. 

1.3.2@ HftmllUJistallll Steen Worlks The net worth of the Company had been negative 
Collllst!l'1!lldftol!ll Lnmftted which deteriorated from (-) Rs.864.47 crore in 2001-

02 to (-) Rs.1035.20 crore in 2002-03. and to (-) 
Rs.1070.24 crore in 2003-04. 

1.3.21 Jfndnallll Jimllll & Steen Profit of Rs.27.09 crore was due to waiver of Joint 
Comp~my JLnmited Plant Committee dues of Rs.18.49 crore and interest 

accrued and due ·of Rs.47.35 crore payable to 
financial institutions and banks. 

1.3.22 MJECON Lftmnted Increase in the percentage of doubtful debts to total 
debts from 6.06 as on 31 March. 2003 to 8.33 as on 
31 March 2004 indicated the poor realisability of the 

1.3.23 MST.C Lllmitedl 

debts. · · 

Profit of Rs.33.70 crore during the year is to be 
viewed in the light of non-operational' income from 
interest and dividend ofRs.33.83 crore in 2003-04. 

1.3.24 ·Steen Aulltllmll"nty o1f lllll«llna The percentage of doubtful debts to sundry debtors 
JLftmnted which was 10.43 in 2001-02 marginally decreased to 

10.06 in 2002-03 but increased to 11.42 in 2003-04. 

Wfi_!:IISTR·YO·E_~mPPIN(f. 

1.3.25 Dredgillllg COlrJ!llO!l"atiollll The profit before tax (Rs.l 76.45 crore) for the year 
. of lllll«llia Lfimnted ended 31 March 2004 included non-operational 

1.3.26 Natno!lllall Te:dnlle 
·coll"'pol!"atnollll (MN) 
Lllmitei!ll · 

income of Rs.l8 .31 crore. 

The stock of finished goods representing 2.05 months 
(Rs.S .65 crore) of _sales (Rs.33 .1 0 crore) in 2001-02 
went upto 2.88 months (Rs.8.75 crore)' sales 
(Rs.36.42 crore) in 2002-03 and went further upto. 
3.32 months (Rs.14.81 crore)' sales (Rs.53.42 crore) 
in 2003~04 indicating piling up of finished goods and 
delay in disposal. 
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As per Section 227 (3) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956, the auditor's report shall also 
state in thick type or in italics the observations or comments of the auditors, which have any 
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company. While certifying the accounts of the 
PSUs for the year 2003-2004; the Statutory Auditors made the foUowing major 
qualifications highlighting the impact on Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account: 

UlijmrtmDi~~~;~:r;c~~R\tii~afM~Rildf:P~~!~~~~mlicaisl_-· 

1,4,1 Hi1!1Uil81lstaH1J OrgaH1Jic Chemicals Limited 

1. The following amounts were not provided /charged to Profit & Loss Account: 

(i) Penal interest ofRs.2.14 crore on overdue loan from Government of India 

(H) Lease rentals in respect of Jawaharlal Nehru Port Trust (JNPT) amounting to Rs.4.61 
crore were incorrectly accounted for as capital work in progress. 

(iii)Demand of City Industrial Development Corporation of Maharashtra Limited towards 
forfeiture of advance paid to the extent ofRs.1.08 crore. 

(iv)Misappropriation of Company's moneys amounting to Rs.64.81 lakh in earlier year (to 
the extent identified) by an ex-employee. · 

(v) Liabilities of wage revision for the period 01 October 1997 to 31 October 2000 
amounting to Rs.29.50 crore. 

(vi) Minimum guaranteed throughput charges amounting to Rs.6.92 crore payable to JNPT 
authorities. 

2. The precise impact of the following items on the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss 
Account could not be ascertained. 

(i) Differential interest on overdue principal amount of matured bonds and fixed deposits. 
The above amount is not ascertainable and thus unable to quantify the impact of the same 
on Profit and Loss Account. · 

(ii) Capital work in progress at JNPT Tank Farm Project amounting to Rs.32.85 crore 
carried in books of account at cost These assets should have been stated at net realisable 
value (not ascertained) in accordance with· para 24 of AS 1 0 regarding accounting for fixed 
assets. 

(iii) Plants notin use arid considered economically unviable but are carried at cost due to the 
pending decision ofthe Company in this regard. No assessment ofthe expected loss if any, 
on this account was· made and accounted for. · 
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1.4.2 National Fertilizers Limited 

The Company had not identified and disclosed business segment in line with AS-17 on 
segment reporting. 

1.4.3 ·Project and Development India Limited 

The Company had made an estimated provision of Rs.5.56 crore towards salary and wage 
revision in pursuance of revival scheme submitted to BIFR, which should not have been. 
done without prior approval of the Government of India. 

The profit for the year would have been Rs.13 .69 crore as against the reported profit ·of 
Rs.8.13 crore. 

1.4.4 •Indian Airlines Limited 

Non-reconciliation of general ledger balances with the subsidiary records. 

!MINis'rRYOF COAJJ. 

~~If~tmen(~C~~jf 

1.4.5 Central Coalfields Limited 

Fixed assets/ capital work-in progress/prospecting, boring and development expenditure 
amounting to Rs.2.64 crore on account of sunk cost of dropped project and. Rs.l.69 crore 
towards projects not implemented since 1992-93 had not been charged off in the accounts. 
This resulted in overstatement of profit by Rs.4.33 crore. 

1.4.6 Neyveli Lignite Corporation Limited 

The Company on expiry of existing Bulk Power Supply Agreement for the supply of power 
from its Thermal Power Stations and subject to determination of tariff by the Central 
Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) had made contingency provision of Rs.52 crore 
in the accounts (previous year Rs.91 crore) which resulted in reduction in profit to that 
extent. 
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1.4. 7 Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Limited 

The Management's perception and policy followed regarding recognition of revenue 
towards estimated recoveries of Rs.39.87 crore could not be established with certainty and 
hence was not in line with AS-9. 

1.4.8 India Trade Promotion Organisation 

1. Provision towards entertainment tax includinginterest thereon of Rs.5.91 crore was not 
made even though appeal filed by the Company before Deputy Commissioner of 
entertainment tax was rejected. 

2. The Company invested itsshort-term surplus funds ofRs.237.42 crore in bank deposits 
with nationalised/private banks and public sector financial institutions during the year. 
These investments were to be handled/processed by a committee duly constituted by the 
Board as per the Department of Public Enterprises guidelines to facilitate the best interest 
rates negotiation collectively with banks/financial institutions. However this was done by a 
single individual official/officer contravening the said guidelines. 

1.4.9 MMTC Limited 

1. Non~provision of: 

(i) Rs.3. 77 crore appearing under sundry debtors in respect of gold jewellery; 

(ii) Rs.2.03 crore representing advances in respect of gold jewellery; and 

(iii) Rs.4.47 crore appearing under sundry debtors recoverable from defaulting parties 
against value of gold misappropriated. 

2. Non-provision of old outstanding balance amounting to Rs.3 .14 crore due from PSUs. 

1.4.10 The State Trading Corporation of India Limited 

Accounting for post retirement medical benefit scheme on payment basis instead of on 
actuarial basis during the tenure of service of employees was not in conformity with AS -15. 
on Accounting for retirement benefits-amount unascertained. 

Fixed assets registers maintained at corporate office at Delhi and Branch office at Kolkata, 
were incomplete as they did not contain full details of quantity, situation, cost and 
depreciation. 

1.4.J] Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited 

For calculating licence fee, a few circles had assumed licence fees on National Long 
Distance (NLD) revenue, equivalent to revenue· from subscriber trunk dialing (STD), and 
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others had estimated NLD revenue as 30 per cent of gross income. In the absence of any 
system for determination of NLD revenue, it was not possible to quantify the licence fee on 
actual NLD revenue and its impact on the accounts. · 

No provision had been made in the accounts for gratuity for directly recruited employees. 
Further, the liability for leave encashment for absorbed employees and directly recruited 
employees had been provided on an estimated basis which was not in accordance with the 
Accounting Standard (AS)-15 on "Accounting for retirement benefits" issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) which required retirement benefits to be 
provided on the basis of actuarial valuation. 

The frauds reported by two circles viz. West Bengal and Andhra Pradesh, were under 
investigation by the Vigilance wing of the Company. Pending completion of the 
investigation, the financial impact was not ascertainable. 

I~~lf~'f'f~t_,oroere6~~I!r~!!uiet~~~-;¥~~a 's_uine1!~~ 

1,4.12 Bharat Earth Movers Limited 

In the absence of specific provision in the agreement regarding warranty & unexpired 
obligation, Auditors could not express their opinion on the obligation towards Rs.18.66 
crore provided during the year and quantification of consequential effect on the 
accounts/results ofthe Company. 

I 

1.4.13 Bobcards Limited 

The Visa International did not reimburse to Bob cards Limited the amount of tax deducted at . 
source paid by Bobcards Limited. Hence, Visa international was not entitled to 16A 
certificate. However, during the financial year 2003-2004 Bobcards Limited gave 16A 
certificate amounting to Rs.12 lakh to Visa International. 

1,4,14 Canbank Financial Services Limited 

l. The Company incurred loss of Rs.50.68 crore during the year and the negative networth 
was: Rs.671.58 crore which raised doubts as to whether the Company would be able to 
continue as a going concern. 

2. Based on the observations on the accounts, Auditors were unable to express any opinion 
as to whether the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account gave a true and fair view. 

1.4.15 Cent Bank Home Fim:mce Company Limited 

1. Books of accounts were not prop~rly maintained. Every branch of the Company has its 
own system of accounting and softwares. Cash transactions were not recorded. on regular 
basis. · In Poona branch, subsidiary ledgers kept for deposits and loans were not matching 
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with the general ledger and cash balance was negative on various dates during the year 
except at the year-end. All this indicated that there did not exist any internal control in 
respect of financial accounting/ recording. 

2. Liability on account of employees provident fund (EPF) in respect of chartered 
accountants, builders and civil contractors engaged through outside agencies (unregistered 
with EPF Department) could not be ascertained in the absence of detailed information. This 
is circumventing the provisions of Labour law. 

3. Value of security shown by the branches (Poona, Jabalpur, and Mumbai, etc) in NPA 
accounts was based on the certificates presented by the branch managers. Based on 
verification of assets on sample basis and reports/records available at the branches, such 
value of securities was found to have been inflated. 

4. The branches did not disburse loans as per norms prescribed in some cases. The 
disbursement was made without proper inspection or verification of physical progress of 
construction. Instalments were disbursed in advance and without covering matching 
security. 

1.4.16 IND Bank Housing Limited 

I. In respect of deposits accepted from public, the total borrowing of the Company was in 
excess of the limits prescribed by National Housing Bank in relation to networth of the 
Company. 

2. The accumulated losses of the Company at the end of the financial year exceeded 50 per 
cent of its networth. The Company had incurred cash losses in the current financial year and 
in the immediately preceding financial year. 

3. The Company had defaulted in repayment of dues to National Housing Bank (Rs.26.26 
crore since September 2003) and Indian Bank (Rs.58.45 crore since July 1999). 

1.4.17 INDBANK Merchant Banking Services Limited 

The accumulated losses of the Company at the end of the financial year exceeded 50 per 
cent of its networth. 

INISTRY OF FINANCE -INSURANCE DIVISIO 

1.4.18 Genera/Insurance Corporation of India Limited 

Execution of the conveyance deeds/ receipt of share certificates of the Co-operative 
Societies in respect of the properties valuing Rs.47.39 crore was pending. 

1.4.19 New India Assurance Company Limited 

Profits for the year and Miscellaneous expenditure to the extent not written off was 
overstated by Rs.50.63 crore on account of non-adherence to AS-15 "Accounting for 
retirement benefits". 
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INISTRY OF HEAVY INDUSTRY AND PUBLIC ENTERPRISE 

1.4.20 Andrew Yule & Company Limited 

1. Non-provision for liability in respect of pay revision of employees amounting to Rs.8. 73 
crore. 

2. Non-charging of Rs.6.04 crore on account of gratuity and leave encashment paid to 
employees retired under VRS Scheme. 

1.4.21 Burn Standard Company Limited 

I. Non-provision of Rs.l.48 crore for property tax payable to Municipal Corporation, 
Jabal pur. 

2. Non-provision ofRs.2.31 crore adjusted by United Bank of India against fixed deposit 

1.4.22 Engineering Projects (India) Limited 

Income under head 'Exchange variation' amounting to Rs.53.87 crore represented transfer 
of balance appearing under head 'Exchange variation reserve' created in earlier years to 
guard against exchange variation in respect of claims and liabilities of foreign projects. This 
amount did not represent income of current year and as such income of the year was 
overstated to that extent. 

1.4.23 Gangavati Sugars Limited 

I . In the absence of sufficient financial support for continuance of operations, Auditors had 
stated that there was substantial doubt that the Company would be able to continue as a 
going concern. 

2. The Company had not redeemed shares (Rs.45 lakh) due for redemption in June 1989. 

3. The Company despite being a listed one had not furnished any returns and paid listing 
fees as required under obligation of a listed Company to the stock exchanges. Also the 
Company had not complied with the various other requirements under listing agreement 
including Corporate Governance. 

4. Considering their observations, Auditors were unable to express an opinion as to 
whether the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account (Loss) gave a true and fair view. 

1.4.24 Heavy Engineering Corporation Limited 

The company had not made any provision: 

1. For liabilities towards energy bills of Bihar State Electricity Board and Jharkand State 
Electricity Board for delayed payment surcharge amounting to Rs.300.31 crore. 

2. For liabilities towards water charges bills amounting to Rs.7 .68 crore. 
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3. Against sundry debtors pending for more than three years amounting to Rs.27.98 crore 
and Rs.31.55 crore where realisation was uncertain due to pending implementation of 
Arbitration award since February 1997. 

4. Against liquidated damages ofRs.10.91 crore deducted by a customer. 

5. Against items ofraw materials and stores and spares amounting to Rs.9.44 crore which 
were non-moving for a period of three years or more, against inventory at Delhi depot of 
HMTP amounting to Rs. 42 lakh, the age analysis and status of which was not available and 
against materials amounting to Rs.21 lakh lying with third parties for more than three years 
and moreover confirmation from the parties was not available. 

6 Against capital WIP of Rs.5 .55 crore, the erection, commissioning and completion of 
which were pending for a period of three years or more. 

7 For interest on overdue amounts to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings amounting to 
Rs.0.13 crore. 

8. For damages ofRs.95.02 crore levied by Regional provident fund commissioner u/s 148 
of the EPF and Miscellaneous Provisions Act' 1952 for delayed remittance during the period 
March 1976 to September 1999. 

9 For interest amounting to Rs.l 0.84 crore on non plan loan of Rs.413.93 crore. 

1.4.25 HMT Limited 

1. Share certificates were not issued on allotment of shares amounting to Rs.298.25 crore 
to Government of India in contravention of section 113 of the Companies Act, 1956; 

2. Five year Bonds 1999-2000 amounting to Rs.18.55 crore, being unsecured bonds falling 
within the definition of deposits, which had matured for redemption, were not redeemed. 
Interest accrued and due thereon, amounting to Rs.6.09 crore was not discharged resulting 
in violation of Section 58 A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder; 

3. The statutory auditors had given many qualifications. Considering these qualifications 
the loss for the year would have been Rs.86.32 crore (as against the reported loss of 
Rs.34.41 crore). As such the statutory auditors observed that the Balance Sheet, Profit & 
Loss Account and cash flow statement as at 31 March 2003 did not give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs ofthe Company. 

1.4.26 HMT (International) Limited 

1. Had the provision for doubtful advances relating to three customers aggregating to 
Rs.2.02 crore been made, it would have resulted in a net loss of Rs.1.82 crore 
(approximately) as against the reported profit ofRs.l9.66 lakh. 

2. Considering the inadequacy of current profits for the year the provision for proposed 
dividend made at 20 per cent amounting to Rs.9.60 lakh was not in conformity with the 
provisions of Section 205A(3) of Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies 
(Declaration of Dividend out of Reserves) Rules, 1975. 

In view of the above observations, Auditors had reported that the accounts did not give true 
and fair view. 
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1.4.27 HMT Machine Tools Limited 

l. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss account did not comply with AS-5, 6, 9, 10 and 
15. 

2. The Statutory auditors had given many qualifications. Considering these qualifications 
the loss for the year would have been Rs.l67.20 crore (as against the reported figure of 
Rs.l 02.04 crore). As such the Statutory auditors observed that the Balance Sheet, Profit & 
Loss Account and Cash Flow statement as at 31 March 2003 did not give a true and fair 
view of the state of Company's affairs, of the loss and the cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

1.4.28 HMT Watches Limited 

I. The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account did not comply with AS-2 and 4. 

2. The Company had borrowed a sum of Rs.261 crore as against the borrowing power of 
Rs.250 crore approved by the extraordinary general meeting held on 27 March 2002, which 
was in contravention of Section 293(1) (d) of the Companies Act. 

3. The Statutory auditors had given many qualifications. Considering these qualifications 
the loss for the year would have been Rs.168 .33 crore as against the reported loss of 
Rs.ll2.91 crore. 

4. Further Auditors were unable to express an opinion on additional impact in respect of 
un-quantified items like a) Receivables due from RDS, (b) Depreciation and cumulative 
depreciation on account of subsidiarisation, (c) Liabilities not provided prior to 
subsidiarisation, (d) Non-provision in respect of employee-related claims, (e) Liabilities 
towards interest penalties for statutory dues, (f) Non-confirmation of balances and (g) 
Inventory and Work in progress valuation. 

5. In view of the above observations having impact on Joss by Rs.55.42 crore and 
observations expressing disclaimer in quantifying the observations, Auditors were unable to 
express an opinion as to whether the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account reflect a 
true and fair view. 

1.4.29 Hindustan Photo Films Manufacturing Company Limited 

The Company had incurred a net loss of Rs.443.02 crore for the year ended 31 March 2004 
and the Company's total liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.2657.05 crore. The 
Company was unable to renegotiate its borrowings from its bankers and financial 
institutions as it failed to comply with terms and conditions specified in the loan agreements 
including failure to repay loans and interest thereon . It is doubtful whether the Company 
would be able to continue as a going concern. Consequently, adjustments may be required 
to the recorded assets amounts and classification of liabilities. 

1.4.30 Hindustan Salts Limited 

Loans and advances included Rs.9.43 crore, given to pension fund trust (PF1) as loan 
without the consent of the Government of India (GOI), and Rs.l 0.99 crore as interest 
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thereon receivable from PFT. The pension fund had since been depleted and matter 
regarding taking over this liability of PFT was under consideration of GO I. In the absence 
of any firm commitment from GOI, the amount recoverable from them and the provision 
required was not ascertainable. 

1.4.31 Instrumentation Limited 

1. The retention money amounting to Rs.l 0.96 crore disclosed under the head sundry 
debtors was not in accordance with the disclosure requirements specified in Part-I of 
Schedule-VI to the Companies Act, 1956 wherein it should also show outstanding for a 
period exceeding six months and otherwise and also any portion thereof considered doubtful 
or bad and the provision made against it. 

2. The Company had not made provision for the arrears of pay and allowances from 
January 1992 to December 1998. However, the Company had granted advance of Rs.l2.19 
crore to employees (including Rs.2.50 crore to ex-employees), which would be adjusted 
from the arrears of pay revision and showed it as advance in the Balance Sheet. As a result 
thereof, there was understatement of prior period and other adjustments account 
(expenditure/loss) and current liabilities and provisions by Rs.l2.19 crore. 

3. The internal control procedures needed to be strengthened with regard to purchase of 
inventory and fixed assets and needed to be improved with regard to the sale of goods. 

4. The Company had not maintained cost records under Section 209 (1) (d) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 even though Company was directed by the Government to do so. 

1.4.32 Rehabilitation Industries Corporation Limited 

Sqort-term fund to the tune of Rs.636.06 crore had been used to finance long-term assets. 

1.4.33 Richardson & Cruddas (1972) Limited 

1. Though the interest on loan in respect of Rehabilitation scheme amounting to Rs.l4.72 
crore was accepted as liability, the Company did not make provision, as it had approached 
the Government for postponement of repayment. Thus, unsecured loans were understated by 
Rs.14.72 crore. 
2. The Company has not strictly followed the accrual basis of accounting as laid down in 
Section-209 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

STRY OF HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT 

1.4.34 Educational Consultants India Limited 

Sundry debtors and advances recoverable included Rs. l.27 crore which were unsecured, 
unconfirmed and outstanding for a period exceeding three years. Full recovery of such 
outstanding was doubtful for which adequate provision should have been made to cover the 
foreseeable losses. 
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!l\liiNISTRYOFINFORMATJION1]iCBNQL~O~ 

~£P.'artment O'fEiectroni~ 
. . . 

1.4.35 Electronic~ Trade and Technology Development Corporation Limited 

1.. The Accounting policies disclosed by the Company were on the basis of going concern 
assuniptimi whereas based on the facts and as per the records, it was not a going concern. 

2. Against the doubtful debts of Rs.l3.38 crore, a provision of Rs.9.31 crore was made. 
This resulted in short provision ofRs.4.07 crore. · 

1.4.36 Semi Conductors Complex Limited 

1. The balance amount ofRs.3.24 crore towards arrears salary on account pay revision had 
not bJen charged to profit and loss account in the year 2001-02 

2 The Company had fully utilised the grant in aid allocated for meeting Research and 
Development expenses under Very Large Scale Integrated circuits (VLSI) projects. Further 
expertditure incurred by the Company to the extent of Rs.l4.26 crore in 2001-02 & 2002-03 
should be treated as revenue expenditure in view of non-receipt. of approval of 
Administrative Ministry for re~appropriation of the expenditure ofVLSI project. 

Had the observation been considered the accumul.ated losses would have been Rs.l07.75 
crore as against" reported figure ofRs.90.25 crore. 

1.4.37 North Eastem Handicrafts and Handlooms Development Corporation Limited 

1. Non-provision of interest including penal interest Rs.l7.76 crore (current year-Rs.2.12 
crore and previous years - Rs.l5 .64 crore) 

2. Non-provision of interest on cash credit of Rs.3.58 crore (current year-Rs.0.7l crore· and 
previous years-Rs.2.87 crore) 

1.4.38 ONGC Videsh Limited 

1. The fixed assets in which the Company had interest through joint venture which were 
situat~d outside India were not physically verified by the Management. 

2, The Company had interest in inventories held outside India by operators of joint 
ventures where Company had participating interest. The Management during the . year 
conducted no physical verification of such inventories. 
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MINISTRY OF POWE 

1.4.39 National Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited 

Profit was overstated by Rs. 73.14 crore due to not writing off capital work-in-progress in 
respect of Koel Karo project since 1980. 

1.4.40 Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 

The Company had issued debentures (bond) worth Rs.2057 .20 crore within the delegation 
given to Chairman & Managing Director by the Board of Directors. However, in terms of 
Section 292(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1956 the power could be exercised only by Board 
of Directors by means of resolution and there is no provision to delegate such powers. 

NISTRY OF RAILWAY 

1.4.41 Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited 

Non-adoption of AS-22 resulted in non-provision of deferred tax liability of Rs.l70.13 crore 
for the year, thereby profit for the year was overstated to that extent. Similarly non­
accounting of accumulated deferred tax liability of Rs.1 165 .1 0 crore up to 31 March 2003 
resulted in overstatement of reserve and surplus by that amount. 

INISTRY OF SHIPPIN 

1.4.42 Cochin Shipyard Limited 

The Company' s claim for set off of carried forward depreciation relating to 1998-99 
assessment year had been disallowed and a demand for Rs.9.67 crore was raised by the 
Income-tax Department. The Company preferred an appeal and therefore no provision was 
made. Similar claims relating to assessment year 1997-98 were also pending assessment 
before the department. 

1.4.43 Shipping Corporation of India Limited 

The present accounting systems of the Corporation did not give the requisite information for 
preparation of segment Accounts as required by AS-17 "Segment reporting". 

INISTRY OF SMALL INDUSTRIES & AGRO & RURAL INDUSTRIE 

1.4.44 National Small Industries Corporation Limited 

Non-Provision of penalty on Government guarantee fee on KFW loans amounting to 
Rs.6.15 crore (including Rs.64.46 lakh for the year) as on 31 March 2004. 
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[MINISTRY 9F SOCIAL JuSTICE & EMPOWERMENT! 

1.4.45 Natimuol BackWard Classes Finance & Development Corporation 

Provision amounting to Rs.3 .89 crore should have been made on case-to-case basis by 
analysing overdue balance of each defaulting borrower and the security cover available. 

1.4.46 Hindustan Steel Construction Company Limited 

1. As per the system in vogue, the work-in-progress at the year-end amounting to Rs.25.82 
crore had been shown as work done but not billed and included in the value ofthe contract 
receipt based on the certificates issued by the Company's engineers, which was not in line 
with the provisions of AS-7. 

2. Sundry debtors included claims on account of escalation of Rs.1 04.96 crore. not 
accepted by the clients and outstanding for a _long time. Chances of recovery of the above 

. claims were remote and full provision should have been made instead of Rs.69.70 crore 
mad¢ by the Company. 

3. Pending outcome of long outstanding dues from clients, provision against Sundry 
· Debtors for Rs.43 .06 crore had not been made in account. 

1.4.47 Kudremukh Iron Ore Company Limited 

1. The Supreme Court had passed an order that mining in Kudremukh could be carried out 
only 'upto December 2005. The Company has prepared the Accounts on a going concern 
basis. The effect of this. on the Profit/Assets & Liabilities was not ascertainable. 

2. 1jhe Company has not recognised any interest for the year, on the loan of Rs.227 .50 
crore advanced during earlier years to K.udremukh Iron and Steel Company Limited, a body 
corporate, in which some of the Directors were common and this sum was outstanding as on 
date of Balance Sheet. 

1.4.48 Steel Authority of India Limited 

1. The Company had equity investments of Rs.374.94 crore in its fully owned subsidiary 
company, Indian Iron & Steel Company Limited (liSCO) and loans, advances and other 
recoverable dues ofRs.183.69 crore from the said Company. There was complete erosion of 
networth of USCO. The Board of Industrial & Financial reconstruction· (BIFR) has 
approved the revival plan for that company which was under implementation. The Auditors 
were' unable to state the extent to which there may be decline/shortfall in value of equity 
investment and recovery of loans and other dues. · · 

2. The Company had not carried out the necessary adjustments arising out of the lo~ering . 
of interest rate with retrospective effect from 1 April 1998 on unsecured loans taken from 
Steel,Development Fund. The impact ofthesame on the accounts had not been ascertained 

·and a'ccounted for. 
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1.4.49 Cottmn ColfJPoratimn of India JLimited 

Non-provision of doubtful debts of Rs.8.99 crore outstanding for more than lO years from 
institutional . buyers ·and under litigation had resulted in overstatement of profit to that 

· extent. 

1.4.5() 7!'/he Handicrafts and Ha!J1l,dlooms Exporls Corpmratio!J1l, of ]JJ11,dia JLimited 

l. Non-provision for doubtful debts amounting to Rs.12.28 lakh resulted in overstatement 
of profits for the year to the· same extent. 

2. In case of Delhi Regional Office, the internal control procedures needed to be 
strengthened in the areas of (i) purchase procedure, (ii) prompt follow up of receivables, 
payables and advances, (iii) periodic confirmation of outstanding balance, reconciliation of 
debtors and creditors and (iv) a well defined credit policy. 

1.4.51 Natio!J1l,al Textile Corporatio!J1l, (MP) JLimited 

1. The Company incurred net loss of Rs.54.59 crore (before considering the extraordinary 
income ofRs.302.32 crore on account ofprofit on sale of assets and interest written back on 
NTC loans) during the year and its total liabilities exceeded total assets by Rs.894.86 crore. 
BIFR has ordered revival of two mills and closure of remaining five mills in its 
rehabilitation scheme sanctioned in. February 2002 to be completed within two years of its 
sanction. But due to delay in the implementation of the scheme, the Company had applied 
for extension of the implementation period for a period of two years. Accordin.gly, the 
Company's continuance as a going concern depended on the success of the rehabilitation 
scheme. 

2. There was. delay in depositing contribution with Provident Fund and Em]ployees State 
Insurance Authorities due to delay in disbursement of salary and wages and a sum of 
Rs.63.04lakh (including Rs.25.82 lakh for pre-nationalisation period) was in arrears for 
more than six months. 

3. The Company was not regular in depositing sales tax, property tax, etc and an amount of 
Rs.90.29 lakh on this account remained outstanding for more than six months. 

1.4.52 Natio!J1l,al1'extile Corporatio!J1l, (l'N&JP) JLimited 

The Company had defaulted in repayment of Principal and Interest dues to the Industrial 
Financial Corporation of India (IFCI), Industrial Investment Bank of India (UBI) and 
Xn.dustrial Development Bank of India (IDBI). The total outstanding towards principal and 
interest, after waiver of interest, as on 31 March 2004 was Rs.31.27 crore. 

1,4.53 Natio!J1l,al1'extile CorporatiOJJ11, (UP) JLimited 

"Sales" included excise duty amounting to Rs.1.62 crore (Rs.88.46 l;:1kh and Rs.73.21 lakh 
pertain.ing to Naini and Mau units, respectively, of the Swadeshi Cotton MiHs) which 
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should have been shown net of excise duty as required under the clarification to 
Acco~nting Standard 9. This had resulted in overstatement of Sales as well as 
Manufacturing Expenses by Rs.l.62 crore. 

I 

1.4.54 National Textile Corporation (WBAB&O) Limited 

1. Extraordinary items included income on account of interest on raw material dues written 
back of Rs.29.69 crore but without any MOU with the parties or actual settlement made 
during the year. 

2. The representation of interest on unsecured loan due to National Textile Corporation 
Limited (Holding company) amounting to Rs.31.21 crore in accounts is in contradiction to 
the BIFR sanctioned scheme. 

3. As per BIFR scheme, Raiding company was to provide Rs.SOO crore for modernization, 
but no funds were provided except for deficiencies in wages payment. 

~INISTRYOFTOurujMJ 

1.4.55 India Tourism Development Corporation Limited 

1. Claim ·against the Company not acknowledged as debts of Rs.11 0.20 crore included the 
following for which firm liability should have been provided for: 

(i) Property tax of Rs.35.67 crore payable to New Delhi Municipal Corporation (in respect 
of 3 units since dis invested). 

(ii) Royalty of Rs.10.72 crore payable to Airports Authority ofindia in case of Duty Free 
Shops at International Airports at Delhi, Mumbai, Chennai, Kolkata and 
Thiruvananthapuram. 

2. Damages of Rs.1.44 crore payable to landlord at Mumbai. 

3. Non-provision of amount outstanding as sundry debtors/loans and advance in respect of 
five subsidiary companies to the extent of Rs.l0.97 crore including Rs.l.02 crore 
surrendered towards due of Bihar Industrial Credit and Investment Corporation Limited. 

4. N6n-accountal of losses of subsidiary-companies aggregating to Rs.IS .41 crore. 

5. Absorption of losses aggregating to Rs.35.15 crore incurred by disinvested units for the 
period 2000-0 1 in contradiction to the demerger scheme and corresponding claim of 
Rs.32:55 crore put upto the Department of Tourism, Government of India without any 
provision in the demerger scheme or any communication/notification from the Government 
ofindia. · ·. · 

6 Short provision of loss on transfer of disinvested units by Rs.1.99 crore by computing 
the same on the basis of accounts as on 31 March 2001 instead of those as on 31 March 
2000 as provided under the approved schemes of de-merger. 

7. Non-provision of Rs.13.26 crore shown recoverable from disinvested companies for the 
period 1 April 2001 to the date of handing over in the absence of confirmations from the 
concerned parties. · 
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8 ·Short provision of Rs.6.54 crore in respect of permanent diminution in the value of 
investment, and 

9. Deferred Tax liability as on 31 March 2003 aggregating to Rs.7.79 crore. 

1.4.56 Hmusfrrmg & Ull'botltiJ JfJewelopmeltiJt Coll'poll'otdiolt1J !Limited 

The Company had adopted accounting policy of making provision in respect· of disputed 
demands under income/interest/wealth tax upon the final decision of appeals preferred by it. 
Accordingly, the Company has reversed provision of income tax.of Rs.9.37 croremade in. 
earlier year, resulting in increase in profit available for appropriation by Rs.9.37 crore. 

1. Non-provision of outstanding dues amounting to Rs.33.12 crore and non-adjustment of 
Loans and advances amounting to Rs.2.37 crore for expenses and other loans to staff. 

2. Sundry debtors included an. amount ofRs.6.64 crore which had not been accepted by the 
client, but this amount was shown as good instead of doubtful. 

3. Amount recoverable from Airports Authority oflndiaRs.14.07 crore and Rs.10.25 crore 
in respect of Libyan projects was subject matter for arbitration. The arbitrator had given 
award for Rs.L76 crore only. The balance amount of Rs.22.56 crore was thus not 
recoverable but amount had been shown as good for recovery. 

4 .. Non-provision of interest for Rs.6.32 crore on special rupee loan from the Syndicate 
bank. 

5. Non-provision of Rs.1.90 crore withheld by the clients on. account of liquidated 
damages for delay in completion of projects. 

6. Non-provision regarding foreseeable losses on contracts, which worked out to Rs.9.33 
crore. 

7. Non-provision for guarantee fees and penal levy amounting to Rs.21.23 crore on 
guarantee given by the Government of India for loans taken by the Corporation. 
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CHAPTER2: 

COMMENTS FROM THE SUPPLEMENTARY REPORTS OF THE 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 

The Statutory Auditors (Chartered Accountants) are required to furnish a detailed report, in 
long form, upon various aspects including the internal control systems prevai ling in the 
companies audited in accordance with the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India to them under Section 619(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956 and to identify 
areas which needed improvement. 

An illustrative resume of major recommendations made or opinion expressed or comments 
made by Statutory Auditors on possible improvement in the accounts and system of control in 
some of the Central Government Companies including Deemed Government Companies in 
existence as on 31 March 2004 and audited by them, is given below: -

NAME OF THE MINISTRY/COMPANY AREA FOR IMPROVEMENT 

~.1 SYSTEM OF FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNT:' 

!pepf!Ttment l!f.1.~~-~~C:-~~l!!Ki: 
2.1.1 Electronics 

Corporation of India 
Limited 

~epartment of Bio-.te,c;~n-ol~gj., 

2.1.2 Indian Vaccines 
Company Limited 

The Company had a centralised accounting system. 
At present inter-office transactions were not routed 
through any control accounts in the ledger. Certain 
receipts of debtors in head office were not squared off 
in branch debtor's schedule. Such routing would 
entail better control and ensure accuracy. 

The Company had not followed AS-1, I 0 and 15. 

~lfVISTRf O_f ~lf..IJ.¥J..f:.~f~~_l!..li!l.!l?IZERS 
lfj_~parl,;;;;, oi e:;,~;;,k~i!i a"i.d Pet;o--i;hef1!!Cals; 
2.1.3 Rajasthan Drugs and The Company had not maintained stock registers for 

Phar maceuticals spare parts of plant and machinery. 
Limited 

p"iPa"nment off:~riJL4!"i~ 
2.1.4 National Fertilizers 

Limited 
In the case of accounts maintained under centralised 
cash management scheme, on reconciliation it was 
observed that the bank had made some unlinked 
credit entries of RsJ .61 crore and debit entries of 
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Rs.2.92 crore and the net balance was shown. under 
the head "other liabilities". In case of unlinked debits, 
the Company should.take up the matter with the bank 
more vigorously. 

{'"'~'~"~M""":"'·~~···-.--M•~"':>"'-::"r~---,'1",'¢'1"'<,>0'(""-........ -,~~~"": .. ,.~\:'"';1"To""<"7<-,M~>-::.J 

'.ftll'N1STJ{'Y:JJE:C1VJLA;J(]Jf.TION . 
~':\j}o_,:::,.':!..,. .. ;~------""-"-M-'""·--· .... -~ ... _.,,.._-.---... _,_ .. ; .. .-._--,-,--0-.,..- M H- _ _,_, ___ , 

2.L5 Air India Limited i) Revenue sharing arrangements with Indian 
Airlines, the process of exchange of data with 
Indian Airlines had not yet been completed and 
the status ofthe credit/debit to be recorded in the 
books of · accounts in respect of transactions 
under the pooling arrangements still remains 
unresolved. Thus, the Company had not 
recognised revenue since 1 April1997. 

ii) In certain locations payments are made by the 
accounts department on the basis of certification 
of the user departments/airport staff without 
further crosscheck/verification before releasing 
payments; Control mechanism needed to be 
improved. 

iii)Reconciliation of control accounts periodically 
was required to make available full particulars at 
the time of finalising the accounts. 

2.1.6 Airline Allied Services i) Revenue receipts and major portion of expenditure 
Limited. of the Company were accounted for on the basis 

of credit and debit advices received from 
Holding Company, viz. Indian Airlines Limited 
(IAL). For such debit and credits, full details 
with supporting vouchers/documents were not 
available with the.Company. 

2.1.7 Indian Airlines 
Limited 

ii) The procedur~ ·of issue and retrieval of 
consumable stores and ·food items to flights 
needed streamlining. · 

iii)Documentation for fuelling and off-loading of 
Aviation Turbine Fuel in Aircraft needed to be 
improved. 

iv)No clear-cut policy along with modus operandi for 
appointment of staff, fixation of pay and 
retirement benefits had been formulated. 

i) List of properties taken on lease from Airports 
Authority of India were not available with · 
Personnel Department. 

ii) In some cases goods receipt notes were prepared 
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2.1.8 Pawan Hans 
Helicopters Limited 

~·~--~.::..--~-:.~:; .. :~:...-::...;:....-;;:-... -.... -~--~;;..;~.--
jMJNISTRYOECOAIJ 

. L-:~"'-':'•;-~~ .. -...!:-;: .... .,.H:-.::.:..:!...!"~:!:biL~-~"!.::" .. --~.,.,:._~~ 

2.1.9 · Central Coalfields 
Limited 

2.1.10 Coal India Limited 

2.1.11 Eastern Coalfields 
Limited· 

2.1.12 Mahanadli Coalfields 
Limited 

2.1.13 Neyveli Lignite 
Corp01ration Limnted 

2.1.14 South Eastern 
Coalfields Limited 

without receipt of material in the stores and these 
items were despatched directly from Airports to 
various regions. 

iii)No bank statement/reconciliation was available in 
respect of American Express Bank in Western 
Region. 

iv)The valuation of stores and spares was done by 
deriving weighted average rate without 
considering freight, duty and incidental charges 
and not-considering direct costs as a component 
of item of stores and spares, which was not in 
consonance with Accounting Standard 2. 

v) Segmentwise profit and loss statement as per AS-
17 was not prepared. 

i) The documentation in respect of agreements with 
customers and issue of invoices of hourly flying 
.needed to be strengthened. 

ii) System of accounting for the consumption and 
verification of the bills of the suppliers in respect 
of Aviation Turbine Fuel needed to be· 
strengthened. 

The present system of drawing final accounts of each 
area was adversely commented on by some of the 
Branch Auditors, as opening balances did not tally 
with closing balances of last year's audited accounts 
of that area. 

There was no proper monitoring system to charge 
interest and to watch its realisation in the case of 
defaulting debtors. 

There was no system of charging interest on 
defaulting debtors. 

There was no monitoring system of charging interest 
on defaulting debtors a:nd to watch their realisation. 

The Company had overdues recoverable from various 
Electricity Boards amounting to Rs. 193.71 crore of 
which Rs. 15.22 crore were more than three years old. 

f} Recording of receipts and expenditure needed to be 
strengthened. (Johilla Area, Sohagpur Area & 
Jamuna & Kotma Area) 

®There were delays in recording procurement and 
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disposal of stores. (Johilla, Sohagpur & Jamuna & 
KotmaArea) 

e Periodical reconciliation was not done in Johilla, 
·sohagpur & Jamuna & Kotma Area. 

Tiil&i.~tiJ~~iiE_~Jiii~~Wl~~i&illz~iJi?s 
2,11..15 fualliat T!rrul!e Pr([])Hl!ll([]ltnl[m (i) Dues of Rs.8.34 · crore in the :case of two parties 

Org2lllllns2ltnm:u (National Science Centre: Rs.4.47 crore and 
National Handicrafts and Handloom PaviHons: 

2.1.16 MM'JfC JLiiirnnHed! 

2.1.17 Tllne S1t2t1te Tr2lirlliillllg 
C([]lrJPI([]Ill"2lti([]lllll ([]llf ll:llllirlln2l 
Liimrnilteldl 

2.1.18 J?EC Lllmnted! 

Rs.3.87 crore) had not been accounted for in the 
books of accounts as of 31 March 2004. 

(ii) Inter-unit accounts needed to be reconciled at 
least on. quarterly basis instead of at the end of. 
the year. 

(iii) Cancelled cheques were neither recorded in the 
bank book nor a separate register was maintained 
for better control over the serial number of issue 
of cheques. 

(i) Corporate office of the Company did not maintain 
case-wise/party-wise expenditure on legal cases. 
As a result, the legal expenses to be claimed 
from the parties in case of favourable awards 
could not be readily ascertained. 

(ii) Confirmation of balances from parties under 
sundry debtors/claims recoverable/advances to 
parties, sundry creditors/other liabilities had not 
been formally confirmed and 
reconciled/analysed/linked in respect of 
Corporate office and Ahmedabad office. 

· (iii) The information furnished by the Company on 
compliance of AS-17 segment reporting was not 
strictly in conformity with the format/reporting 
requirements enumerated therein. 

(i) Timely entries for receipts and payments were not 
being recorded in the books of account. 

(ii) The Company's accounts were not being written 
up in time and hence, proper trial balance was 
also notbeing drawn up periodically 

(iii) Reconciliation of the bank accounts was also not 
being done regularly. 

(i) Booking of expenses relating to cost of sales 
which were incurred by associates on behalf :of 
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the Company as per associateship agreement was 
not in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

(ii) Bank reconciliation was not .carried out regularly 
by the Company. 

fflijlj~[Ji,~J:jlJ~g)jj)!i_i)_Ffliiil1triQ_lf~ 
2.1.19 Bharat Sanchar Nigam (i) The accrual system of accounting was not 

Limited followed in respect of the following cases: 

a) annual recurring charges upto Rs.l.OO lakh 
for overlapping financial years; 

b) medical reimbursement to employees; 

c) gratuity to directly recruited employees .. 

(ii) The accrual system of accounting needed to be 
followed by all the units. 

(iii) The North East I and n Telecom Circles did not 
adhere to the laid down accounting policy for 
accrual of revenue on the basis of the actual 
closing meter reading as on the midnight of 31 
March 2003. Further, these units also failed to 
recognize the revenue from INMARSAT and 
INET services and the dues payable towards 
service provider remained unaccounted in the 
books of accounts. 

(iv) The North East I Telecom Circle failed to even 
classify the work or estimates into capital and 
revenue because of non-availability of these 
details. 

(v) The Ledger account should reflect all transactions 
of a year instead of the present system of 
monthly totals followed by the Western Telecom 
Project, Mumbai. Besides, the system did not 
generate partY-wise ledger accounts for · 
suppliers/contractors, · security deposits and 
earnest money deposits. 

(vi) In the Rajasthan Telecom Circle, · asset-wise 
details of additions/deductions in gross block and 

· depreciation shown in the· fixed asset schedule 
could not be verified due to non-availability of 
complete details though the total value of fixed 
assets;,depreciation, accumulated depreciation as 
on 31 March 2003 were in agreement with the 
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books of accounts. 

(vii)The system of recording procurement and 
disposal of stores needed to be strengthened . 

(viii) In the Andhra Pradesh Telecom Circle, the 
existing accounting of purchases, recording of 
receipts and issues, documentation for disposal 
of inventories -by way of diversions from one 
work to another, verification & valuation 
methods of inventories, reconciliation of physical 
balances with inventories, etc. required thorough 
review and many practices and procedures being 
followed needed immediate change to rrieet the 
requirements of generaHy accepted accounting 
procedure, Accounting . Standards and 
fundamentals of accounting principles. 

(ix) In the Andhra Pradesh units, in violation of the 
requirements of AS-I 0, the capitalisation of· 
assets was done only to the extent paid arid 
liabilities were not created at unit level. Further, 
the capitalization did not correlate with the 
period for which the assets were in use or were 
generating revenue. In the Rajasthan and Andhra 
Pradesh telecom circles, the overheads were 
allocated as a percentage of capital expenditure 
at the percentages prescribed by the DoT and not 
on. the. basis of directly allocable costs, which 
were at variance with AS-I 0. 

(x) In Uttar Pradesh (East), overhead expenses had 
been booked in capital WIP on the basis of 
certain fixed percentages as against actual 
expenses. In the Gorakhpur and Faizabad 
Telecom Divisions, no overhead expenses had 
been charged on Capital WIP and hence, there 
was short capitalisation. · 

. " 

(xi) The accounting policies of the Company were 
generally in conformity . with the . Accouritirig'" ·. ·· 
Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of the 
Chartered Accountants of India. (ICAI), except in : 
respect of the following cases where the 
Company's accounting policies were at variance: 

a) As· per AS-15 "Accounting.·.for Retirement. 
Benefits", retirement benefits should have been 
provided on the basis of actuarial valuation. But 
the liability for leave encashment for absorbed 
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2.1.20 Mahanagar Telephone (i) 
Nigam Limited 

employees and directly recruited employees 
was provided on an estimated basis in the 
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2003. 
Further, no provision was made in the accounts 
for gratuity for directly recruited employees. 

b) In the absence of a system for identifying 
qualifying assets and the periods in which the 
activities necessary to prepare such assets for 
their intended use were complete, the 
borrowing costs that might be directly 
attributable were not capitalized as part of the 
cost of the assets. This was also not in 
accordance with AS-16 on "Borrowing Costs". 

c) The cost of stores and materials issued was 
charged to the project for which it had been 
initially intended without adjustment for actual 
issue to a different project or purpose, which 
was not as per AS-10 on "Accounting for Fixed 
Assets". 

Internal control on revenue billing needed to 
be strengthened so as to be commensurate 
with the size of the company and the nature of 
the business. 

(ii) The valuation of the inventories was not in 
accordance with AS-2. 

(iv) 

- -. 

In the Delhi unit, deficiencies in classification 
of expenditure during construction were also 
noticed due to accounting on the basis of 
delayed intimation of completed project 
works and inadequate records resulting in late 
capitalisation and delayed booking of 
depreciation. 

p~nt of D§!nce Production & Supp]je_Sj 

2.1.21 Bharat Electronics The Accounting policies of the Company were not 
Limited in conformity with AS-17 regarding segment 

reporting. 

2.1.22 Bharat Earth Movers (i) Proper references to the documentary evidence 
Limited were not readily available in respect of journal 

entries passed. Errors, which should have been 
otherwise apparent, escaped because of brevity 
in vouchers. 
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2.1.24 Canbamllk. FhnandaH 

Services lLHmnte«ll 
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(ii) There was delay in drawing up trial bahmce 
and compilation of accounts.. In view of 
requirement of publishing quarterly accounts 
this required to be speeded up. 

(iii) As regards procurement of raw materials and 
components certain procedural lapses were 
noticed like delays in finalisation of receiving 
Reports, wrong pricing of RRs which were 
attributable to delay in compilation of accolllnts I 
reconciliation apart from laxity in internal 
control procedures. 

(iv) Reconciliation of inter-office accounts was 
done only at year-end. This may be done 
quarterly. 

(vi) The practice of transferring . reconciliation 
differences to revenue, without supporting 
details.needed to be discouraged. 

The Company needed to update the accounting 
manual of the func~tions, procedures and systems of 
its different departments, ·as the existing accounts 
manual was outdated. · 

The Company had not complied with Accounting 
Standards 1, 13, 17 and 22. 

2.1.25 PNB Hlonrnsnng JFiinnance Internal control with regard to receipt of cash 
JLRmite«l! required further improvement. 

-t·:-;:.-,:-;:,·7·-:-•,:·~-·---,.---:-·"·-;::c•o::-•~;~----~ 

'ln$ui;ance DiVisio.#R~ --------!-..-.-:-.----·-------- . 
2.1.216 NatiomllH Insunrance 

Companny Lllmnte«ll 
(i) The records/files in respect of Motor Third 

Party Claims were maintained at servicing 
Division~! Offices whereas the accounting for 
liability for these claims were made by the 
policy issuing Divisional Offices. Due to 
deficiency in communication/reconciliation 
between these two · offices there were 
omissions/errors in accounting these claims. 

(ii) The system of internal control was found to be 
ineffective and inadequate. 

(iii) In Re-insurance Department · lacunae of the 
. internal control system were as follows : 
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a) Incorrect Regional Underwriting Cell (RUC) 
returns from Divisional Offices (DOs)/ 
Regional Offices (ROs) were not 
examined/and no corrective steps were taken. 

b) Absence of reconciliation of RUC returns 
with audited accounts of DOs/ROs in respect 
of Risk-Booked policies and Non-Risk 
Booked Policies. 

c) Non-maintenance of register for incoming 
returns/statements of accounts. 

d) Non-maintenance of party ledger for inward 
treaty. 

2.1.27 New India Assurance (i) The system of recording of receipts and 
Company Limited expenditure was not adequate in case of 14 

DOs/ROs. 

(ii) Bank accounts of the Company were not 
reconciled with the bank statements in 
respect of nine DOs/ROs. 

(iii) Control accounts and subsidiary accounts were 
not reconciled in respect of 12 DOs/ROs. 

(iv) Delegation of powers was found to be defective 
in case of five DOs/ROs. 

2.1.28 United India Insurance (i) Immediate steps should be taken to reconcile the 
Company Limited inter-office accounts to avoid any possible abuse 

of this vulnerable area. 

(ii) The internal check and internal control system 
should be strengthened. 

, -
:MINISTRY OF HEAVY INDQ~TR_Y ~ P_!!.!!f!_c;_~fVT~RP_RI§_E _, 

2.1.29 Andrew Yule & Co. 
Limited 

2.1.30 The Braithwaite Burn 
and Jessop 
Construction Limited 

Financial transactions in certain cases have 
exceeded the delegated power. 

(i) The Company had not maintained the necessary 
documents/registers in respect of procurement 
and disposal of store. 

(ii) Inter-office accounts were not reconciled 
periodically. 

(iii) The Company had not clearly recorded the 
delegation of financial powers. 

2.1.31 Engineering Projects Internal control procedures regarding expenditure at 
(India) Limited project sites and ad-hoc advances to associates 
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2.1.32 Hindustan Paper 
Corporation Limited 

2.1.33 HMT Machine Tools 
Limited 

2.1.34 HMT Watches Limited 

2.1.35 Praga Tools Limited 

2.1.36 Rehabilitation 
Industries Corporation 
Limited 

Report No.2 of2005(PSUs) 

needed to be reviewed and strengthened so as to 
make it commensurate with the increasing size of 
the Company, nature of its business and in view of 
technological, communication and managerial 
advancements. 

The Company did not have an efficient system of 
recording and identifying machinewise details of 
major repair and maintenance works. 

In respect of Bangalore unit of the Company, it had 
been observed that there were delays in recording 
transactions in the stores ledger. 

The system of recording receipts and expenditure 
required to be strengthened especially in the timely 
recognition with reference to: 

(i) Leave Travel encashment accounted on claim 
basis; 

(ii) charging of VRS expenditure to profit and loss 
account; and 

(iii) interim relief recovery considered as revenue 
instead of crediting to Deferred Revenue 
Expenditure. 

(i) Adjustment of advances was not satisfactory. 
There were still Rs.l.42 crore worth of credit 
balances in sundry debtors ledger remaining to 
be adjusted out of the total debtors of Rs.3.60 
crore. Similarly in case of sundry creditors, 
there were debit balances of Rs.16.12 lakh out 
of total creditors of Rs.l.82 crore which 
remained to be adjusted. 

(ii) In respect of write-off/write back of amounts 
outstanding for more than three years, since 
they were kept out of books, it required to be 
monitored for realization of debtors and 
payment to creditors. 

No interest was being charged for delay in making 
payment by sundry debtors. Realisation from 
defaulting debtors was not strictly monitored. 

. ·---· -..-- --- . '\ 

MINISTRY OF HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMEN'fl 

2.1.37 Educational 
Consultants India Ltd. 

The system of recording receipts and expenditure 
needed proper monitoring to ensure timely recording 
as the expenditure relating to earlier years had been 
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recorded in the financial year under report. 

~1NistiitiJF:1N-PoliiJA.rio!l&"'ifilliA.ncJfsrif!ii}; 
"-'u,.,J-.--.- -.~'- ---.~ -~~ .... , ....... "- ~- ..,_ .. ,,. "'- '-'•n•"'•~...::.:::,:;"~".:,.<;:;..!'..:;:,.~::,;,~.:.__;'~~-,;,;,._-.,_,-."'~•-·"' "'•"'..,"' .,, .. ,.,; .. ; .. ~,.,-: .. I, 

2J .. 38 Natimna! Fftllm 
' DevelloJPlmeliDt 

CorJPloratlloliD oJf Iml!ia 
Lnmliterll 

2.1.39 Nortlln Easternn 
Hannrllncrafts aml! 

. Haml!llooms. 
: DevelloJPlmennt 

CorJPloratnmn Llimliterll 

2.1.40, Bharat Pet~roRe1lllm 
Corpondnonn Llimiterll 

2.1.-:n Bneco Lawrie Llimlited 

w"NisfkiiiiP"iiwiii?.i' ... :_ .. -----·-- --~-·-----:. .... -.-.;. .. ,... .. -,--.- .... ..- ... -. 
2.1.412 Telnrn Hydlro Power 

. CorJPloratnonn Llimfttedl 

fi!!iii~il!IXltlflf!Ilflk~ 
2.L43 KoliDkarrn JR~lillway 

Corporatimn Limited! 

(i) The asset-wise details of exact location, 
accumulated depreciation, written down 
value(WDV) at the year-end, identification and 

· movement of assets were not available in the 
register. Closing balances as on 31 March 1996 
were carried forward in fixed asset register, 
break-tip of which was not available. Assets 
were not marked with Physical Identification 
Marks. 

(ii) The register giving the details of the Companies, 
firms and other parties under section 301 (3) of 
the Companies Act, 1956 was not updated 

(iii) Bad debts written off without approval of the 
Board amounted to Rs.33.23 lakh. 

The Company had not uppated and reconciled the 
sub ledger for sundry creditors. 

The Company had written back Rs.1.65 crore on 
account of unmatched items in bank accounts being 
more than three years old transactions for which 
details were not available. 

Monitoring of credit facilities (including overdrafts) 
needed to be strengthened considering the balances 
with scheduled banks. 

Accounting Policies were in conformity with 
Accounting Standards except AS-6 and AS-10. 
Detailed Accounting Policies had not been listed in 
the Annual Accounts. 

(i) Unit-wise trial balance prepared on a 
monthly basis was not tallied. 

58 



Report No.2 of2005{PSUs) 

(ii) The software which was internally developed 
and used across the company may be 
subjected to an Information Systems Audit to 
undergo a detailed analysis of the existing 
controls. 

(iii) The financial accounting module did not give 
party-wise outstanding payable and 
receivable. There was no control over party­
wise balances appearing in various unit 
ledgers. 

'MlfY..Is_rgx_p F_ ]!_()_AQ_T_~~!.'_Q!l! & _!IIG{f!V r!X$ 
2.1.44 Ahmedabad-Vadodara Internal control procedures in the area of toll 

Expressway Company collection and server room at toll plaza were 
Limited deficient and needed to be improved. 

~IJYI~TR Y_Qf ~f!_~IY._~l}_-~ Tl}_C!f!V.QfQ[JY 

2.1.45 Central Electronics 
Limited 

2.1.46 National Research 
Development 
Corporation 

'MINISTRY OF SmPPING .. - - -···--·- -- ----· 
2.1.47 Cochin Shipyard 

Limited 

2.1.48 Shipping Corporation 
of India Limited 

2.1.49 National Backward 
Classes Finance and 

(i) Consumption of material was not being 
booked at the time of issue of materials but 
booked on quarterly basis. 

(ii) Sales at the end of the current year had been 
recorded on the basis of clearance of goods 
from factory whereas the risk relating to 
goods was actually transferred to the buyer in 
the subsequent year. 

There was delay in adjustment of miscellaneous 
advances given to staff and various parties against 
the expenses. 

Spares procured for ship repair works were charged 
directly to repair works. Records showing receipts, 
issue and balance of spares for each repair work 
should be maintained for correct depiction of cost of 
spares and materials consumed. 

The system relating to stores and spares in transit, 
where reconciliation was still pending since 1996-97 
needed to be strengthened. 

The balances were lying unadjusted m some 
accounts for more than three years and were not 
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Development 
Corporation 

2.1.50 National Handicapped 
Finance & Development 
Corporation 

2.1.51 National Minorities 
Development & 
Finance Corporation 

iMil'fiSTRY OF STEfiJ 

confirmed/reconciled/adjusted. 

The Corporation did not have an accounting manual. 

The internal control mechanism with regard to 
recording of receipts and expenditure required 
strengthening. 

2.1.52 Hindustan Steelworks Before declaration of slow/non-moving items as 
Construction Company obsolete in a unit, usefulness of such material in 
Limited other units shou ld be checked. 

2.1.53 Steel Authority of India 
Limited 

2.1.54 The Handicrafts and 
Handlooms Exports 
Corporation oflndia 
Limited 

2.1.55 National Textile 
Corporation (UP) 
Limited 

~ll'f/STRY OF TOURISM; 

2.1.56 India Tourism 
Development 
Corporation Limited 

The system regarding identification and disposal of 
surplus/obsolete stores, raising of goods receipt 
notes and adjustment of advances needs to be further 
strengthened. 

(i) Deficiencies were noticed in timely recording of 
daily receipts, issue of material and their age­
wise classification. This needed improvement. 

(ii) Proper training, guidance, instruction to the staff 
and further follow-up was required for proper 
recording of procurement and disposal of stores. 

(iii) Reconciliation of inter-office account was done 
at year-end which should be done on more 
regular basis. 

(iv) Bank reconciliation in respect of Mumbai 
branch was not done on regular basis. 

(v)Title deeds in respect of properties at New Delhi 
and Chennai, were not registered in the name of 
the Company: 

Old balances including those for which provision 
had also been made were subject to 
reconci I iation/con fi rmation. 

(i) System of recording of expenditure was 
inadequate at Hotel Janpath, New Delhi and 
Western Court Catering Unit, New Delhi. 

(ii) System of drawing periodical trial balance at 
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regular intervals was· not in vogue at some units 
viz. Hotel Janpath-New Delhi, Western Court 
Catering Unit-New Delhi, Kosi Restaurant­
Kosi, Hotel Patliputra-Patna, Ashok Travels & 
Tours-Agra, Hotel KaHnga Ashok­
Bhubaneshwar, Bharatpur Forest Lodge. 

(iii) System of recording procurement and disposal 
of stores was inadequate at Hotel Kalinga 
Asliok -Bhubaneshwar. 

(iv) Frequency of reconciliation of bank accounts 
was inadequate at Regional Office (South)­
Chennai, Taj Restaurant-Agra, Kosi-Restaurant, 
Kosi, Ashok Travels & Tours, Agra, Bharatpur 
Forest Lodge-Bharatpur. 

'iii&isi'iifi"liiJf:iiiiJB'AiV:YJifiiiiioJ#iili&Ji'iiiViJP:ifviiffi"Ail:iii?iAriiiN "'-:.. --.~-.:-~'··· "'-'?""'.._..~-... "".."'-"'-"""-+-'"-""'- "..:.* .. 1 .. ·•w<·b-~ ~.;-.;>,.--• -~ ~.,~_, _,.~~.:i-..."',.;''.;;...,;·~--.;.""';;"' .:';..."' .. ~;..~-"'-"' -"".:P.l''..l>.,:< .:"',.~"--<:: •;.,· _ ~ ;;."--' .. "" -"' _,... ·-• ;,;<.,'<!.;c,..AA.."-':;. ~ ...:~· .. "" .. "'.:··-· .•o.• -J",f'" _,.,_ .. ~ ... :.•-----' <;. '~..:' .. -,.• .. ..,.-.. "-"'~"-

2.1.57 N:m~nl[])nn:mll Bunilli!llftnngs 
\CI[])nns11:Irundnl[])nn 
\CI[])Irpi[])Jr:mtnl[])nn Lftmi11:ei!:ll 

(i) Anticipated losses on contracts amounting to 
Rs.9.33 crore had not been provided for as per 
AS-7. 

(ii) Booking of ex..,gratia expenses to VRS 
amounting to Rs.l.22 crore as current year 
expenses instead of prior period expenses, was 
not in conformity with AS-5. 

~ff~~~j!~:~~~~f~N!~ 
,~~im~;.'f~~J4~£~liJJl~i 

2.2.1 ll:mlln:mnn V:mccnnnes 
Cmllllp:ml!lly Ullllllft11:tei!:ll 

Fixed assets registers were not reconciled with 
financial books since no entries had been made in · 
respect of depreciation. 

W!ii!iJifiiiliJiliill:iiililif¢}!fii:i!ff£i/iiitiii.li.i.il~. 
fl}Jiiu:ti!ifti#lfilftlflii[i.iii 
2.2.2 N:m11:il[])l!ll:mi lFertillnzeirs 

ILilllllli1l:tei!ll 
Efforts were required for recovery of marketing 
debts of Rs.27 .03 crore outstanding for more than 
one year. 

fMINisfiBFiiiF'a:Vii"A"ViA.rio!J. 
'-'"'-"'w"<ff-}.:"C;.>&.f-1..-;;;"H--~-"'-~----=-i_.~.:-.:·:.-------.c---""'..;---H-.;·"".;o'o.•--.;:.,.-..t"'.,.:"-..""-""H""C:;~~'::.~~...:-'-"~.:---

2.2.3 :H:nn([I!Ji:mnn Anirllftnnes 1Lnmftteldl (i) There was no system of monitoring the recovery of 
outstanding dues. 

(ii) Passenger agents outstanding included material 
amount of old unadjusted debit notes from the 
agents lying for years. 

(iii) Housing loan/debit balance in final settlement was 
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2.2.4 Pawallll Ham; 
. Hellicopters Lllmnted 

"j~'~'-':0.' ... ~· 8"7~.__,_ M ......... - .. -·-·-- .... , ....... • ..... j1 

'MINISIRYORCOAI;l 
~-.......... , ..... _- -·-- ........... -- -·- --·-·---- ...... ,.~, 

2.2.5 Blhtarat Colldl!llg Coall 
Lftmnteldl 

2.2.6 Cel!lltrall Coallfnellldls 
· lLnmnteldl 

2.2. 7 §mdlht Easterl!ll 
CoaHfnellldls Hnmnted 

outstanding in the name of certain employees who 
had retired/resigned from the service. 

The system of pursuing the recovery of outstanding dues 
needed to be strengthened. 

A large number of old advances were pending for 
adjustments. Steps for prompt adjustment and 
monitoring were necessary. 

Shortage/excess in respect of stores was done as per 
verification report after lapse of long period, resulting in 
long time lag and reconciliation of numerical ledger/price 
ledger was also pending. 

Monitoring and follow-up were not satisfactory in the 
cases of capital work-in-progress, advances to RITES 
Limited, other receivables excluding interest on house 
building loan and deposits with others and stores 
advance. (Hasdeo Area, DCC, Kolkata Sales office, 
CWS-CS Area Korba & Bishrampur Area). 

·.~-;,.;;,:;;;,~r\;-~- ,..,_ .- ,-.. -.-, ... .,...-.-.-,_,_-~ ... -.-.-.- -.--- - -.-,. .. ,- --·-·-,-. -.- ... -- -·-\7- -~-·-:--·-·-.-~:-·-·"'\ 

:tfii_l)[!§!..lJK_Q!Ef:.J!YJJ!!JlJll~~4Elt!PlJ§J!'!}£1 

2.2.8 MMTC Lllmnte«ll 

2.2.9 PEC Lnmnte«ll 

(i) The property and fixed assets register required to be 
updated in respect· of Ahmedabad and .Mumbai 
offices. 

(ii) There was inordinate delay in allotment of shares by 
Neelanchal !spat Nigam Ltd. (Rs.93 crore) and 
Konark Met Coke Ltd. (Rs.31 crore) 

The Company had not sought confirmation in respect of 
sundry debtors, creditors and advances shown as 
outstanding. 

·;---;-·-·- ------------:-----.----------- -.·-·--·- --.----- --·~ 

'MINISTRY OECOMMUNICATIONS;t 
... _- -.- --·-·-·-- -·- -- -·-·- ............ -- -.---- -.-- -.-- -...... -- -·-.-- -·- -.- _l 

2.2.10 Blhtarat S!:mdlnar Nigam (i) 
Lnmiteldl 

Though the authority for fixing the dates of 
installation and commissioning of plant and . 
machinery was nominated by the Company, the 
completion reports were not issued in due course 
of time by such authority and pending analysis of 
status, value and obtaining of completion 
certificates, the Capital WIP included balances 
pending capitalization for long period of time. In 
several cases, the dates ·of capitalization did not 
correlate with the periods for which the assets 
were ready for use or started generating revenue. 
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The fixed asset registers were not maintained 
properly, as the prescribed particulars in respect 
of several assets were not properly indicated. 
Besides, these registers required updation. 

The Company did not have any investment 
policy. 

2.2.11 Mahanagar Telephone (i) 
Nigam Limited 

The fixed asset register was not maintained 
properly in the Mumbai unit, as it did not contain 
the . requisite . particulars. Resultantly, 
reconciliation with the financial books was not 
carried out during the year. 

1MJNisi'ifiliJi/PiNANC~ 
1:;:..::;:;~.-::.;::;:::-~:.:.:_~~;~:~;;:;:;~----· 

~!P!!!!IJ!f!l!L~l:.!ii!!!lf!~!Jl 
2.2.12 Agricultural Finance 
· Corporation Limited 

. 2.2.13 BOB Housing Finance 
Limited 

fl~il!iJJIJI~;rit~~i~E~~~~. 
2.2.14 NationaHnsurance 

Company Limited 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

In the Global System for Mobile 
Communication(GSM) Mumbai, no physical 
verification of fixed assets was carried out during 
the year. 

The records maintained in respect of assets from 
DoT did not give full particulars in Delhi Unit. · 

In GSM Mumbai, the review of outstanding dues 
was not carried out by the Management during 
the year. Further, the procedures and follow-up 
for recovery of outstanding ·dues · required 
improvement and strengthening to ensure that the 
funds were not unduly blocked in receivables. 

Considering the quantum of debtors, the Company 
should strengthen its system of recovery of dues. 

The Company had not laid down any specific investment 
poHcy. 

As per . Share certificates issued by Stock Holding 
Corporation of India Limited to the company, there was 
a difference of: 
(i) Rs.3.33 crore (excess) and Rs.5.03 lakh (short) in 

the books in respect of equity shares as on 31 March 
2004, 

(ii) Rs.l.69 crore (excess) and Rs.l.08 crore (short) in 
books in respect of Preference Shares as on 31 
March 2004, 

(iii) Rs.65.59 crore (short) and Rs.68.37 crore (excess) 
in books in respect of Debentures as on 31 March 
2004. 
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2.2.15 New Innd!na Assnnmnnce (i) Property and asset registers were not posted upto-
Companny JLimntedl date and reconciled with financial books in respect 

of 53 DOs/ROs. 

2.2.16 HSCC (Innd!ua) Limntedl 

(ii) The deficiencies in the system of monitoring the 
timely recovery of outstanding dues pertained to 

. seven DOs/ROs. 

(iii) The physical · verification of cash and imprest 
balances was not carried out periodically in respect 
of seven DOs/ROs. · 

There were dues outstanding amounting to Rs.3.32 crore 
for which recoveries were very slow and this amount 
also included debits amounting to Rs.l7 .50 lakh which 
were outstanding for more than three years. 

W!lJ2l'ltl1tJ9.!5l!lf1J!lJi!i!fl$_f!..~r~~~fJjjJXf{?J!tF.i{!f!fls_"ff~, 
2.2.1 'i Bharnt Heavy ERectrirnlls The recovery of old outstanding dues was required to be 

LimitOO monitored on regular basis in respect of IVP, Goindwai 
unit. 

2.2.18 Elllginneell"ing l?l!"ojects 
. (India) Lftmlited! 

2.2.19 Bim:inxstm Papell" 
Omrporntionn JLfunrnlltoo 

2.2.20: HMT JLnmlited! 

(i) System of monitoring of timely recovery of 
outstanding dues needed to be strengthened and 
tuned. 

(ii) · Conveyance deeds in resp~ct of land and building at 
Scope Complex, New Delhi costing Rs.3.74 crore 
and residential flats at Airoli, Navi Mumbai costing 
Rs.21 lakh were pending for execution in the name 
of the Company. 

The Company did not have a formal investment policy. 

(i) Physical verification of cash and imprest balance 
needed to be done at frequent intervals on surprise 
check basis. 

(ii) Provision towards erosion in the value of carrying 
cost of long term investment amounting to Rs.44.54 
crore had not been made in respect of shares held in 
subsidiary Companies whose networth had been 
eroded. 

2.2.21 HMT Maclhlinne TooHs The Company had not obtained confirmation of debtors 
, JLtimnted! at regular intervals. 

2.2.22' HMT Watches Limited! The system of monitoring of timely recovery of 
outstanding debtors required to be strengthened. 
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Moreover, steps for initiation of legal proceedings 
required to be taken well before the limitation period. 

(i) The Company did not have any laid down 
investment policy. 

(ii) There was possible loss of Rs. 12.71 lakh against 
Rs. 15.50 lakh invested in UP Instrument Limited. 

2.2.24 InstrUllmenntatftonn As on 31 March 2004, the sundry debtors which were 
Lnmite«ll more· than three years old ·were Rs.25A6 crore 

(Government Departments: Rs.1.35 crore, PSUs 
Rs.20.92 crore and others Rs.3.19 crore). Against this, 
the Company had made provision for Rs.8.50 crore only 
(Government Departments Rs.l.16 crore, PSUs Rs.6.20 
crore and others Rs.l.l4 crore). Thus, provision for 
doubtful debts was grossly . understated. Besides 

· recovery of outstanding dues needed improvement. 

'&Jf!l§JJffJi!!itfJJl!{d:if.!J!!lFf!lf!l!!IliJYi?f#.i!_1flfiJJfftl!iHJ~!itlfd'fti?!lfll 
2.2.25 Dad.ra & Nagar HaveKn, (i) The Corporation did not have a specifically 

Damann & Dnl!ll SC/§1', · designed system for timely recovery of outstanding 
other JBackWar«ll CRasses dues. The system of the Corporation should be 
and Minoritnes strengthened to ensure recovery of moneys 
Fimun.cnan & advanced. The Management stated that the 
DeveRopment Corporation was in the process of designing the 
Corporatnmu Limited. detailed procedure/manual for recovery of principal 

and interest, including penal interest. 

(ii) The Corporation had no specific laid down policy in . 
respect of investments. The Management stated that 
surplus funds were invested in Term Deposit with 
banks. 

f~ftlf!:ffjf[]fif/!iiJlJif:!iJQ:.~ij_fff{f_if§liiJ!g!ff!!!MJtfllfl 
2.2.26 . EducatnonnaR · 

Cm:nsllllRtannts 
Lnmnted.· 

The system of monitoring and timely recovery of 
Inn«llna outstanding dues needed to be strengthened. 

fMi!WisTii¥~c/iTiiVF:oiiiVi4?iioi[;i}iii(if{iJcA.!lfiNil ..... _ ~ - ··~~<..:::~~'"!...;~~~,.._"'-··-·-:.-.e:-~-.• ..-~-·-·,;; ... -~-_ .. , ......... ,:.;.,.._~-" .. ,;, ....... .._ .. , .. - ...... _..,_<_.._..,_ .. -~-·--- .. _.;;,_, ____ ~,. -·-~ 

2.2.27 Natnmnall Fliim 
Devellopmei!D.t 
Corporatioi!D. LfimRtei!ll 

The Company did not have an effective system of 
monitoring and timely recovery of outstanding dues. 

Wfl~l~ii{flf_~1firiiffEltlfif{t1~jjJiiii~~~ 
iflll!lfifii~~~f!i~~!.?ff,~~Hl~~ . 
2.2.28 Eledroi!D.ncs Trade annd (i) Execution of title deed of factory land and building 

Teclbnmollogy at Bhiwadi, Rajasthan by Rajasthan Financial · 
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Development 
Corporation Limited 

Corporation in favour of the Company was pending 
since 1991-92. 

(ii) The Company had not conducted physical 
verification of fixed assets at Delhi and Kolkata 
during the year. 

MINISTRY OF PETROLEUM AND N;iroRAL GA.si 
; .. ........... .-. .. _ ...... _._ ----- .... _ _.., ,., . --·----- ·----~ 

2.2.29 Bharat Petroleum (i) During the year an amount of Rs.31.41 crore was 
Corporation Limited provided on account of doubtful trade debts. In 

respect of old over-due debts, regular follow-up and 
monitoring was necessary to recover the 
outstanding. 

2.2.30 Hindustan Petroleum 
Corporation Limited 

2.2.31 IBP Company 
Limited 

,-- ... -- -... --·------·--- ----
'MINISTRY OF RAILWAYS. ---·--·· ....... ... ...... ~ .. - . .; 

2.2.32 ffiCON International 
Limited 

2.2.33 Konkan Railway 
Corporation Limited 

(ii) The Company did not have a system of reconciling 
the records for tank wagons under 'Own Your 
Wagon Scheme' with the Railway records. 

(i) Physical verification of fixed assets lying at the 
marketing location revealed discrepancies to the 
tune ofRs.39.26 crore. 

(ii) Norms were not fixed for variations in the product 
transfers from refineries to marketing locations. 

Property and assets registers ofNorthem Region had not 
been updated and reconciled with financial books. 

Reconciliation of fixed asset register with the physical 
verification had not been done at the Corporate office 
level. 

(i) Interest and other finance charges relating to assets 
completed and put to use on different dates had been 
debited to development account and allocated to 
different assets with effect from a cut-off date (26 
January 1998) instead of the respective earlier dates 
when the assets were actually put to use. The 
consequent impact on the assets and profit & loss 
account had not been ascertained. 

(ii) The Company had debited earthwork amounting to 
Rs. 839.82 crore to ' Formation' under fixed assets 
but based on the practice followed in Indian 
Railways, depreciation had not been provided on 
such amount of Earthwork. 

(iii) No regular physical verification was being done in 
respect of the amount lying with imprest holders. 
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~ . 
~NISTRY OF SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY 

2.2.34 National Research 
Development 
Corporation 

No provision had been made for sundry debtors of 
Rs.56 .82 lakh and loans and advances of Rs.60.78 lakh 
which were more than three years old and were being 
pursued through legal action or otherwise. 

fM:!f'!!.~.f.i(f..}iF ··sMAii ____ SCAL~ .JNDUSTR!E_~- "iivD .. AGRO-- AND RURAL 
INDUSTRIES 

2.2.35 National Small 
Industries Corporation 
Limited 

,. .. . ··---- --

(i) The Company had a system of monitoring the 
timely recovery of outstanding dues which was not 
adhered to in full as a result of which the 
debtors/receivables were outstanding for long and 
rate of recovery was quite low. 

(ii) The system of recovering outstanding dues from 
sundry debtors was not satisfactory. 

~INISTRY OF SOCIAL JUSTICE AND E~POWERM~IYJ 

2.2.36 National Backward 
Classes Finance and 
Development 
Corporation 

2.2.37 National Handicapped 
Finance & Development 
Corporation 

2.2.38 National Minorities 
Development & Finance 
Corporation 

2.2.39 National Safai 
Karamchari Finance & 
Development 
Corporation 

The system of monitoring recovery of outstanding dues 
from State Channelising Agencies (SCAs) required 
strengthening. The utilisation reports from certain states 
were not received by the Corporation at regular interval. 

Physical verification of cash and imprest balances by an 
authorised officer was not done. 

(i) The fixed assets register maintained by the 
Corporation did not have the details about the 
locations of the assets. The Corporation did not 
conduct physical verification of these assets during 
the year. 

(ii) The Corporation had a system of giving imprest to 
its various staff members, but there had been no 
system of verifying these imprest balances as well 
as their timely adjustment. 

(iii) The Corporation had not laid down any investment 
policy. 

There had been lack of proper monitoring regarding 
recovery of disbursements not utilised by SCAs. 
The total defaults by State Channelising Agencies 
(SCAs) also showed increasing trend. 
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'r···,, ""'·'"""r-,-,;=:or.--,.,- -·---,-.,--;--:-c i 
'MINISTRY'OF:STEEL: ·-·-- .... ::.. -.-. .:.. ..... ,;. ... _ ... --.- · ... --........ -.-. ...... -.-- -.-.-.-- .... ; 

2.2.40 Hinnidllllstann SteeR Worlks The Company had a system of monitoring recoveries of 
Connst:rUlldnonn ILimnted outstanding . dues but the system was not effectively 

implemented. In . most cases large amount of adhoc 
payments made by the customers had not been adjusted 
with outstanding dues. 

2.2.41 KUllidlremUlllklbt bonn 
Companny ILnmlited 

Ore The location details were not available in respect of 
certain assets Hke furniture, fittings etc. 

2.2.42 MECON Llimnteldl 

2.2.413 MSTC Lnmlite«ll 

The Company had a system of monitoring and recovery 
of outstanding dues. But the system had not been 

. followed and, therefore, there were large outstanding 
dues under different heads like liquidated damages 
deducted by the clients, claims recoverable from sub­
contractors and sundry debtors which required 
monitoring. 

System of monitoring ·of old .sundry debtors and 
outstanding dues should be strengthened. · 

2.2.44 Steen AUlltlbtornty oJf Iimdlfia · To ensure proper monitoring ·of recovery and effective 
· ILfimnted ·· · · control, . the Company · should obtain balance 

rfilfifisrilf.(iif:1'£xTiiES: .- ......... __ ;. _______ . ___ :_, __ -·-·.,:,. _ _,_ ___ _:.. ___ .... ..; ....... 

confirmation certificates from the parties on a periodical 
basis and carry out detailed reconciliation. 

Hanldllloom No provlSlon for Rs.l.71 crore for doubtful debts 
Devellopmennt outstanding for more than three years, Rs.l6.70 lakh for 
Corporatnonn Limnteldl doubtful advances to suppliers and Rs.24.95 lakh for 

doubtful deferred accrued interest ·had been made in the 

2.2.46 NatnmnaH Textnlle 
Cl[]))rporatnonn (lUJ?) 
JLfimnted 

2.2.47 :U:nul!na Tomrftsm 
DeveHopmennt 
Corporatnonn Llim!tedl 

accounts . 

. Physical verification of the fixed assets was not carried 
out by the Management. 

(i) Fixed assets register was not maintained at Hotel 
Jam~u Ashok,-Jammu, Corporate. Office, Hotel 
Ashok-Jaipur, Ashok Travels & Tours(ATI), 

· Jaipur, Ashok Tourist Service Station (ATSS)-New. 
Delhi & Hotel Samrat-New Delhi. 

(ii) The balances as per fixed assets register were not 
reconciled with physical assets in some units viz. 
Corporate office, A IT Transport Unit, A TSS, Hotel 
Jammu Ashok-Jammu, and Ashok Airport 
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Restaurant-Indira Gandhi International Airport, 
New Delhi. · 

(iii) Old outstanding debts were not being pursued at 
Hotel Janpath-New Delhi, Corporate Office, 
Regional Office-Mumbai, Duty Free Shop-Mumbai, . 
·Hotel Kalinga Ashok-Bhubaneshwar and.· Hotel · 
Pataiiputra Ashok~Patna. · · ·· · · 

2.2.48 Donyi Poit!ll Asllwlk. HoteD · Property register was not reconcHed with the financial 
Ct!lll!"poratnt!ll!ID Lftmited! books. · · · · · · - · 

2.3J. Ail!" India Lflmited Provision . for . -outstanding liabilities was being 
considered on the basis of bills paid in the subsequent 

. year. Necessary care and caution was not exercised at 
local levels to include the liabilities related to material 
received/services availed before the year end for which 
either the bills had not been received! or if received were 
in the process. of passing. This resulted in short booking 
of expenditure(Hapility. 

2.3.2 . Indian AnJrllnne§ Lllmiterll · Liabilities in respect of goods purchased in certain cases 
were not provided due to non-availability of details from 
the Stores Department. · 

WJii'Nii/fili:'liE~tii&INiilis1li/il&T:PtJJiiiiE£m£liif1iis"E& 
~ .... :--.o.:.w~-:.;.;.-:..:-:--..:.c.-::.::.~;." __ :;;._~,~ -~~::..._;~,C<--:..-:;;..;;,_.;,___~--~~~-'-'-r..;.·...;:;.... ... , ___ _;___::_<'-:-._ _ _._;:..::.:.:-;..._·_-_;;,~ 

2.3.3 Braithwaite & The Company had defaulted · in .}epaymept of 
Compa!!Ry JLlimUoo Government of India loans of Rs.64 .. 90. · ·crbre and! 

interest including penal interest of Rs.27 .67 cmre 
. . . ' ' • .. ~ -

2.3.4 Bharat Heavy 
· ElectricaBs Limited 

Guarantee fee (including penalty) ofRs.IOO.Sl,9rQre and. 
interest of Rs.5 .17 crore was payable to the Goveinmient' 
of India and State Governments. _. , 

2.3.5 Bridge & .Roof O!llmpru!y · The Company had defaulted in repayment of 
(India) lLimitOO Government of India loans of Rs.11.0 1 crore and interest 

and penal interestof Rs.3.63 crore and Rs.27.83 crore 
respectively. . . 

2.3.6 Bum §taJmoom Ct!llmpa!ID.y 
limited 

2.3.7 Hmdustm • Phoro Films 
Manufactunrinng Cilllmpany 
limited 

The Company had defaulted in repayment oL. 
Government of India loans. of Rs.346.88 crore and 
interest including penal interest of Rs.l 09 crore. 

The Company had defaulted in repayment of loans to the 
extent of Rs. 497.23 crore. The Company also defaulted 
in payment of interest and penal interest. to the exten.t of 
Rs. 2,194.78 crore. · ' 
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2.3.8 Instrumentation 
Limited 

2.3.9 Tyre Corporation of 
India Limited 

-- -

The Company had defaulted in repayment of loans 
amounting to Rs.l 02.70 crore including interest/penal 
interest ofRs.45.95 crore. 

The Company had defaulted in repayment of 
Government of India loans of Rs.l .33 crore and interest 
including penal interest ofRs.3.49 crore. 

ltflNJSTRY OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY; 

2.3.10 Electronics Trade and 
Technology 
Development 
Corporation Limited 

(i) The loan of Rs.69 .57 crore from the Government of 
India and PSUs and others comprising principal 
Rs.22.34 crore, normal interest Rs.41.75 crore and 
penal interest Rs.5 .48 crore was overdue for 
repayment/payment and it was subject to 
confirmation from and reconciliation with them. 

(ii) The Company had not accepted the claims of 
SCOPE and Dr. Ambedkar Foundation for payment 
of interest on compound basis on loans taken from 
them in the absence of any such provision in the 
agreement. However, a sum of Rs.36.22 crore being 
the difference of compound and simple interest, had 
been included in contingent liability as claims 
against the Company not acknowledged as debts. 

MINISTRY OF-NORTH EAST DEVELOPMENT. 

2.3.11 North Eastern 
Handicrafts and 
Hand looms 
Development 
Corporation Limited 

The Company had defaulted in repayment of 
Government of India loans of Rs.14.12 crore and interest 
Rs.l7.76 crore. 

~STRYOF PETROLEUM AND-NATURAL-GA~ 

2.3.12 Biecco Lawrie Limited The Company had defaulted in repayment of loans to Oil 
Industry Development Board of Rs.32.76 crore and 
interest (including penal interest) of Rs.2.81 crore. 

):i INvENTORY AND-CCJNTRACTING 

pepartment of A_i~,;;;c E;,~ 

2.4.1 Electronics Corporation The Company had not fixed maximum and m1mmum 
of India Limited limits of stores and spares. The Company had also not 

fixed economic order quantity for procurement of stores. 

2.4.2 Nuclear Power 
Corporation of India 
Limited 

Large number of advances, in particular, at C&MM Unit 
are outstanding since long pertaining to the period prior 
to the Company stage as well as during the project 
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IDevteHI[])JPiminennt Inndlna1 
Lllmntedl 
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periods of the op.erating units, which needed to be 
adjusted. Thorough review and close monitoring of such 
advances are required. 

· Maximum and mmumum limits of stores/spares and 
economic order quantities had not been prescribed. 

. f"c:c~c-.-:=-·-.,:--.':··'·;-.".-.~~·'-'""'=-::::"=:'.-~-~-~"'""~~ 
'lff_l/Jilf§!..lJ:P!lJ~f;FK!_~;:~;Jf!?flfllJ/!f.l 

2.41.5 . · Anrllinne Allllnedl §ell"!!nces 
lLimitedl 

2.41, 7 lP'a!Walllll Banns Hellftci[])JPiten-s 
Lllmntedl 

::&iJiliii~rili:LQQ}it\ 
2.41.8 Bllnar~d Colkiinng Cmnll 

Limntedl 

(i) Non accountal of material received on loan in the 
books of accounts. 

(ii) Discrepancies were observed between the terms of 
purchase orders and the actual delivery. 

No economic order quantity· level for procurement of 
stores was fixed. Maximum and minimum limits of stores 
and spare parts were also not prescribed. 

No economic order quantity level was fixed for the 
. procurement of stores. 

In the Northern Region, no norms were prescribed for re­
order level. 

There was no system of identification of slow· moving 
and non-moving coal, coke etc. and no agewise analysis 
was carried out. 

oC c·-,• c-.-----~"-.--~--".-"·~·:-~':;:-·.,,-.. ' -.--.•.- "'\ 
:UJNJSrJ;R¥0F COMMUNl€!A1'10NS· ~,!:~'-"'-""""'""'--"=-4,=--~"-=""'-""''="~"""0~~"'''•=-""""';J 

(i) The economic order quantity for procurement of 
2.41,9 lElln21n-at .St<mcllnar Nfrg21m stores was notprescribed. 

(ii) The system of monitoring and. adjusting advance 
payments made to suppliers/contractors needed to be 
strengthened. 

2.41J.Im Ma1llnannaga1r Ttelliepllnonne (i) In respect of the Delhi unit and the GSM units, no 
Nnga1m lLfrmnltedl maximum and minimum limits of stores and spares 

had been laid down. 

(ii) In respect of the Mumbai unit, the status of work 
done against the advances paid was inadequate and 
needed to be strengthened, as advances of Rs.l7 .02 

· crore recoverable from the Electronics Corporation 
of India Limited (Rs.0.41 crore and liquidated 
damages Rs.0.03 crore), Hindustan Cables Limited 
(Rs~9.74crore), United India Periodicals Private 
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Limited/ United Data Base (India) Private Limited/ 
Sterling Computers Limited (Rs.3.26 crore), amount 
paid towards acquisition of land (Rs.0.70 crore) and 
materials given on loan basis (Rs.2.88 crore) were 
pending for adjustment since long. 

~----- -·-· ., 
!J.9J!!!!~nt ol !!![en~!.!p_tJ..u~~~l). ~ _Suppli~ 

2.4.11 Garden Reach (i) The Company had not fixed the maximum and 
Shipbuilders & minimum limits for items of stores and spares etc. 

Engineers Limited (ii) Stores and spares valuing Rs.4.30 crore (Previous 
year Rs.3.89 crore) had not moved over four years. 

2.4.12 Vignyan Industries Ltd. Maximum and minimum limits of stores and spares for 
other than 'A' class items had not been fixed . 

'MINISTRY OF HF;AL!.!J & F AMILf W~~E; 

2.4.13 HSCC (India) Limited An amount of Rs.2.13 crore paid to M/s Ansa! Buildwell 
Limited was pending recovery for a long time because the 
contractor was continuously in default in execution of 
work. 

~INISTRY OF ii£4 VY INDUSTRY_ & PUBLIC EJ'!I:~~!Y_S~ 

2.4.14 Braithwaite and 
Company Limited 

(i) The Company had not fixed the minimum and 
maximum level of inventories. 

(ii) Stores valuing Rs.l.84 crore had not moved for more 
than four years. 

2.4.15 Bum Standard Company The stock of raw material, stores and finished goods 
Umited valuing Rs.9.75 crore had not moved for more than five 

2.4.16 Heavy Engineering 
Corporation Limited 

2.4.17 HMT Limited 

years. 

(i) The procedure for physical verification of inventory 
and stores & spares being followed by the Company 
was not reasonable and adequate in relation to the 
size and nature of business of the Company. 

(ii) Physical verification was not done under the 
perpetual inventory system in a phased manner and 
there was no system of verifying all the items of 
inventory of raw material and stores & spares at least 
once a year. 

The system of monitoring and adjusting of advances to 
suppliers/contractors required follow up as in many cases 
reconciliation and adjustments were required to be made. 
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2.4.18 HMT Machine Tools Scope existed in Bangalore unit of the Company for 
Limited improvement of system of monitoring and adjusting 

advance payments to suppliers/contractors. 

2.4.19 HMT Watches Limited The management of stores could be improved to avoid 
obsolescence and accumulation of slow moving 
inventories. 

2.4.20 Hindustan Paper 
Corporation Limited 

2.4.21 National Film 
Development 
Corporation Limited 

The Company had not fixed the maximum and minimum 
limits for item of stores and spares. 

The Company did not have efficient system for 
monitoring and adjusting advance payments to Right 
Holders for purchase of films. 

!MINISTJlY ~F INF_OJW11]0f{ ~~9_HN_OL()_q_f: 
:iJepartment oj'ETid;~-;;;;; 

2.4.22 Electronics Trade and 
Technology 
Development 
Corporation Limited 

The Company had no system for identifying and 
monitoring the disposal of non-moving, obsolete or 
surplus raw materials, stores and spares and finished 
goods. Actual disposal of non-moving, slow moving and 
obsolete items was pending. Agewise analysis of the 
stock was also not avai lable. 

2.4.23 National Aluminium (i) The economic ordering quantity for procurement of 
Company Limited stores had not been determined. 

(ii) The Company did not have any policy for issue of 
materials to outsiders/sub-contractors for 
conversion. 

2.4.24 Mangalore Refinery and Out of total inventory worth Rs.62.12 crore, Rs.l l. 70 
Petrochemicals Limited crore were lying for more than three years as on 31 

March 2004. 

2.4.25 Numaligarh 
Limited 

Refinery (i) The Company did not have any laid down procedure 
for identifying non-moving obsolete store. 

(ii) The Company had not yet adopted the procedure for 
age-wise analysis of stores. 
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2,,t~6 Oil! alllld Nafurnll 
Colr]IlOrntiolllllimllterll 

lMiiD~!ix~2i:i9:Wiil 

Gas (i) The system of recording of consumption of stores at 
site locations i.e. platforms and rigs, required further 
strengthening particularly in relation to Mumbai 
Region Business Centre. 

(ii) Materials were issued without recording the 
transactions in the SAP system and preparation of 
goods receipt voucher. Also no control register was 
maintained for such issues. 

· 2A.2i Nortlbt Eastell"HlllEHectll"ntt! The Company had not fixed the maximum and minimum 
limit of stores and spares. Powell" Ooll"JPIOratiiol!ll 

LRmntedl 

2.4.28 Telluri Hydro 
DevelloJPimellllt 
Coll"JPIOratfiollll lLfimnted 

fty':'; .. "''·'-;_':'-.---:--:-;-:----·-· .. ,··~--~ .. ~ .. -.;;:· ... ·~~-:-.. ~.;, .. ~:-~.,~-~~7--:-='z!i.," 

VU!!!l~Ilf!Jlt:MltJff!ff_~. 

2Alo29 KolllllkaJID Ranllway 
Coll"JPIOratioJID Liimlited 

2.4.30 Ce~rnt1rall lElledrol!llncs 
Limited 

vriiiii~fiifiiiii~t!J 
2.4.31 NatnoJIDall Mimlerall 

DevelloJPimeJIDt 
CorJPioratno~rn lLfimitedl 

The Project was in the construction stage and the 
requirement of stores and spares was not fixed. 

(i) Stores accounts were not fully reconciled with the 
financial books. 

(ii) The Company did not have a system of fixing 
maximum and minimum levels of stores and spares, 
nor had it prescribed the economic order quantity. 

The Company had not prescribed the system for 
management of stores with regard to maximum and 
minimum limits · of stores/spares and economic order 
quantity. 

No maximum/minimum/economic order quantity norms 
were fixed for inventory except a few automatic 
replenishment stores (ARS) items. 
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2.4.32 India Tourism 
Development 
Corporation Limited 

-~ . ~ 

12;.....;. . .;_s _ _.;;.c_o~,.;;.,SJ'INGi 

2.5.1 National Fertilizers 
Limited 

ry_INISTRY OF C01)., 

2.5.2 South Eastern 
Coalfields Limited 

2.5.3 Western Coalfields 
Limited 

Report No.2 of2005(PSUs) 

(i) Maximum and minimum limits of stores and spares 
were not prescribed in some units viz. Ashok Airport 
Restaurant-Indira Gandhi International Airport 
(IGIA), New Delhi, Hotel Janpath-New Delhi, 
Corporate Office, Hotel Ashok-New Delhi, Hotel 
Jammu Ashok-Jammu, Hotel Kalinga Ashok­
Bhubaneshwar, Lalitha Mahal Palace Hotel-Mysore, 
Duty Free Shop-Delhi, Hotel Ashok-Jaipur, Ashok 
Travels & Tours-Jaipur and Samrat Hotel-New Delhi. 

(ii) Economic order quantity for procurement of stores 
was not prescribed in some units viz. Ashok Airport 
Restaurant-IGIA, New Delhi, Ashok Tours & 
Travels-Chennai, Project and Engineering Division­
New Delhi, Corporate Office, Hotel Ashok-New 
Delhi, Hotel Jammu Ashok-Jammu, Hotel Kalinga 
Ashok-Bhubaneshwar, Lalitha Mahal Palace Hotel­
Mysore, and Hotel Samrat-New Delhi. 

(iii) System for identifying and monitoring the disposal of 
non-moving and surplus materials and finished goods 
were inadequate in Hotel Samrat-New Delhi, Hotel 
Ashok-New Delhi, Lalitha Mahal Palace Hotel­
Mysore, Ashok Airport Restaurant-IGIA New Delhi, 
A TT-Jaipur, Hotel Ashok-Jaipur, Hotel Janpath-New 
Delhi, Western Court Catering Unit-New Delhi and 
Corporate Office. 

The Company did not have a system of identification of 
idle labour hours. 

There was no implementation of any system in respect of 
idle labour hours (Johilla Area, Sohagpur, Jamuna and 
Kotma Area, Hasdeo Area, DCC, Raigarh Area, Chirimini 
Area, Baikunthpur Area, CWS-CS Korba, Bishrampur 
Area, Korba and Gevra Area, Kusmunda). 

There was no system for identification of idle labour and 
machine hours (Kanhan Area). 
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2.5.4 Bharat Sanchar Nigam 
Limited 

There was no system of costing to ascertain the cost of 
services of the activities carried on. Further, the Company 
had no effective system for identification of idle labour 
and machine hours. 

2.5.5 Mahanagar Telephone The Delhi unit had made cost records on the basis of 
Nigam Limited information available in financial and technical records, 

but the same in respect of the Mumbai unit, the GSM 
Mumbai unit and the corporate office were under process. 
However, no reconciliation was carried out. Besides, the 
Company did not have a system for identification of idle 
labour hours and idle machine hours. 

. ' 
'!Lef!.ll!'tnent o Deft!'ce Prod~ti!Jn ~-§~P.IieSJ 

2.5.6 Bharat Earth Movers (i) Batch order costing had not been introduced for 
Limited booking of labour and overheads in Engine Division, 

Mysore. 

(ii) No report was prepared to analyse the variation in cost 
from batch to batch. 

2.5.7 VJgDyalllndustrieslimited Idle hours for machine and labour had not been assessed 
and identified. 

~INISTRY OF HEAVY INDUSTRY__& PlfBUC E_f:ITERPRI_S~S. 
2.5.8 Andrew Yule 

Company Limited 

2.5.9 Bharat Heavy 
Electricals Limited 

2.5.10 Braithwaite and 
Company Limited 

2.5.11 Bridge & Roof Co. 
(India) Limited 

& The cost records in respect of manufacturing of tea had not 
been maintained as per requirement of the rules made by 
the Central Government under section 209(1)(d) of the 
Companies Act, 1956. 

(i) Reconciliation between cost accounts and fmancial 
accounts had not been carried out at Oil Sector 
Business and Electric Motor Repair Plant, Mumbai. 

(ii) No system of identifying idle time of labour existed in 
Central Foundry Forge Plant, Haridwar. 

(iii) In the case of electric motors, due to low capacity 
utilisation, the overhead cost was high. Most of these 
motors were also being sold at less than the cost. 

The Company did not have any procedure of identification 
of idle labour and machine hours. 

The Company did not have any laid down system for 
identification of idle labour and machine hours at Howrah 
Work Shop. 
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2.5J.2 JBll!"mntllnwiDnftte . Bmurnn & The Company did not have a system of identification of 
JJesSI[])![ll Cmnst!l"nndftmn idle labour and machine hours. 
CmnnJPlmnny ILftnnnfttedl 

2.5.ll3 lHfftnndl1ll!stmnn CI[])JP]pltell" 
JLftnnniltedl 

-~--x~~~.-·~-. ~;-~':"!·~.~~.,.., 

'tl{@S1]f%-Qlfi!lf!!£~-
2.5.ll 41 N l[])rtlln lEIDstternn lERe~triltt -­

JP'(!)Wtelr Cl[])ll"J!DI[])Jrmtilmn .. -
R..ftnnnftteirll - · -

2.5.15 K«llnnlk:amn~y 
GllirJ!IDrratblonn lU!nmHftterll 

~iiYJs:f~i7ili::~~ild 

The Company had not maintained any record for idle 
machine ·and labour hours except in case of Taloja and 
Malanjkhand Copper Project. 

The Company had not implemented the overall cost 
acccn.mting system including identification of idle labour. 

(i) No detailed cost or estimated cost of running the trains 
had been arrived at by the Company. - -

(ii) There was no system to identifY idle time of labour 
and machinery in respect of work done intemaHy. . 

2.5.Hii JHiftnndlnnsttmnn SteellWI[J)Jrb The Company was not foHowing any system or costing to 
Cl[])nnsftr1ll!dnl[])nn C({)nnnJPlmimy compute the cost of identifiable major operations, jobs, 
lLftnnnfitedl -_processes and services regularly: · · · · · 

··,. 

2.5J.'7 l:Hiott~ll CI[])Jrl!Dilllll'IDltfil[])nn I[]) if The Company did , not have system of costing of major 
liiiRdlilm lLftnnnnteiill · operational jobs. 

Fjj'i7l~TH11if!fi:,"§fif!mic"'£~;;trJ) ,__'!!!l!:._,..__,;_."_""' __ .,:t'..:~---,._.;J-"'----i-----"-:&t'i--

2.~.]. IEli(!';dl!"I[])Imfi~s • \CI[])I!"]pli[J)Jrmtilmn The internal audit system needed to be strengthened to be 
I[J)Jf Rimclnm 1Lnmiitedl commensurate with the size and! narure of business of the 

Company; 
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!¥li&iiN~iii:Tt!i_ii_iif.f~/iit4fiiijftfiiii~ilhfi£~4t~ 

Wiii/~ii!~~t_;.fli@ii~~t~ 
2.6.2 Pll"ojed amtdl 

Jl)eveHopmeJIDt !Jmtdlfia 
JLnmfitetdl 

The internal audit system needed to be strengthened to 
provide value:..based suggestions including areas where 
cost control can be effected and time management 
improved. The internal audit should also cover: 

(i) Compliance with Accounting Standards, physical 
verification of inventory, verification of work-in­
progress, income and cost incurred on projects. 

(ii) Examination of the operating systems to ensure the 
adequacy and functionality of the system. 

~iil&!iiJ))}i:riiit~4J!Jd?fjij]fJ 
2.6.3. Imliann Anll"llfiJIDes Lfinnntetdl The internal audit system needed to re-orient its audit 

strategy to ensure timely reporting of deficiencies along 
with ensuring timely action taken for rectification to 
make it commensurate with size and nature of its 
business. 

fii{ljf.s}iftiiii¢ii4~!1 
2.6.4 Eastell"JID Coallfnelltdls 

ILfimntetdl 
There was no Internal Audit ManuaL 

2.6.5 Sm.11tlln Eastell"!Ill Cml!Ufnelltdls Timely conduct of internal auqit and .compliance thereof 
JLimntetdl needed to be strengthened (Johilla Area, Sohagpur, 

Jamuria & kotma, Hasdeo, Bhatagoan, CWS-CS Korba 
and Bishrampur). · · · 

2.6.6. WII!Stem CoaillftlieRi!lls JLiJnmRtedl Scope of internal audit needed to be widened. 
(Chandrapur Area). 

FMiNi~i~rDt~~iiA~flilt~~tiY»JLfi:i¥J 
2.6. 7 linuina Tmtdle Pll"omotnol!ll (i) The internal audit system of the Company was not 

Oll"galinnsatnollll commensurate with its size and nature of business. 
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2.6.91 PEC Lfimfiltei[]J 
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. (ii) The Audit Committee· of the Board wa:s yet to · 
review the scope of work of the internal auditors and 
suggest measures to strengthen the internal audit 
system in the Company and also meet Statutory 
Auditors to have their . views·· on strengthening the 
Accounting System/Policies in the Company as per 
the directions of the Board of Directors. 

The internal audit system was inadequate and needed to 
be improved. 

The internal audit system · rieeded to be further 
strengthened · especially in the area of checking for 
control · on invoice sale/purchase register, party 
reconciliation, · stock register and bank reconciliation 
periodically. 

2,((i,!«D Tlhle §1t:m1te 
Cii])Jrjp~Jr:mtfil{])nn 
lUmfitei[]J 

'JI'r:mi[]Jnling Improvements were required for ensuring periodicity and 
l{])jf Jinni[]Jfi:m. timely completion of internal audit. 

rWJiiifis:riiYoFciJ&iiiiiilte~~TiiiN: 
c..:.:~--:-~-- ... ::--:-~~~.;.i:..:"~~~..::v:::~:; 
2,((iJJ Blln:mJr:mlt · §:mllll~lln:mJr 1\lfig:mmrn The present internal ~udit system of the Company was 

JLhnnfiltei[]J · 'not cm:imiensurate with its size and nature of business. 

2.6.ll.2 M:mlln:mnn:mg:mr · Tellejpllnl!illine 
Nng:mm Lnminntei[]J · 

The internal audit system in relation to scope . and. 
coverage of operations, frequency of reporting and 
follow up, needed to be substantially strengthened in 
respectofall units. · 

. rtttt1Jl§}tii/fj}l=t!J!f!:jj)fi~§J 
VfiP.~~!fujjjjjjl£JI;~~~iift{if.~~!~'ffif!~~i/P.~~~~~ 
i((i,13 llllln:mr:mt JE:mritllll ·MI{])vers · The ·int~mal.audit system needed to be strengthened as 

Lfimfitei[]J regards personnel (including technical), extent of 
coverage (including information system audit) and 
documentation as wen as for timely responses Jrom the 
Management. 

lfrj_ij~!lm~~~·~i!l~Jfe!lfl 
2,((i,14 Jinni[]Jlb:mnnlk Hmllsfinng The int~rnal audit was.· conducted. at· the. year~end in 

· .·. Lftmnltei[]J . respect of limited branches .. This needed improvement. . . · 

2,((i,15 PNB Assd M:mnn:mgemennlt. The internal audit needed to··· · be· irtade · more 
JLfimfiltei[]J comprehensive to ensure effective . coverage · of ctjtical 

s~gments. · ·· · · · · · · · ·· · 
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2AiJI.6 JPNR Hl!llnnsnnng JFinnannce The internal audit required further strengthening. 
· :urnmntedl 

i[Jfodi~~~ffjiiy_i;_f~~J 
2.6J. 7· .Naoomllllims1!mnnnce 

. ' Cl!llmJ!Dml!Y lLinirnllterll 
Compliance of internal audit queries and reports found to 
have not been propedy attended . 

2.((i).Jl8 New JJ:nndlfta Ass\lllrannce The internal audit system needed to be strengthened in 
• Cl!llmJPlalllly lLftrnmfttedl · . respect of 46 Divisional/Regional Offices·. 

fiilM~fflillflltiiJ1tli}iiYP~~;fMft!4iriiii:4M 
I 

2.((i).Jl!9' HSCC (Imllfta) JLllmntedl The scope of internal audit system needed to be further 
strengthened and enlarged particularly relating to income . 
recognition; recovery of long outstanding debts/creditors, 
delay in pas~ing of bills of contractors by functional 
departments and .system and procedures of placing 
purchase/work orders to make it commensurate with the 
size and business of the organisation. There was no 
adequate compliance mechanism on internal audit 
observations by functional departments. 

fiif&§.!Jtitiliflfif!fillililtl§i:ifi{~~Jf~~!lg_!/frlii;!lliii~iiM 
2.6.2QD The scope and periodicity of the internal audit system ~n the following Companies 

:needed to be strengthened/improved to be commensurate with their size and nature of 
:business: · · · · · · ·· · 

· · (i) Baithwaite & Company Limited 

· (ii) Bum Standard Company Limited 

(iii) Engineering Projects (India) Limited 

. (iv) Hindustan Paper Corporation Limited 

. (v) Hindustan Photo Films Manufacturing Company Liinited . 

. (vi) HMT Machine Tools Limited. 

(vii) Instrumentation Limited .. 

The sales outletswere subjected to internal audit at 
quarterly intervals by independently appointed Chartered 
Accountants. However the system required to be 
strengthened. · 

r&fii1~1fiiftJiiff!iiliiiii!fH3liiii~€S.}Ji:ifffiTifffiii] · 
2.6.22 Edl11.llcatnl!llnnall CmnsUllll1tann11:s · Expeditious compliance of internal audit observations 

linndlfta Lfimittedl was needed. 

l~$i!iJE9itllif~~~!9iE~Ji1R§~~IQ~~f~~ 
2.6.23' B!l"'{])aldlcas1t Ennginnee~rinng The internal audit system. in the Company needed· to be . 
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CI{])IIllSUllll~allllll~S 

Lnmnte«ll 
Illlliil!nall strengthened. 

f_.,:;~,.~-0~~7'···::'>""~-.·-·0-,-:r;.,:--,;r:":"~':C'::·~-~-"' .. "".~:-·-.~;:0-;:---;~~.,..~~---·:-· .. ~~-= ... --·~¥'."~~:-:-;~--:f..-~'-; 
!MliJl§!l~J!JQlJJzlJl¥Jf'£!,!f!t!Jl:Pll~_!i£Eli€1JJ)!ll!:?Qli,'!J 
~:--~:-r::r:::;·-:."';--GT~:-·~-:-~::'7-""::·:·-:----~~-, · · 
'!Ml~t!f!!d!!UJ~·fJ.t_lfl!f!cft&!!J£~ 

2.6.24 Elled!l"@IIllics · Tiralltdle alllllltrll 
Tedml{])lll{])gy J!J)evelli[])Jillmellllt 
CI[])!I"JPII[])ll"all~Rmn Lllmi~e«ll 

2.6.2((D lHinmlluns~allllll CI[])JPIJPieir 
Lllmnte«ll · 

There was no internal audit system in the (Jompany 
during the year under report. Though the· Audit 
Committee in its meeting held in March 2004 had 
decided to appoint Internal Auditors for .. conducting 
internal audit, at the branches and Head Oflqce, of the 
accounts and other records for the financial year 2003-04 
·no such appointment was made · and, therefore, no 
internal audit was conducted. 

(i) the scope,· coverage and quality of internal audit was 
not adequate to be commensurate with the size and 
nature ofbusiness of the Company. 

(ii) It was observed that entire work of finance/accounts 
and interalia book keeping was handled by a firm of 

. Chartered Accountants since 1997 under the overall 
supervision . · of Assistant Manager (Accounts), 
Director (Finance) . and Managing Director. The 
original appointment w~s with the ·approval of 
Board of Directors. Thereafter the agreement was 
extended on year to year basis and the remuneration 
had been revised from time to time .with :the 
approval of Chairman only. During the year 2003-
04, the Company continued to avaH the services of 
CA firm who deputed their staff and ·entire work 
was done by them. The handling of entire:finance 
and accounts by . staff of ·CA firm instead of by 
regular employees over whom the Company/ 
Govemme.nt of India had. administrative ~<?,ntrol ~as 
a situation which warrants suitable remedial 
measures to strengthen internal control. 

The system of internal audit by external ag~ncies needed 
. to be strengthened. . · · 

?!!1l:!l$lt'!f!QKF!_i!}{fiEFJ¥IfJitJ2tJ/glf&Piiii 
2.6.27 Nl{])rt~ Easteirllll The intetnai audit system,· its reporthig ·status and· level 

lHfalllllliillncirallftb allllll«ll · · of competence. appeared to be inadequate.: , . . . . . 
Hmml![l{])l{])llll1!S Develll{])jpiilllllennt . · · .,. · 
CI[])IrJPII[])ll"aJl~ni{])IIll Lftmn~e«ll 
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MINISTRY OF PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS 

2.6.28 Bieco Lawrie Limited 

2.6.29 IBP Company Limited 

MINISTRY OF POWER: 

The Company did not have proper internal audit system 
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature 
of its business. 

The scope and coverage of internal audit needed to be 
improved. 

2.6.30 National Thermal Power (i) The system of compliance of internal audit 
Corporation Limited observations needed to be strengthened. 

(ii) Keeping in view the level of computerisation of 
operations in the Company, the Information System 
Audit needed to be introduced. 

2.6.31 Power Grid Corporation Compliance and implementation mechanism on internal 
of India Limited audit observations needed to be strengthened. 

2.6.32 Power Finance 
Corporation Limited 

MiNISTRY OF .RAii:WAYSl 

The internal audit system of the Company needed to be 
improved particularly in the areas of monitoring/follow­
up of loans and advances, accounting of interest subsidy 
and submission of periodical reports to Audit 
Committee. 

2.6.33 Indian Railway Catering The internal audit required further strengthening. 
and Tourism 
Corporation Limited 

2.6.34 RITES Limited The scope of internal audit required to be widened to 
cover aspects relating to internal control, procedures, 
systems, etc. 

2.6.35 IRCON International The internal audit assignments needed to be allocated in 
Limited time so as to avoid delay in submission of report by 

internal auditors. 

2.6.36 Cochin Shipyard Limited The coverage of internal audit was not adequate. The 
coverage of verification of contractors/sub-contractors 
bill and their settlement was not sufficient. 

:MINISTRY OF SMALL SCALE INDUSTRIES & AGRO &-RURAL INDUSTRiE~ '-- . .. . . 

2.6.37 National Small 
Industries Corporation 
Limited 

The internal audit was inadequate and its coverage 
needed to be strengthened to be commensurate with the 
size and the nature of the business of the Company. 
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2.1!ii.38 NatnGnnan Baclkwartdl 
· cnasses Fnllullnnce alllld_. 
lDlevenGJillnnnennt 

. CmrJiliGI!"altimn 

2.16i.39 NatnGnnan Ifbllllld!ncapJilletdl 
lFnnnannce & DevenGpmennt 
CGrJiliGimtnGnn 

Report No.2 of2005(PSUs) 

There were delays in receipt of internal audit reports. 

The appointment of the internal auditors needed to be 
done within time and they needed to ·submit their reports 
within a time frame. The compliance mechanism of the 
observations of internal auditors also required 
improvement. 

2.1!ii.40 The internal audit system in the following Companies needed to be strengthened to be 
commensurate with their size and natutre of business: 

(i) National Minorities Development & Finance 18orporation· 

(ii) National Scheduled Castes Finance and Development Corporation 

" . .,. ________ (i_i!} ____ ~!l_t_i~J.?!l)_§afai Karmchari Finance & Development Corporation 

"!l!!lYl$!!'1!-X·QK~rf:!ff~ 
2.~.4ll Jfnntdnaum limnn ~nnntdl Steen 

CGmJillalllly Lnmntea:ll 

2.6.42 Manngal!llese Olre (Jinntdlna) 
lLnmntetdl 

2.~.43 MECON Lnmntetdl 

2.~.4!4 MSTC Lllmiteld! 

2.~.4!5 NatnGnnan MnnneJran 
DeveHGJillmennt 
CGil"J!DG!l"atnGnn lLJimliteiill 

2.~.4~ Steen AU!!tllwrlity Glf liiDld!Jia 
lLJimliteld! 

The internal audit could not identify and. conqentrate on 
the major weak areas of internal control system of the 
company and the ~~ope of work of internal audit was not 
based on risk analysis. · 

The internal audit system needed to be strengthened. 

No internal audit was done during the year. The audit 
system was not commensurate with the size of . the 
company and nature of its business as the coverage and 
follow up action appeared to be inadequate with regard to 
the location and records checked. 

The scope of internal audit in respect . of quality, 
periodicity and subsequent · compliance ··needed 
improvement. 

The Company had an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and natu;re of business Of the 
Company, but the· compliance ·mechanism on internal 
audit observations needed to be further strengthened~ 

The compliance mechanism on th.e internal audit system 
needed to be further strengthened to ensure expeditious 
disposal./compliance to internal audit observations. 

2.~.417 Tllne JHamllncrafts annldl (i) The internal audit system needed to be improved 
Hanndlnooms. ·E:XJ[llolrts. further· with enlarged scope .i.e. widening of scope · 
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Corporation 
Limited 

of India and coverage and depth/frequency of checking 
should be increased and made more specific. 

2.6.48 National Textile 
Corporation(UP) 
Limited 

2.6.49 National Textile 
Corporation(WBAB&O) 
Limited 

IMI!*f/~J'R Y 0 f TJ!l!RlS.J!: 
2.6.50 India Tourism 

Development 
Corporation Limited 

2.6.51 Donyi Polo Asbok Hotel 
Corporation Limited 

2.6.52 National Buildings 
Construction 
Corporation Limited 

(ii) Reporting should be made more standardised and 
emphasis should be laid on the requirement of 
making specific and timely reporting of the 
discrepancies as observed by the internal auditor. 

(iii) Compliance of internal auditor/stock verification 
observations should be strictly and timely adhered 
to. 

The internal audit system needed further strengthening 
and improvement in terms of area covered and reporting 
frequencies. 

The internal audit had not been done. 

(i) Internal audit of some units needs to be strengthened 
viz. Hotel Samrat-New Delhi, Corporate and 
Communication Division, Project Division, 
Regional Office-Chennai, Hotel Pataliputra Ashok­
Patna and Ashok Airport Restaurant-lOlA. 

(ii) Observations by internal audit were not complied 
with properly at some units viz. Hotel Janpath-New 
Delhi, Bharatpur Forest Lodge-Bharatpur, Taj 
Restaurant-Agra, Kosi Restaurant-Kosi, A TT -Agra, 
Project and Engineering Division-New Delhi and 
Corporate Office. 

Compliance mechanism on internal audit observations 
was not satisfactory. 

(i) Operating units had not been adequately covered 
under internal audit purview during the year. 

(ii) Follow-ups of the reports were not prompt enough. 

(iii) Internal audit system needed to be strengthened and 
improved to make it commensurate with the size of 
the Company and nature of its business. 

(iv) Internal audit was required to cover units/projects 
having Value of Work Done of more than Rs.50 
lakh during the year. But this norm had not been 
strictly followed. 
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(v)There should be wider coverage of project activities 
· by internal audit and thus, any project having value 
of work done of more than Rs.25 lakh during a year 
should come under internal audit purview. 

~rz~i?l§:t!iilYJJJ 
~iNisfiii{off:iitM!icAi~i1ltF:1lfi1!fiiJifSJ . 
~~: .. , .. _~,-"-.. "~¥';"t!! ... --"'-"'--~-,., ... ¥------""~---"'."'J,.''''"~'"."!, .. ,~!"' .... ..-~~'--'"~""-'"'• .. ,_..., ... ·,..,,...,w,""""'·•·-·•·--......,.,!,oo'w . .,.._.,'!,'\\,..,....,:"""w_!, 

~-~.;..,~-,.;----~~__,;::;.,-:,,f":~t"h-2> 

P-l£~t!.~iJ1,qLE!t!il!~~!~ 
2.7.1 lb]astllnaurn Dirungs & The Company did not have any Audit Committee. 

Pllnumma~euntn~alls 

Lftmmfiteld! 

'MINistli.YlvE~coli.IJ 
~=-"'·"·'·'''·-~-.-~..;.~---~:-.-'.=::,.-.~-'"~"21 

2.7.2 No system of Strengths Weakness Opportunities & Threats (SW01) analysis was 
being followed by the following Companies: 

(i) Eastern Coalfields Limited 

(ii) Mahanadi Coalfields Limited 
/ 

(iii) Northern Coalfields Limited 

ff!l!f!!!if.}!iil!J.[lfllZ1Iiif!!lJA 
2.7.3 limllfiaiiBAirnilllles Lfimite«ll Intema1 Control procedures needed to be strengthened on 

account of the following: 

(i) In the foreign payment department, double payments 
were made in certain cases as there was no proper 
check against advance payments. 

(ii) Non-matching of goods received acceptance note 
with payment/credit notes. 

(iii) Non-monitoring of defective materials sent to 
. foreign suppliers.' 

(iv) The Company did not have an appropriate 
accounting manual. / 

2.7.41 Afiirllfiune Allllfiei!ll SeirVfi~es Accounts manual and Internal control system were not 
Lfimmfitedl finalised. · 

rgflfK~r~rltt/£W!ili?l¥t~r;§?i!Jilfp_f!.~tll?s; 
2~7.5 MMTC Lfimmfitei!ll (i) One export parcel at Jaipur amounting to 

US$336981 (Rs.1.47 crore) had been reimported 
and preshipment credit limit was outstanding 
against collateral secJ,lrity but n.o adjustment had 

·been made in the Accounts. 

85 

~ i 

i 
r 

,[ 
,. 
I[ 

t 
.. t 



Report No.2 of2005(PSUs) 

(ii) MICA Division manpower was in excess at 
Corporate Office. 

2.7.6 The State 
Corporation 
Limited 

Trading The computerised accounting system of the Corporate 
of India office had following deficiencies: 

(i) Entries were accepted beyond the period of 
accounts. 

(ii) Entries were punched without account heads and 
even without code number where the posting was 
made to some dummy codes. 

(iii) Entries were not posted chronologically. 

(iv) The account heads did not reflect the correct nature 
of account. 

(v) The Company had not sought confirmation in 
respect of sundry debtors, creditors and advances 
which were shown outstanding. Accounts of 
debtors, creditors and advances were under 
reconciliation. 

Pepartment of Defence__P!'_f!d_u~i£.'!..c!~~!PP.!~ 
2.7.7 Bharat Earth Movers There was no fixed norm for losses/wastages for raw 

Limited materials for manufacture of major products. 

2. 7.8 Vignyan Industries (i) The Company had not fixed any norms for wastage. 
Limited (ii) No norms had been fixed for man power employed. 

:MiNisTRY oF FiNAN-ci- oii» uiMiN'T o'F iiANKiNGi . - ...... --·-- .. ---· ..... . -- -·--- .. - .. 
2.7.9 Agricultural Finance 

Corporation Limited 

2.7.10 BOB Housing Finance 
Limited 

The Company did not maintain segment-wise accounts 
nor did it prepare segment-wise profit/loss statement. 

Default position of individual housing loans had been in 
an alarming stage in a few area offices (Baroda, Ajmer, 
Surat, Pune and Lucknow). 

2.7.11 Canbank Computer (i) Though the Company was engaged in the main 
business of software development, substantial 
portion of its revenue was being derived from 
registration and transfer services. Since, the two 
lines of business were unrelated it should be in the 
interest of the Company to prepare segment-wise 
Profit and Loss statements for effective review, 
monitoring and control measures. 

Services Limited 

(ii) The Company had not fixed any norms for 
manpower. 

86 



Report No.2 of2005(PSUs) 

2.7J.2 PNB Housing Fimunce (i) 
Lftmiteldl 

The assets. taken in possession by the Company, in 
full and final settlement of its . dues needed to be 
disposed of quickly, as holding of these assets 
carried a heavy cost. 

INSURANCE DIVISION 

2.7.13 Generan Knsumnce 
Cm:·poratnon of India 
Limited 

(ii) There was lack of standardisation in the Company 
at application software level. Different branches had 
been using different application software. There had 
been lack of· effective management information 
system and control. 

Corporation accepted as commutation. a sum of US$ 3.75 
million (Rs.l6.24 crore) in respect of all treaties 
pertaining to a single company, which had disconti:imed · 
business. 

2.7.14 New lhnidlna · Assunmnce (i) The system of internal control was found to be 
Company Lnmftted inadequate at head office and two ·Divisional 

Offices. 

(ii) Lease Agreements were pending for renewal· in 
respect of 22 Divisional/Regional Offices. 

2.7.15 Bridge & Roo!f The Company had not reviewed the installed or rated 
Compall!ly Limnteldl capacio/ during the year. 

2.7.16 Braithwaite Bmrllll all!lldl The Company did not have any Audit Committee of the 
Jessop Collllstruction · Board of Directors. · 
Limited 

2.7.17 Gangavati 
Limited. 

2.7.18 HMT Liimntei!ll 

Sugars The Company was facing legal action on account of 
default in repa:Yment of debts. 

(i) With the cessation of two Directors, the Audit Sub­
committee could not meet during 2002-03. 

(ii) Defaults ·were made in. repayment of principal 
amount of loans (Rs.26.21 crore) and accrued 
interest thereon (Rs.44.85 crore) as at the end of 
2002-03. 

2.7.19 HM'J[' Macll!lftne 'JfooRs Defaults were made in repayment of principal of 
Limited Rs.46.23 crore and interest accrued and due of Rs.33.99 

·· crore in respect of five years Bonds. 
. . . 

2.7.211) Scooters limllia Liimitei!l! The recommended action of BIFR had not been 
implemented in respect of reduction ofmanpower and 
full utilization of capital outlay. 
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:MiNiSTRY OF .OOORMATION & BROADCASTING: --·-- ------ __ .,_ ... -- --------- -- ---~ .................... --- .. -- -~· 

2.7.21 National Film 
Development 
Corporation of India 
Limited 

Though the Company had an Audit Committee, no 
meeting of the Committee was held during 2003-04 
which indicates that the Committee was not functioning 
at all. 

'Milv!$TRY O.f.~!.i.!.ll.Of.~f!M~~-N~T!!~l_GA~ 
2.7.22 Bongaigaon Refinery The Company had not reviewed the installed or rated 

and Petrochemicals capacity during the year 
Limited. 

'¥_l!{IS!RY_ Of.}'QW/jJi; 
2. 7.23 Power Finance 

Corporation Limited 

-- . 

2.7.24- Tebri Hydro 
Development 
Cor(!oration Limited _ 

M_I_N!$.!..11K.llf..M!fW.1 ~ 
2. 7.25 ffiCON Internationat 

Limited 

2.7.26 Indian Railway 
Catering and Tourism 
Corporation Limited 

2.7.27 Konkan Railway 
Corporation Limited 

(i) Audit Committee did not comprise of independent 
members as per the requirement of SEBI guidelines 
and the Companies Act,l956. 

(ii) Though the Company monitored non-performing 
loans periodically, follow-up and monitoring 
mechanism needed to be streamlined and 
strengthened. 

(iii) The computerised transactions were 
verified/checked manually. The Company had no 
system to verify computerised records through 
computer. 

Rehabilitation work was being executed by Uttaranchal 
Government and title deed had not yet been transferred 
in the name of the Company. 

In Tally software, the system was deficient to the extent 
that editing was not locked and there was no system of 
passing rectification entries. 

The periodicity of the meetings held by the Audit 
Committee during the year was not sufficient. 

Though the Company had an Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors, due to inadequate quorum, the 
meetings of the Committee were generally adjourned. 

M!li!~!.R.X.Q f..~lJ~Y_I~_-!!!.~I!.C~~-§li..f.ij_Jf_JjJ!ii~JVi: 
2.7.28 National Backward (i) The Corporation did not have any Audit Committee 

Classes Finance & of the Board of Directors. 
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(ii) The Corporation did not have an effective system of 
identifying non-performing loans and advances. 

(i) The Corporation had not formed any Audit 
Committee. 

(ii) The system of pre-sanction appraisals for loans to 
Non-Government Organisations required 
improvement. 

(i) The Audit Committee needed more elabqrate review 
and compliance of Intemal/Sta4Jtory and 
Government Audit observations. I 

(ii) The Company had not fixed norms in respect of 
manpower employed. 

2,/,311: Natiil[]lnnall 'Jfexme (MN) (i) 
· Col!"![lll[]lll"mtiionn JLiimnted 

The Vidharba unit was facing legal action on 
account of default in payment of PF d_ues whereby 
the bank accounts of the Unit had been seized by the 

2,/.32 MP 

2,/33 JHII[Jitell CI[]II!"JPII[]Irmtiimn l[]l:!f 
Inn«::!na Lftmfrted -

Provident Fund Commissioner. · 

(H) the unit had defaulted in payment of loan of 
Rs.51.80 crore and interest and penal interest of 
Rs.B.54 crore during the last three years. 

Board-level Audit Committee had not been formed. 
There seemed to be no adequacy of internal audit The 
frequency of audit needed to be increased. 

The Company had an Audit Committee · of Directors 
which met only once during 2003-04; the frequency of 
their meetings needed to be increased. · · 
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FOLLOW UP ACTION ON PREVIOUS REPORTS 

As per Committee on Public Undertakings (COPU)'s instructions, Ministries/Departments are 
required to submit to the Committee the follow up action taken notes duly vetted by Audit in 
respect of comments/paragraphs included in the Report of C&AG of India No.2 
(Commercial) presented to Parliament within six months from the date of presentation of the 
relevant Audit Reports. 

A review revealed that in spite of reminders, the remediaVcorrective action taken notes 
(A TNs) on comments/paragraphs on various PSUs contained in the last five years' Audit 
Reports No.2 (Commercial) under the admi.nistrative control of the Ministry had not been 
forwarded to Audit for vetting. The details of outstanding A TNs are given in the Report of 
C&AG of India No.3 (Commercial) of2005. 

New Delhi 

Dated 

New Delhi 
Dated 

(T.G.Srinivasan) 
Deputy Comptroller and Auditor General 

Cum Chairman, Audit Board 

Countersigned 

~ F t 7.1105 
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(VIJA YENDRA N. KAUL) 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
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List of Ministry wise Centrall Goverllllmellll.t Companies hul!fitemtillll.g tllne stmt1!lls olf 
SUJPlplem~tmtmry Amlllit olf Actemn!lllts !for the year 2003-trn41* 

· MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE & CO-OJP'EJRA.'li'ION 

1. Karnataka Meat & Poultry Marketing Corporation Limited (R&N) 
2. Lakshadweep Development Corporation Limited (R) 
3. National Seeds Corporation Limited (R&N) 
4. State Farms Corporation ofindia Limited (R&N) 

DEPARTMENT OF ATOMIC ENERGY 

5. Electronics Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 
6. Indian Rare Earths Limited (R&N) 
7. Nuclear Power Corporation oflndia Limited (R&N) 
8. Uranium Corporation ofindia Limited (R&N) 

DEPARTMENT OF BlO TECHNOLOGY 

9. Bharat Immunologicals and Biologicals Corporation Limited (R&C) 
10. Indian Vaccines Company Limited (R&C) 

. MINISTRY OF CHEMICALS & FERTIJLIZJER.S 
Department of Chemicals and Petu'o-chemicals 

11. Bengal Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals Limited (R&N) 
12. Bengal Immunity LiJ,nited (R) -
13. Bihar Drugs and Organic Chemicals Limited (NR) 
14. Hindustan Antibiotics Limited (NR) 
15. Hindustari Fluro Carbons Limited (R&N) 
16. Hindustan Insecticides Limited (R&C) 
17. Hindustan Organic Chemicals Limited (NR) 
18. IDPL (Tamilnadu) Limited (NR) 
19. Indian Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited (NR) 
20. Karnataka Antibiotics and Pharmaceuticals Limited (R&N) 
21. Maharashtra Antibiotics and Pharmaceuticals Limited (NR) 
22. · Manipur State Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited (NR) 
23. Orissa Drugs and Chemicals Limited (NR) 
24. · Rajasthan Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Limited (R) 
25. Smith Stanistreet Pharmaceuticals Limited (R) 

e (R) indicates accounts received and not selected for audit 
e (NR) indicates accounts for 2003-04 or earlier years not received 
o ·(Rev.) indicates accounts received and audited and 'nil' comments issued· after revision of accounts 
e (R&C) indicates accounts received an.d audited and comments issued 
o (R&N) indicates accounts received and audited and 'nil' comments issued 
" (All') indicates accounts received and audit in progress 
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26. Southern Pesticides Corporation Limited (Under liquidation) (NR) 
27. Uttar Pradesh Drugs and Pharmaceuticals Company Limited (NR) 

Department of Fertilizers 

28. Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (R&N) 
29. FCI Aravali Fertilizer Ltd (R&N) 
30. Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 
31. Hindustan Fertilizers Corporation Limited (R&N) 
32. Madras Fertilizers Limited (R&C) 
33. National Fertilizers Limited (R&N) 
34. Project and Development India Limited (R&C) 
35. Pyrites Phosphates and Chemicals Limited (R) 
36. Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited (R&N) 
37. The Fertilizer and Chemicals Travancore Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF CIVIL AVIATION & TOURISM 

38. Air India Air Transport Services Ltd (R&N) 
39. Air India Charters Limited (R&N) 
40. Air India Limited (R&C) 
41. Airlines Allied Services Limited (NR) 
42. Hotel Corporation of India Limited (R&C) 
43. IAL Air Transport Services Ltd -Ale not due 
44. Indian Airlines Limited (NR) 
45. Pawan Hans Helicopters Limited (R&N) 
46. Vayudoot Limited (NR) 

MINISTRY OF COAL 

47. Bharat Coking Coal Limited (Rev.) 
48. Central Coalfields Limited (Rev.) 
49. Central Mine Planning and Design Institute Limited (Rev.) 
50. Coal India Limited (R&N) 
51 . Eastern Coalfields Limited (Rev.) 
52. Mahanadi Coalfields Limited (Rev.) 
53. Neyveli Lignite Corporation Limited (R&C) 
54. Northern Coalfields Limited (Rev.) 
55. South Eastern Coalfields Limited (Rev.) 
56. Western Coalfields Limited (Rev.) 

MINISTRY OF COMMERCE & INDUSTRY 

57. Export Credit Guarantee Corporation (R&N) 
58. India Trade Promotion Organisation (R&N) 
59. Kamataka Trade Promotion Organisation (R&N) 
60. MMTC Limited (R&C) 
61. National Centre For Trade Information (R) 
62. PEC Limited (R&C) 
63. Spices Trading Corporation Limited (R&N) 
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64. Tamil Nadu Trade Promotion Organisation Limited (R&N) 
65. Tea Trading Corporation oflndia Limited- under liquidation (NR) 
66. The State Trading Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 

MIINISTRY OF COMM1UNJ!CATIONS 

67. Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (R&C) 
68. I T I Limited (Rev.) 
69. · Mahanagar Telephone Nigam Limited (R&C) 
70. MiHenium Telecom Limited (R) 
71. Telecommunication·consultants India Limited (R&N) 

MliNISTRY OJF DEFENCE 
Departme~t of Defe~ce lPTrodUilctio~ & SU!lppffies 

72. BEL Optronic Devices Limited (R&N) 
. 73. Bharat Dynamics Limited (R&N) 

74. Bharat Earth Movers Limited (R&C) 
75. Bharat Electronics Limited(R&C) . 
76. Garden Reach Shipbuilders and Engineers Liinited (R&N) 
77. Goa Shipyard Limited (R&N} 
78. Hindustan Aeronautics Limited (Rev.) 
79. Mazagon Dock Limited (R&N) 
80. Mishra Dhatu Nigam Limited (R&N) 
81; Vignyan Industries Limited (R) 

MJrNllSTRY OJF NORT!HI EAST DJEVELOJP:M:ENT 

82. North Eastern Handicrafts and Handlooms Development Corporation Limited (R) 
83. North Eastern Regional Agricultural Marketing Corporation Limited (R&N) 

MlNlSJrRJ! OF ENVIRONMENT AND FOREST 

84. Andaman & Nicobar Islands Forest and Plantation Development Corporation Limited 
(AlP) 

MlNJSJrRY! OF FINANCE (JNSUJJUNCE DJVJ!SJON) 

85. General Insurance Corporation Limited (R&N) 
86. National Insurance Company Limited (R&N) 
87. New India Assurance Company Limited (R&N) 
88. Oriental Insurance Company Limited (R&C) 
89. · United India Insurance Company Limited (R&N} 

Departme~t of Ba~!ki~g . 

90. Industrial Credit Company Limited (R) 
91. Industriallnvestment Bank ofindia Limited (R&N) "--..'--
92. Zenith Securities and Investments Limited (R&N) 
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MINISTRY OF FOOD PROCESSING INDUSTRIES 

93. Hindustan Vegetable Oils Corporation Limited (NR) 

MINISTRY OF HEALTH & FAMILY WELFARE 

94. Hindustan Latex Limited (R&N) 
95. HSCC (India) Limited (R) 
96. Indian Medicines and Pharmaceuticals Corporation Limited (NR) 

MINISTRY OF HEAVY INDUSTRY & PUBLIC ENTERPRISES 

97. Andrew Yule and Company Limited (R&N) 
98. Bharat Bhari Udyog Nigam Limited (R&N) 
99. Bharat Brakes and Valves Limited (NR) 
100. Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited (R&C) 
101 . Bharat Heavy Plate and Vessels Limited (NR) 
I 02. Bharat Leather Corporation Limited (NR) 
103. Bharat Opthalmic Glass Limited (NR) 
104. Bharat Process and Mechanical Engineers Limited (R) 
105. Bharat Pumps and Compressors Limited (NR) 
106. Bharat Wagon and Engineering Company Limited (R) 
107. Bharat Y antra Nigam Limited (R&C) 
I 08. Braithwaite and Company Limited (R&N) 
109. Braithwaite Burn and Jessop Construction Company Limited (R) 
110. Bridge and Roof Company (India) Limited (R&N) 
Ill. Bum Standard Company Limited (R&N) 
112. Cement Corporation of India Limited) (R&N) 
113. Cycle Corporation of India Limited (NR) 
114. Engineering Projects (India) Limited (R&N) 
115. Heavy Engineering Corporation Limited (R&N) 
116. Hindustan Cables Limited (NR) 
11 7. Hindustan Newsprint Limited (R&N) 
118. Hindustan Paper Corporation Limited (R&N) 
119. Hindustan Photofilms (Manufacturing) Company Limited (R&N) 
120. Hindustan Salts Limited (R) 
121. HMT (Bearings) Limited (R&C) 
122. HMT Chinar Watches Limited (NR) 
123. HMT (International) Limited (R) 
124. HMT Limited (R&C) 
125. HMT Machines Tools Ltd. (R&C) 
126. HMT Tractors Limited (R) 
127. HMT Watches Limited (AlP) 
128. Hooghly Printing Company Limited (R) 
129. Instrumentation Control Valves Limited (R&N) 
130. Instrumentation Digital Controls Limited (R&C) 
13 I. Instrumentation Limited, Kota (R&N) 
132. IL Power Electronics Limited. (R&C) 
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133. Mining & Allied Machinery Corporation Limited -under liquidation (NR) 
134. Nagaland Pulp and Paper Company Limited (R&N) 
135. National Bicycle Corporation oflndia Limited (R&N) 
136. National Industrial Development Corporation Limited (R&N) 
137. National Instruments Limited (NR) 
138. NEPA Limited (NR) 
139. Praga Tools Limited (R&N) 
140. Rajasthan Electrical Instruments Limited (R&N) 
141. R B L Limited (NR) 
142. Rehabilitation Industries Corporation of India Ltd. (R&N) 
143. Richardson and Cruddas (1972) Limited (R&N) 
144. Sarnbhar Salts Limited (R) 
145. Scooters India Limited (R&N) 
146. Tannery and Footwear Corporation Limited (NR) 
147. The Mandya National Paper Mills Limited- Under Liquidation (NR) 
148. Triveni Structurals Limited (NR) 
149. Tungabhadra Steel Products Limited (R&N) 
150. Tyre Corporation of India Limited (R) 
151 . Weighbird (India) Limited - Under Liquidation (NR) 

MINISTRY OF HOME AFFAIRS (UNION TERRITORY ADMINISTRATION) 

152. Chandigarh Child and Woman Development Corporation (R) 
153. Chandigarh Industrial and Tourism Development Corporation Limited (NR) 
154. Chandigarh Scheduled Caste Financial and Development Corporation (NR) 
155. Dadra & Nagar Haveli Daman & Diu Scheduled Caste/Scheduled Tribe,Other 

Backward Classes and Minorities Financial Qevelopment Corporation Ltd. (NR) 
156. Omnibus Industrial Company of Daman & Diu & Dadra & Nagar Haveli Ltd. (R&C) 
157. Cross Country (Diu) Hotels Ltd. (AlP) 

MINISTRY OF HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT 

158. Educational Consultants India Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF INFORMATION & BROADCASTING 

159. Broadcasting Engineering Consultants India Limited (R) 
160. National Film Development Corporation Limited (NR) 

MINISTRY OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
Department of Electronics 

161. Electronics Trade and Technology Development Corporation Limited (R&N) 
162. National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (R) 
163. Semi Conductor Complex Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF MINES 

164. Bharat Gold Mines Limited (R&N) 
165. Hindustan Copper Limited (R&N) 
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166. Mineral Exploration Corporation Limited (R&N) 
167. National Aluminium Company Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF NON-CONVENTIONAL ENERGY SOURCES 

168. India Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited (NR) 

MINISTRY OF PETROLEUM & NATURAL GAS 

169. Balmer Lawrie and Company Limited (R&N) 
170. Balmer Lawrie Investments Limited(R&N) 
171 . Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (R&N) 
172. Biecco Lawrie Limited (R&N) 
173. Bongaigaon Refinery and Petrochemicals Limited (R&C) 
174. Certification Engineers International Limited (R) 
175. Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited (R&N) 
176. Engineers India Limited (R&N) 
177. GAIL India Limited (R&C) 
178. Guru Gobind Singh Refineries Limited (R&N) 
179. Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (R&C) 
180. IBP Company Limited (R&N) 
181. Indian Oil Blending Limited (R) 
182. Indian Oil Corporation Limited (R&N) 
183. Indian Oil Technologies Limited (R&N) 
184. Kochi Refineries Limited (R&C) 
185. Mangalore Refinery Petrochemical Limited (R&N) 

186. Numaligarh Refinery Limited (R&N) 
187. Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (R&N) 
188. Oil India Limited (R&N) 
189. ONGC Videsh Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF POWER 

190. Bharatiya Nabhikiya Vidyut Nigam Limited (R&N) 
191. Bina Dehgam Transmission Ltd. (R) 
192. National Hydroelectric Power Corporation Limited (R&C) 
193. National Thermal Power Corporation Limited (R&C) 
194. Narmada Hydroelectric Development Corporation Limited (R&C) 
195. North Eastern Electric Power Corporation Limited (R&C) 
196. NTPC Electricity Supply Company Ltd. (R&N) 
197. NTPC Hydro Electric Company Limited. (R) 
198. NTPC Tamil Nadu Energy Company Limited (R) 
199. NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited. (R&N) 
200. Pipavav Power Development Company Limited (R&N) 
20 1. Power Finance Corporation Limited (R&C) 
202. Power Grid Corporation oflndia Limited (R&C) 
203. Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (R&C) 
204. Satluj Jal Vidyut Nigam Limited (AlP) 
205. Tehri Hydro Development Corporation Limited (R&N) 
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MINISTRY OF RAILWAYS 

206. Container Corporation of India Limited (R&C) 
207. Indian Railway Catering and Tourism Corporation Limited (Rev.) 
208. Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited (R&C) 
209. IRCON International Limited (R&C) 
210. Konkan Railway Corporation Limited (R&C) 
211. Mumbai Railway Vikas Corporation (Rev.) 
212. Rail Tel Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 
213. Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (R&N) 
214. RITES Limited (R&C) 

MINISTRY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 

215. Central Electronics Limited (R&C) 
216. National Research Development Corporation (R) 

MINISTRY OF SmPPING 

217. Cochin Shipyard Limited (R&C) 
218. Dredging Corporation of India Limited (Rev.) 
219. Hoogly Dock and Port Engineers Limited (R&N) 
220. Hindustan Shipyard Limited (R&N) 
221. Shipping Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF SMALL SCALE INDUSTRIES & AGRO & RURAL INDUSTRIES 

222. Andaman and Nicobar Islands Integrated Development Corporation Limited (NR) 
223. National Small Industries Corporation Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF SOCIAL JUSTICE & EMPOWERMENT 

224. Artificial Limbs Manufacturing Corporation Limited (R) 
225. National Backward Classes Finance and Development Corporation (R&N) 
226. National Handicapped Finance and Development Corporation (NR) 
227. National Minorities Development and Finance Corporation (R&N) 
228. National Safai Karmachari Finance and Development Corporation (R&N) 
229. National Scheduled Castes Finance and Development Corporation Limited (R&N) 
230. National Scheduled Tribes Finance and Development Corporation Limited (R&N) 

DEPARTMENT OF SPACE 

231. Antrix Corporation Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OF STEEL 

232. Bharat Refractories Limited (R&C) 
233. Bhilai Electric Supply Company Limited (R) 
234. Bhilai Oxygen Limited (R) 
235. Bokaro Power Supply Company Limited (R&N) 
236. Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (R&N) 
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23 7. Hindustan Steel Construction Company Limited (R&N) 
238. ' liSCO Ujjain Pipes and Foundry Company Limited Under liquidation (NR) 
239. · Indian Iron and Steel Company Limited (R&C) 

· 240. J&K Mineral Development Corporation Limited (R&C) 
241. Kudremukh Iron Ore Company Limited (R&N) 
242. Maharashtra Electrosmelt Limited (R&N) 
243. Manganese Ore India Limited (R&N) 
244. . MECON Limited (Rev.) 
245. · MSTC Limited (R&N) 
246. National Mineral Development Corporation Limited (R&N) 
247 .. NTPC-SAIL Power Supply Company Limited (R&N) 
248. Rashtriya !spat Nigam Limited (R&N) 
249. · Sponge Iron India Limited (R&N) 
250. Steel Authority of India Limited (R&C) 

Ml!NIS1RY OF S1URFACE TRANSPORT 

. 251 .. Central Inland Water Transport Corporation Limited (NR) 
252. ' Ennore Port Limited (R&N) 
253. Indian Road Construction Corporation Limited (R&N)- Under Liquidation 

MOOSTRY OF TEXTILES 

254. Birds Jute and Exports Limited (NR) 
255. Brushware Limited (NR) 
256. Cawnpore Textiles Limited (NR) 
257. Central Cottage Industries Corporation Limited (R&N) 
258. Cotton Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 
259. · Jute Corporation ofindia Limited (R&N) 
260. , National Handloom Development Corporation (R&N) 
261. ·National Jute Manufacturers Corporation Limited (AlP) 
262. National Textile Corporation Limited (AlP) 
263. National Textile Corporation (APKKM) Limited (R&N) 
264. National Textile Corporation (Delhi, Punjab & Rajasthan) Limited (R&C) 
265. National Textile Corporation (Gujarat) Limited (R&C) 
266. • National Textile Corporation (MP) Limited (R&N) 
267. National Textile Corporation (MN) Limited (R&N) 
268. National Textile Corporation (SM) Limited (R&N) 
269. National Textile Corporation (TN&P) Limited (R&N) 
270. National Textile Corporation (UP) Limited (R&C) 
271. : National Textile Corporation (WB&ABO) Limited (Rev.) 
272. Swadeshi Mining and Manufacturing Compuny Limited- under liquidation (NR) 
273. The British India Corporation Limited (NR) 
274. The Elgin Mills Company Limited (NR) 
275. The Handicrafts and Handlooms Export Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 

MINISTRY OJF TOURISM 

276. . Assam Ashok Hotel Corporation Limited (R&N) 
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277. 
278. 
279. 
280. 
281. 
282. 

.283. 
. 284. 

· Dortyi Polo Ashok Hotel Corporation Limited (R) 
India Tourism Development Corporation Limited (NR) 
Kumarkruppa. Frontier Hotels (Pvt}. Limited (R) 
MP Ashok Hotel Corporation Limited. (R&N) 
Pondicherry Ashok Hotel Corporation Limited (R) 
Punjab Ashok Hotel Limited (NR) 
Ranchi Ashok Bihar Hotel Corporation Limited (NR) 
Utkal Ashok Hotel Corporation Limited (R) 

ReportNo.2 of2005 (PSUs) 

I 

MJINJIS11'JRY OF UJtmAN DEVIEJLOPMJENT & POVERTY AJLILEVliATXON 

285. Delhi Metro RaH Corporation Limited (R&C) 
. 286. Hindustan Prefab Limited (R) 
787. Housing and Urban Development Corporation Limited (R&C) 
288. National BuHdings Construction Corporation Limited (R&N) 

MJINJIS'JJ.'RY OJF WA'Jl'EJR. RESOUJRCES 

289. National Projects Construction Corporation Limited (AlP) 
290. Water and Power Consultancy Services (India) Limited (R&C) 
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APPENDIX II 

List of Deemed Central Government Companies under Section 619(B) of the Companies 
Act, 1956 indicating the status of supplementary Audit of Accounts for the year 2003-
04* 

A. Deemed Government Companies promoted by the Nationalised Banks 

I . All Bank Finance Limited (R&N) 
2. Andhra Bank Financial Services Limited (R&N) 
3. Bhartiya Reserve Bank Note Mudran Limited (R&N) 
4. BOB Assets Management Company Limited (R&N) 
5. BOB Capital Market Limited (R&N) 
6. BOB Card Limited (R&N) 
7. BOB Fiscal Services Limited (R&N)-Under liquidation 
8. BOB Housing Finance Limited (R&N) 
9. BOI Shereholding Ltd. (R&N) 
10. Can bank Computer Services Limited (R) 
11 . Canbank Factors Limited (R&N) 
12. Canbank Financial Services Ltd. (R&N) 
13. Canbank Investment Limited (R&N) 
14. Canbank Venture Capital Fund Limited (R&N) 
15. Cent Bank Financial and Custodial Services Limited (R&N) 
16. Cent Bank Home Finance Limited (R&C) 
17. Corp bank Homes Limited (R&N) 
18. Corpbank Securities Limited (R&N) 
19. GIC Asset Management Company Limited (R&N) 
20. GILT Securities Trading Corporation Limited (R&N) 
21. lOBI Capital Market Services Limited (R&N) 
22. lOBI Home Finance Limited (R&N) 
23. lOBI Intech Limited (R&N) 
24. lOBI Trusteeship Services Limited (R&N) 
25. Indbank Housing Limited (R&N) 
26. Indbank Merchant Banking Services Limited (R&N) 
27. Indfund Management Limited (R&C) 
28. PNB Assets Management Limited (Rev.) 
29. PNB Gilts Limited (R&N) 
30. PNB Housing Finance Limited (R&N) 
31. Securities and Trading Corporation of India Limited (R&N) 

• (R) indicates accounts received and not selected for audit 
• (NR) indicates accounts for 2003-04 or earlier years not received 
• (Rev.) indicates accounts received and audited and ' nil' comments issued after revision of 

accounts 
• (R&C) Indicates accounts received and audited and comments issued 
• (R&N) indicates accounts received and audited and 'nil' comments issued 
• (AlP) indicates accounts received and audit in progress 
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32. SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (R&N) 
33. SIDBI Venture Company Limited (R&N) ·· 
34. UTI Assets Management Company Limited (R&N) 
35. UH Investor Services Co. Limited (R&N) 
36. UTI Trustee Services Co. Limited (R&N) 
37. Vibank Housing Finance Limited (Rev.) 

B. ])eennne«ll Goverllllnnntellllt Compa!lllnes Prm!lllote«ll !by tRne R11lllblber Boar«ll 

38. MeenachiU Treated Rubberwood (P) Limited (R&N) 
39. Pamba Rubbers Limited (NR) 
40. Periyar Latex (P) Limited (NR) 
41. Ponmudi Rubbers (P) Limited (NR) 
42. Rubber Park India (P) Limited (R&N) 
43. Rubber Wood India (P) Limited (NR) 
44. Sahayadri Rubbers (P) Limited (R) 

C. · Otllner Deemed G«llverllllmellllt C«llmJPlalllliites 
45. Accumeasures (Punjab) Limited- Under Liquidation (NR) 
46. Agricultural Finance Corporation Limited {R&N) 
4 7. Agricultural Insurance Company Limited (R&C) 
48.Ahemdabad Vadodra Expressway Company Limited! (R&C) 
49. AHied International Products Limited - Under Liquidation (NR) 
50. Andaman Fishe~ies Limited (NR) 
51. APITCO Limited (R) 
52. Ashoka Paper MiHs Limited (NR) 

· 53. Becker Grey and Company (193 0) Limited - Defunct (NR) 
54. Bihar Industrial and Technical Consultancy Organisation Limited (NR) 
55. Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited (R) 
56. Calcutta Haldia Port Road Company Limited (R) 
57. Chennai Ennore Port Road Company Limited (AlP) 
58. Cochin Port Road Company Limied (NR) 

·. · . 59. Derco Cooling CoBs Limited (R&N) 
60. Excelsior Plants Corporation Limited - Under Liquidation (NR) 
61. Gangavathi Sugars Limited (R) 
62. Industrial and! Technical Consultancy Organisation ofTamHnadu Limited (R) 
63. Inteiligent Communications Services India Ltd. (R&C) 

· 64. J&K Industrial and Technical Consultancy Organisation Limited! (NR) 
65. Kamatalm ;\.griculturali Develio]pment Finance Company Limited (R&N) 
66. KXTCO Limited (R) -

· 6'LMadan Industries Limited -Defunct (NR) · 
·· · 68. Maithon Power Co. Ltd (NR) 

/ 

69. Mmenium Information Systems Limited (NR) 
70. Moradabad Ton Road Company Limited (AlP) 

· :71. Mormugao Port Roaa Company Limited (NR) 
: 72~. Mumbai - JNPT Port Road Company Limited (AlP) 

.. · 73. Naianda Ceramics and! Industries Limited- Defunct (NR) 
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74. New Mangalore Port Road Company Limited (NR) 
75. North Bengal Dolomite Limited (NR) 
76. North Eastern Development Finance Corporation Limited (R&N) 
77. North Eastern Industrial and Technical Consultancy Organisation Limited (NR) 
78. ONGIO International (Pvt) Limited (R&N) 
79. Orissa Industrial and Technical Consultancy Organisation Limited (NR) 
80. Paradeep Port Road Company Limited (NR) 
81. Petronet India Limited (R&N) ceased to be DGC wefOl-04-2004 
82. Power Trading Corporation Limited (R) ceased to be DGC wefOJ-04-2004 
83. Textile Processing Corporation of India Limited- Defunct (NR) 
84. Tuticorin Port Road Company Limited- from 19.01.2004 
85. Uttar Pradesh Technical Industrial Consultants Limited (R) 
86. Visakhapatnam Port Road Company Limited (AlP) 
87. Wagon India Limited (NR) 
88. West Bengal Consultancy Organisation Limited (R&N) 
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APPENIDIX Ill::rr 

MTINISTRY OF CTIV1IIL A VIATJiON 

1. Airports Authority of India (R&A) 

MTINl[S'JrRY OF CONSUMER AFJFAJJ:JR§~ FOOIDl & PUBJL!C IDJliSTIDJBUT!ON 

2. Central Warehousing Corporation (R&A) 

3. Food Corporation oflndia (AlP- 2002-03) 

._MliNTISTJRY OJFPOWJER 

4. Damodar VaHey Corporation (AlP) 

5. National Highways Authority of India (AlP) 

MTINSTITJRY OJF SlliiJP>PING 

6. Inland Waterways Authority oflndia (AlP) 

s • (R&A) indicates accounts received and audited and audit report issued · 
® (AXP) indicates accounts received and audit in progress 
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